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1.0 GENERAL  

1.1 Purpose 

The Oceano Community Services District (District) is soliciting proposals from 
accounting firms that are interested in providing audit services to the District.  The 
audit period will be for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, with options to renew for 
annual audits for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2025. 
 
The District intends on following Government Code section 12410.6(b) regarding 
auditor rotation requirements of public accounting firms providing audit services to 
local agencies.   

1.2 Agency Description 

The Oceano Community Services District (District) is a multi-purpose special district 
and was formed on January 1, 1981.  The District is a political subdivision of the State 
of California and operates under a Board of Directors – General Manager form of 
government.  The District is demographically diverse and classified as disadvantaged 
based on criteria established for median household income. 
 
 District Services 
 
The District provides water, wastewater collection and street lighting services to the 
community, which is predominantly residential and includes a population of 
approximately 7,600.  In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the District provided fire 
and emergency services through the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA), a joint powers 
authority (JPA) formed in 2010 between the District and the cities of Arroyo Grande and 
Grover Beach.  Since the District does not provide direct oversight of the FCFA, it is not 
treated as a component unit of the District in its financial statements.  In 2022 the 
District initiated divestiture of fire and emergency services through the Local Formation 
Commission (LAFCO).  In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, the District will contract 
with FCFA for fire and emergency services and is no longer a member of the JPA.  
Going forward the District and County of San Luis Obispo will come up with a plan for 
fire and emergency services.   Lastly, the District provides solid waste and recycling 
services through a franchise agreement with South County Sanitary Incorporated, a 
subsidiary of Waste Connections Incorporated, a publicly traded corporation.  The 
District’s powers also include parks and recreation, but lacks funding and no such 
services are provided at this time.  Other services such as streets and roads, drainage 
and flood control, land use planning, law enforcement, health and human services are 
provided by the County of San Luis Obispo or other agencies. 
 
 Real Property 
 
In addition to water and wastewater collection infrastructure, the District’s significant 
fixed assets includes real property leased to the County of San Luis Obispo for use as 
a Sheriff Substation, a community center leased to Lucia Mar Unified School District, 
and the historic Oceano Train Depot leased to a local non-profit organization.  
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 Water Supply Contracts 
 
The District purchases two sources of water pursuant to long-term contracts executed 
with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District for 
supplies from Lopez Reservoir and the State Water Project.  Water supply costs are 
the District’s most significant expenditures, and during the recent drought, the reliability 
of the District’s supplies proved sufficient to allow the District to increase water in 
storage in contrast to most agencies that realized diminishing water supplies. 
 
 Wastewater Treatment and Disposal 
 
Wastewater treatment and disposal services for the community are the responsibility of 
the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, an independent special district 
formed under provisions of the California State Health and Safety Code.  The sanitation 
district also treats and disposes of wastewater for the cities of Arroyo Grande and 
Grover Beach.  The sanitation district’s governing board is comprised of elected 
officials from each of the three agencies, as provided by state statute.  As an 
independent special district, the sanitation district is not a component unit of the District. 
 
 Employees 
 
The District currently has eight (8) full-time employees and one (1) part-time employee 
– four (4) field staff, four (4) office staff and the general manager.  Full-time non-
management employees are represented by the Service Employees International 
Union (SEIU) Local 620.  District employees receive pension benefits through 
CalPERS.  The District does not provide post-retirement health benefits.  Legal, 
engineering and computer services are provided by independent contractors.   
 
 Recent Audits - Attached 
 
Since 2014, the District has substantially addressed financial and accounting issues.  
The Board of Directors have approved two water rate increases, one in April 2015 and 
another in December 2020 eliminating the budgetary deficit and by doing so 
established a modest operating surplus.  The District’s inter-fund loan history was 
researched, and reported to the Board, who approved repayment schedules to the 
wastewater and water funds and incorporated them into the District’s budget.  A rate 
increase to the wastewater fund is needed in the upcoming years with the inter-loan 
coming to an end. 
  
 
 Outlook 
 
The District has secured approximately $3,600,000 in grants and technical assistance 
has also been secured in this time period to help the District address deferred 
infrastructure replacement and upgrades.  These funds have allowed the District to 
develop a long term capital improvement program in the water system.   
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1.3 Computer and Accounting System 

 
Tyler Technologies (Incode).    
 

1.4 Contact Information 

Any questions about this RFP should be directed to: 

Carey Casciola – Business and Accounting Manager 
 Oceano Community Services District 
 P.O. Box 599 
 Oceano, CA  93447-599 

Phone: (805) 481-6730 
Fax: (805) 481-6836 
Email: carey@oceanocsd.org 

1.5 Submittal Requirements 

Interested accounting firms shall submit one electronic copy of their Response to 
RFP in PDF format to the District no later than 5:00 p.m. on Monday, August 28, 
2023.  All submittals should be sent to carey@oceanocsd.org.   
 

2.0 DESIRED SERVICES 
The District desires its audited annual financial report to include financial statements 
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) practices.  The examination by 
the auditors of such financial statements shall be performed in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) and in compliance with all laws.   
 
The District will prepare and submit the State Controller’s Annual Report for Special 
Districts and supplemental information for the financial statements.   

2.1 Project Objectives and Anticipated Scope 

The selected auditor will be required to: 
 

1. Prior to the commencement of the audit, the auditor will review the audit 
program with District Staff including proposed dates for completion of audit 
tasks.  For the initial year (fiscal year ending June 30, 2023), District staff will 
have the supporting schedules and documentation which the District 
customarily prepares for audits available for initial review by the auditor upon 
execution of a letter of engagement with the selected firm.  In subsequent 
years, the District will have schedules and documentation completed by 
August 30th of each year. 
 

2. The auditor will review the draft financial statements with District Staff.  At this 
meeting the CPA will disclose all findings or situations that the auditors feel 
are weak or problematic.  It is also anticipated that the auditor will review and 
assess internal controls and make recommendations to improve the current 
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procedures.  The District will receive a management letter from the auditor 
reflecting the above items.   If any irregularities and illegal acts are identified 
by the auditor, the auditor shall report their findings in writing to the General 
Manager, the Business and Accounting Manager, and to the Board President.  
The auditor should anticipate preparing annual GASB #68 calculations based 
on information provided by CalPERS for use by the District, who will prepare 
adjusting journal entries for the various funds based on established allocation 
methodologies.   

 
3. The auditor will prepare the financial statements for fiscal year ending June 

30, 2023, by June 30, 2024, and in subsequent years, by November 30th of 
each year. 
 

District staff will be available to assist the auditors by providing information, 
documentation, and explanations. The District will provide the trial balance, all 
schedules and other related items, including a MD&A.   
 
The District will provide the auditor with reasonable work space, phone, internet and 
copy machine access.     
 
The audit report shall consist of, but not be limited to the auditor’s report and opinion, 
a management letter, statement of net position, statement of cash flows, statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, notes to the financial 
statements, any required supplementary information, and any other additional 
information that may be applicable or pertinent to the audit as would be customary 
for a complete and conforming audit by current standards and regulations.    
 
Report preparation, editing and printing will be the auditor’s responsibility. 

3.0 RFP REQUIREMENTS 
As previously mentioned, responses should be submitted electronically in PDF 
format.  Required proposal elements are outlined in this section.  Submittals may 
contain additional information, but it is necessary to maintain the specific headings or 
order presented below.   

3.1 Firm Overview 

Provide a general overview and history of your firm that describes general 
capabilities and practice areas.  Include a list of office locations and identify the 
office that would be the primary point of service for District projects.  Responses may 
also contain a description of your firm’s approach to quality assurance and other key 
operating practices.  Responses should include an affirmative statement of 
independence from the Oceano Community Services District and affirmative 
statement that the firm and assigned staff are licensed to practice in California. 

3.2 Experience Summary 

This section should include summaries of your firm’s overall experience and 
qualifications performing governmental and special district audits.  Responses may 
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also include engagements in the last five years that are similar to that anticipated for 
our organization.   

3.3 Personnel  

Provide a list of key personnel within your organization that would be expected to 
contribute to the performance of the audit.  Provide a description of individual 
experience/qualifications and include professional resumes, if appropriate.   

If your firm would typically assign a client manager or a single point of contact for 
services of this type, please identify the person that you propose to fill this role.  

3.4 Scope of Services 

Provide the scope of audit services that your firm would propose to undertake for this 
engagement.  The scope should be responsive to the objectives and anticipated 
services outline in Section 2.1 and should include information on deliverables and 
other proposed services. 

3.5 Proposed Fees 

Provide a proposed lump sum fee for complete audit services, including all 
anticipated direct and indirect costs, for each year of three-year performance period 
(FY 2022/23, FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25), based on the scope of services 
presented in your proposal.     
 

3.6 References 

Provide at least three client references with complete contact information.  Ideally, 
references would be from agencies or entities for which your firm has recently 
completed independent audit services that are similar to the District’s. 

4.0 SELECTION PROCESS 
The District’s objective is to select an accounting firm with the experience and 
resources necessary to meet the District’s expressed needs.   
 
Proposed Schedule: 
 
Submittal Due    August 28, 2023 
Selection Announced (expected)  September 1, 2023 
 

All responses received will be carefully reviewed by District management and the 
Board of Directors will approve the selected firm.  The District may elect to create a 
short list, conduct interviews of selected firms or request additional information as 
part of the evaluation process. 

Ultimately, the selected firm will be required to provide an engagement letter.  
Additionally, firms providing services will be required to comply with District’s 
standard insurance requirements, which are attached. 
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The District reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted and to award 
the contract to the firm which, in the District’s opinion is best qualified.   

 

Attached: 

 Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2020 and related auditor 
letters. 

 Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2021 and related auditor 
letters. 

 Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2022 and related auditor 
letters. 

 Condition of Purchase and Insurance Requirements 
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~!/~~ , Levy c~ I~ar~i LL.,P 
Certified Public Accountants 

INLIEPEI~I)ENT AUI)ITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors of Qceano Community Services District 
C~ceano, California 

Report an the Financial Statements 

~Ve have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the 
Qceano Communit~~ Services District (the Dïstrict~, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the related Hates to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

N1ana~ement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements in accordance with accountïng principles generally 
accepted in the United States ofAmerica; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. ~e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend an the auditors' judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ïs sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position afthe governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Qceano Community Services District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended ïn accordance with accountïng principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other 1Vlatters 

I~equired Supplementary Informatian 

Accounting principles generally accepted ïn the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 
11, the budgetary comparison Informatïon on page 41, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability on page 42, and the schedule of 
pension contributions on page 43 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although Hat a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part offinancial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. ~Ve have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the Informatïon for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries of the basis financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Informatïon because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

2404 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa 1~aria, ~A 93455 Tel X45.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mihcpas,eom 

BEVERLY HILLS • ~ULVER aISTR1~T  •SALTA  1~ARIA 
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Other Reporting Required by ~overnrt2ent Auditing ►Síandurcls 

In accordance with Government Auditing ,Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 15, 2021, on our consideration of the Oceano 
Community Services District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

, . ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ -~ ~ , , - 

Santa Maria, California 
January 15, 2021 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

The management of the Oceano Community Services District (District) has prepared the 
following narrative for the readers of the District's financial statements to provide an overview 
and analysis of the District for the year ending June 30, 2020. The District encourages readers 
to consider the information together with the District's financial statements following this section. 

The District is an independent special district serving a population of approximately 7,600. The 
District is governed by a five (5} member Board of Directors elected by voters within the 
District's boundaries; all Board members must reside within the District's boundaries. The 
District is governed by California Government Code Sections 61000 et al, as well as other 
specific statutes and regulations that govern its operations. 

The District provides both governmental-type activities and enterprise activities. Governmental 
activities include emergency and fire services, street lighting, and recreation. Enterprise 
activities include water service, wastewater collection service, and garbage and recycling 
services. 

District Services and Related Agencies 

As a special District, the District's powers are authorized by the San Luis Obispo County Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). Any proposed additions to the District services, 
modification of District boundaries, or services outside of the District boundaries must be 
approved in advance by LAFCo. 

The following provides a brief overview of each of the District's services: 

Emergency Medical and Fire Protection Services 

-he Üistrict provides emergency medical and fire protection services through the Five Cities 
Fire Authority (FCFA). The FCFA was created as a "joint exercise of powers authority" (JPA) 
through an agreement originally approved in 2010 and amended on May 23, 2018, June 12, 
2019, and most recently on June 24, 2020 between the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover 
Beach, and this District. One member of the OCSD Board of Directors is appointed to serve the 
District on the FCFA Board of Directors and a second member of the OCSD Board is an 
alternate member on the FCFA Board. Since the District does not control the operations of 
FCFA, the financial statements and audit of the FCFA are separate from the District. 

The District pays a portion of the annual costs of FCFA services based on funding formula 
established in the FCFA agreement, which was modified in the June 12, 2019 amendment. 
That amendment also required the District to call for a special tax election on the March 2020 
ballot for voters to consider approving additional funding so that the District can continue to 
participate as a member of the FCFA. On March 3, 2020 Measure A-20 received 66.14% 
support, which was only 11 votes short of passage. The third amendment to the FCFA JPA 
was approved on June 24, 2020 which extends the agreement for an additional two years and 
will provide the community another opportunity to approve additional funding in 2022. 

3 
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The JPA amendments were needed for several reasons, including amulti-year implementation 
of the FCFA "Strategic Plan." The "Strategic Plan" includes increased staffing and  servides  
levels greater than those provided in the existing JPA. The amendments include specific 
approval of each members annual costs during the implementation period and requires either a 
citizen initiative or District initiated special tax measure to be placed on the 2022 primary ballot. 
The increase in District costs during the implementation period is being funded from reserves to 
the extent that the costs exceed property tax revenues received by 4CSD. 

On a related effort, the County of San Luis Obispo Board of Supervisors prepared a report on 
independent fire departments serving unincorporated communities throughout the County and 
significant constraints in generating the needed revenues to fund full-time fire departments. 
Alternatives of a stand-alone fire department and/or service from the County/ Cal Fire are also 
possible options to review and consider. 

Lighting Services 

The District provides street lighting services in certain areas of the community. The County of 
San Luis Obispo and the California Department of Transportation also provide some street 
lighting. 

Parks and Recreation Services 

The District is authorized to provide parks and recreation services, however, currently has no 
programs at this time other than those implemented by Lucia Mar Unified School District 
(LMUSD). The District holds a lease with LMUSD for the Oceano Community Center and as 
part of the lease requirements LMUSD utilizes the community center for recreation programs. 
There is a section in the lease where the District may also utilize the community center. 
Currently the District offers individuals the opportunity to utilize the Oceano Community Center 
for up to 10 hours per month and 120 hours per year with discounted fees. 

Water Services 

The District provides water service to approximately 2,200 connections. An annual Consumer 
Confidence Report {CCR} is mailed to all water customers providing a summary of the District's 
water quality including a comparison to regulatory requirements. The California State Division 
of Drinking Water regulates the District's water supplies and the CCR can be found on the 
District webs~te or by calling the District's ofFces. 

The District's water supplies include groundwater, Lopez water and State water. Regulation of 
the District's groundwater supply is also subject to the stipulations and judgment adopted for the 
adjudication of the Santa Maria groundwater basin. Lopez and State water supplies are 
provided by the County of San Luis Obispo under terms of water supply contracts. The 
District's water supply reliability is relatively high, and the District had been increasing water in 
storage during the recent drought. Nevertheless, the need to address water supply reliability 
continues and contract amendments for the State Water Project are being developed by the 

~ 
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State Department of Water Resources and, separately, contract amendments for the Lopez 
Lake water supply are being considered by local agencies to establish water storage rights and 
enhance multi-yearwater resource planning. 

The Water Fund revenues have been falling short as the community continues to conserve 
water. As a result, a water rate increase was approved by the Board on October 14, 2020 at a 
public hearing. The rate increase established in 2015 was enacted in the midst of a drought and 
the rates were insufficient to cover costs from continued water conservation by the community 
post drought. The 2020 rate increase includes funds for capital improvement projects and 
minimum reserves. The increase began November 2020 and will be phased in over three 
years. 

Wastewater Collection Services 

The District provides wastewater collection services through a nefinrork of neighborhood 
pipelines that flow into pipelines and facilities owned by the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District (SSLOCSD), which is responsible for treatment and disposal. The 
SSLOCSD customers include the customers of the District as well as those of the cities of 
Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach. Since the District does not control the operations of 
SSLOCSD, the financial statements and audit of the SSLOCSD are separate from the District. 
District operations are regulated by the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

Solid Waste and Recycling Services 

The District provides mandatory solid waste and recycling services through a franchise 
agreement with South County Sanitary Services Incorporated (SCSS Inc.), which is a 
subsidiary of Waste Connections Incorporated, a  puhlicly traded corporatior; "~~,l~RI" on the IVew 
fork Stock Bxchange. In 2020 the Board adopted a resolution to reduce the franchise fee 
payment from SCSS from 10% to 5% to reduce the customers utility bills. The District enforces 
illegal dumping within the community and other violations. The District has also adopted 
incentive programs designed to promote a cleaner community. Since the District does not 
control operations of SCSS or WCN, the financial statements and audits of those envies are 
separate from the District. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report contains the following five parts. 

• Management Discussion and Analysis (this section) 
• The Basic Financial Statements 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 
• Supplementary Information - a comparison of the District's budgets to actual results 
• Supplementary Information on Pension Disclosures 

~ 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

This management discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the most 
relevant information affecting the District's financial affairs for the year and the District's end of 
the year status. The basic financial statements provide information on the governmental and 
enterprise activities including operating and non-operating revenues and expenditures, current 
assets, non-current assets, capital assets, deferred outflows of resources, current and long-term 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional detailed information and explanations 
on the financial statements. The budget to actual comparison illustrates differences between 
the board adopted budget and actual revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance in 
the General fund. The current year re~ects a positive budget variance of $61,813 for the 
Governmental Fund. C)f this amount, $ 90,865 was utilized to repay a portion of an interfund 
loan owed by the Governmental Fund to the Sewer Fund. 

Financial Statement Analysis and Highlïç~hts 

The District's Statements of Net Position is illustrated below for the Governmental and 
Enterprise Funds, and subsequently, for each of the Enterprise Funds. 

Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Governmental Funds Business-ty~ Activities 

2020 209 202© 2019 

Current and other assets $ 781,114 $940,770 $ 2,653,834 $ 2,972,920 
Ca ital assets, net 1, 813, 033 1, 740, 909 2, 822, 935 2, 794, 734 

T©tal Assets 2,594,147 2,681,679 5,476,769 5,767,654 

Deferred out~ow of resources 19,113 18,530 195,928 189,939 

Current liabilities 55,676 46,392 146,369 185,001 
N©n-current liabilities 203,438 183,439 636,269 577,536 

Total Liabilities 259,114 229,831 782,638 762,537 

Deferred in~ow of resources 9,168 8,280 43,153 38,982 

Net investment in capital assets 1,813,033 1,740,909 2,822,935 2,788,057 

Restricted 266,210 241,441 40,589 15,574 

Unrestricted 265, 735 479, 748 1, 983, 382 2, 352,443 

Net Position ~ ..2,344,97$ ~ 2,42.098 ~ 4,846.90 $ 5,156.074 

The Net Position of the District's Governmental Fund changed in the year ending June 30, 2020 
as a result of a deficit of $117,120. 
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The Net Position of the Enterprise Funds remained consistent with the previous year. 

Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Water Fund Wastewater Fund Garbage Fund 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

Current and other assets $1, 373, 289 $1,660, 585 $1, 332, 002 $1, 386, 005 $ 361, 052 $ 377, 568 

Ca ital assets, net 1, 598,443 1,467,461 1,238,206 1, 338, 745 2,523 4,102 

Total Assets 2, 971, 732 3,128,046 2, 570, 208 2, 724, 750 363, 575 381, 670 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 106, 591 103, 333 78, 259 75, 867 11, 078 10, 739 

Current Liabilities 193,145 642,034 3,865 8,398 3,560 1,381 
Non-current liabilities 729,274 321,984 252,274 228,987 29,266 26,565 

Total Liabilities 922,419 964,018 256,139 237,385 32,826 27,946 

Deferred inflow of resources 20, 916 18, 894 13, 503 12,198 8, 734 7, 890 

Net investment in capital 
assets 

1,582,206 1,447,713 1,238,206 1,336,659 2,523 3,685 

Restricted 40, 589 15, 574 - - - - 

Unrestricted 512,193 785,180 1,140,619 1,214,375 330,570 352,888 

Net Position $ 2,134}988 $ 2,248,467 $ 2,37$825 ~ 2,551 034 3 3 93 356 573 

Following the District's Statements of Net Position are the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position. 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ending June 30, 
nnnn _... _~ nn~ n 
LVLU df lU LU I ~ 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

2020 2019 2020 2019 

O ratin Revenues $ 10,158 $ 106,323 $ 3,091,774 $ 2,737,355 

Operating Expenses: 
Administrative Expenses 
Fire Protection 
Street Lighting 
Business- Activities 

(1,008,591 } 
{ 1,166, 081) 

(31,476) 

(934,643} 
{ 1, 018,439) 

(38,499) 
2,636,979 2,481,853 

Net Operating Income / (Loss) (2,195,990) (1,885,258) 454,795 255,502 

Ad valorem taxes 1,081,219 1,028,371 - _ 

Other non-o ratin income 179,698 192,188 48,234 154,294 

Transfers 817,953 765,626 817,953 765,626 

Total Non-O ratin Income 2,078,870 1,986,185 769,719 611,332 

Change in Net Position $ (117.120) ~ 100927 ~ (314.924) 355 30 

7 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

In summary, the Governmental Activities went from a Net Income of $100,927 to a Net Deficit of 
$117,120 in 2020. The decrease in net position is from the $150,786 increase for fire protection 
from the second amendment to the Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Exercise of Powers 

The Business-type Activities went from a Net Loss for the prior fiscal year of $355,830 to a Net 
Loss of $314,924. The Enterprise Funds are broken out by fund in the table below. 

Statements Revenues, Expenses, and Changes ~n Net Pos~ion as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Water Fund wastewater Fund Garbage Fund 

2020 2019 2020 20 ~I 9 2020 20 ~ 9 

Operating Revenues $ 2,473,798 $ 2,243,738 $ 400,445 $ 398,818 $ 85,384 $ 94,801 

O retin Ex nditures 2,343, 388 2,179, 357 236, 745 253,340 55, 791 47,644 

Net O ratin Income / Loss 130,412 64,379 163,700 145,478 29,593 47,157 

Other non-o retin income 154,494 125,985 25,887 28,218 - 91 

Non-o retie Ex nditures 1,010 1,324 39 157 8 31 

Net Non-O retie Income 153,484 124,661 25,848 28,061 8 60 

Net Transfers 402,848 376, 970 361, 993 338, 992 53,112 49,664 

Net Income / doss 118 52 1 7 0 172 44 165 45 23 527 2447 

The slight decrease in the net deficit of $118,952 in the Water Fund reflects the revenue 
shortfalls that are resulting from continued water conservation by the community even after the 
drought ended and the capital expenditures to the water system of $215,000 for the Norswing 
waterline replacement project .The cost from the administrative allocation included in the 
CJperating Expenses increased in the 2018-19 fiscal year budget from 45°I° to 60°1° to better 
reflect the work and time spent on water services. 

The Wastewater Fund continues to incur a Net Loss because the revenues are not increased 
every year similar to the Water Fund. The cost from the administrative allocation included in the 
Operating Expenditures is a significant rest for the wastewater Fund and was reduced in the 
2018-19 fiscal year budget from 40°l© to 0%°. A change in indirect charges will increase cost 
all©cations to the water fund, which reflect a greater share of the District's overall enterprise 
activities. In addition, the wastewater fund receives approximately $90,000 from the General 
Fund loan repayment to help cover the cost of the deficit. 

The Garbage Fund's Net Deficit increased from the prior year because in 2020 the Board 
adopted a resolution to reduce the franchise fee payment from SCSS from 10°10 to 5°/© to 
reduce the costs to customers. The District continues to move forward on the Solid Waste 
Programs adopted by the Board on February 8, 2017. These programs include policies to 
address illegal dumping, unsanitary conditions, and related solid waste problems in the District. 

~~ 

Attachment - June 30, 2020 AuditPage 23 of 177



Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

Capital Assets 

The District owns the community fire station, administrative offices, Sheriffs substation, the 
Oceano Depot, the Oceano Community Center, the former fire station and some undeveloped 
land. The community fire station is provided to FCFA for their use for $15,000 per year. The 
Sheriff substation is leased to the County of San Luis Obispo for $113,400 per year. The 
Oceano Depot and Community Center are leased to anon-governmental agency and the Lucia 
Mar Unified School District at $1 per year each based on the multi-party agreements developed 
for those properties in conjunction with grants that funded the development of the community 
center and the preservation of the historic Oceano train depot. 

The water and wastewater infrastructure of the District ranges drastically in age. Many of the 
water and wastewater system pipelines were originally constructed in the 1950's. The District 
completed water and wastewater system master plans in 2009 but revenue shortfalls have 
deferred infrastructure replacement projects. The District is completed an updated water 
system capital improvement program for infrastructure replacement, which was substantially 
funded with grants approved by the State of California. 

Debt Activities 

The District has no issued debt. 

Internal debt, or borrowing between District funds, is more significant. Footnote #3 to the 
Financial Statements illustrates interfund liabilities. During the year ending June 30, 2020, the 
District recorded the following interfund transfers to adhere to resolutions adopted April 26, 2017 
to enS~~ arP rPp~yt~Pnt of interfi,nr~l Iiah,~ilitiAc 

v• •~ v ~• ~t ~ ~~/ IAA 1 11 IVV. 

Interfund (Due to) / Beginning Interfund Interfund Ending 
Due From Balances — Increase Decrease Balances — 

Jul 1, 2019 June 30, 2020 
General Fund Due to 

384 575 $ ( ) $ 90 865 $ - 0 - 293 710 $ ( ) Sewer Fund 
General Fund Due from 

428 724 - 0 - 30 641 398 083 
Water Fund ' 
Net General Fund Due to 

44 149 90 865 30 641 104 373 
Other Funds ' ' 

Water Fund Due to the 
428 724 
( } 

30 641 $ - 0 - 398 083 
( } General Fund 

Water Fund Due to 
38 086 

( } 
7 423 - 0 - 30 663  

( } Garba  e Fund 
Sewer Fund Due from 

384 575 - 0 - 90 865 293 710 
Genera! Fund ' 
Garbage Fund Due from 

38 086 - 0 - 7 423 30 663 
Water Fund ' 

Totals $ - 0 - $ 128, 930 $ 128, 930 $ - 0 - 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

Budget and Rates 

The District's budget for the year ending June 30, 2020 reflects the water system rate increase 
that was approved by the Board of Directors on April 20, 2015, as adjusted based on increases 
in the consumer price index and wholesale water costs. The annual increases are prescribed in 
Ordinance 2015-01, and in accccirdance with California Government code section 53756. The 
following illustrates the Water Fund change in net position before and after the April 2015 rate 
increase: 

Fiscal Year Sur lus/ Deficit 
2014/15 ~ 182,210 
2015116 93,228 
2010/17 180,858 
2017/18 22, 518 
2018/19 187, 930 
2019/20 118, 952 

This year the deficit in net position is due to the revenue shortfalls that are resulting from 
continued water conservation by the community post drought. With the approval of the 2020 
rate increase the District will establish f scat stability and funds for capital improvement projects 
and minimum reserves. The increase begins November 2020 and will be phased in over three 
years. The District has secured approximately $275,000 in grants from state agencies for the 
water system and related needs. 

No rate changes affected the wastewater fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The 
following shows the running deficit of the Sewer Fund: 

Fiscal Year Sur  tus!  Deficit 
2014/15 $ 10,927 
2015/10 54,103 
2016117 1 tom, 305 
2017118 153,944 
2018110 165,453 
2010120 172,445 

The decreasing financial status of the wastewater fund resulted because rental revenues from 
the Sheriff substation are now dedicated to repaying the General Fund's interfund loan due to 
the wastewater fund. The future annual transfers from the General Fund to the wastewater 
fund are shown on the following page: 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

Year Ending 
Beginning 
Balance 

Interest 
Pa  ment  

Principal 
Pa  ment  

Total 
Pa  ment  

Ending 
Balance 

June 30, 2020 384, 575 23, 075 90, 865 113, 940 293, 710 

June 30, 2021 293, 710 17, 623 96, 317 113, 940 197, 393 

June 30, 2022 197, 392 11,844 102, 096 113, 940 95, 296 

June 30, 2023 $ 95,296 $ -0- $ 95,296 95,296 $ -0- 

The operating shortfall for the sewer fund needs to be addressed in the future. The last three 
budgets included modifications to the District's indirect charges to the sewer fund that reduced 
those costs while increasing indirect cost allocations to the water fund, which reflect a greater 
share of the District's overall enterprise activities. In addition, addressing deferred infrastructure 
needs of the sewer fund will also become a higher priority, which may also require sewer fund 
rate increases in the near future. 

An increase of 10.06% in garbage rates for the SCSS Inc. were approved on June 26, 2019, 
and inflationary adjustment of 1.7%went into effect on January 1, 2020 and January 1, 2021. 
On January 22, 2020 the Board approved a decrease to the franchise fee from 10% to 5% to 
reduce customers garbage bills. 

Pruture autïook  

Overall, the District's financial outlook has maintained a relatively stable short-term position 
during the year ending June 30, 2020. The primary enterprise fund challenges relate to 
deferred infrastructure repairs and replacement of the water and wastewater funds and long-
term costs. Currently, the District is evaluating deferred infrastructure needs and is utilizing 
grants obtained from the State of California for much of this effort. Identifying costs and rate 
impacts to fund the deferred infrastructure were completed in 2020. The future of the fire 
department's operation wilt also be a significant District effort in the future. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 

Restricted cash and investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Prepaid items 

Deposits 

Inventory 

Internal balances 

Capital assets: 

Non Depreciable: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Depreciable: 

Buildings and improvements 

Equipment, vehicles and machinery 

Software 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Total deferred outflow of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages and benefits 

Deposits 
Unearned revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 
Total deferred inflow of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 
Capital facilities 

Water joint venture agreement 

Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ 365,165 $ 2,151, 715 $ 2, 516, 880 
262,470 262,470 

14,488 471,292 485,780 
34,618 93,109 127,727 

16,237 16,237 
25,854 25,854 

104,373 (104,373) 

610,390 6,000 616,390 
234,382 234,382 

2,088,370 7,310,827 9,399,197 
435,679 877,554 1,313,233 

195,918 195,918 
(1,321,406) (5,801,746) (7,123,152) 
2,594,147 5,476,769 8,070,916 

19,113 195, 928 215, 041 
19,113 195,928 215,041 

28,451 44,062 72,513 
14,730 4,205 18,935 
3,000 97,052 100,052 
9,495 1,050 10,545 

20,033 20,033 
183,405 636,269 819,674 
259,114 782,638 1,041,752 

9,168 43,153 52,321 
9,168 43,153 52,321 

1,813,033 2,822,935 4,635,968 

266,210 266,210 
40,589 40,589 

265,735 1,983,382 2,249,117 
$ 2,344,978 $ 4,846,906 $ 7,191,884 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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t)► CEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
STATEII~ENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3Q, 2i`}2C~ 

Program Revenues 
©perating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

Governmental activities: 

Administration $ 1,008,591 $ - $ - $ 10,158 
Fire protection 1,166,081 
Street lighting 31,476 

Total governmental activities 2,206,148 10,158 

Easiness-type activities: 

Water 2,344,396 2,360,265 245,680 
Sewer 236,784 389,850 10,595 
Garbage 55,799 85,384 

Total business-type activities 2,636,979 2,750,115 341,659 

Total governmental $ 4,843,127 $ 2,750,115 $ 341,659 $ 10,158 

General Revenues and Transfers: 
Taxes: 

Property 
Use of money and propert}r 
Other general revenues 
Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year 

Prior-period adjustments 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year, restated 

Net position -end of fiscal year 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Piet Expenses} Revenue and ~I~anges in Net Pasitic~n ____~ 

0~tvernmenta # Business-type 
Activities - Activities Totat 

~ (998,438} ~ - {998,433) 

(1,166,081) {1,188,081} 

{31,478} {31,476} 

{2,195, 990) {2,195, 990 

281, 549 261, 549 

163,881 163,661 

29, 585 29, 585 

454, 795 454, 795 

(2,195, 990) 454, 795 { 1, 741,195) 

1,081,219 1,0181,219 

175, 078 23, 888 198, 968 

4, 620 24, 346 28, 986 

817,953 (817,953] 

2,078,870 (769,719) 1,309,151 

~1 ~! 7,120 (314,924) ~432,044~ 

2,462,098 5,156,074 7,618,172 

5, 756 5, 7501 

2,462,098 5,161,8301 7,623,928 

$ 2, 344, 978 4, 846, 908 ~ 7,191, 884 
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CJCEANQ CQMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
GC~1lERNNiENTAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
June 30, 2020 

General 

Fund 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments 

Restricted cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid items 

Advances receivable  

Tota!  assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll and benefits 

Deposits 

Unearned revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance: 

Nonspendable: 

Prepaid items 

Restricted: 

Capital facilities 

Assigned: 

Infrastructure replacement 

Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 365,165 

262,470 

14,488 

34,618 

398,083 

$ 1,074,824 

$ 28,451 

14,730 

3, 000 

9,495 

293,710 

349,380 

34,618 

266,210 

213,266 

211, 344 

725,438 

$ 1,074,824 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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t~~EANt~ ~C?~tUllli~tTl( ~ERV'I~ES ú1~TRI~T 
RECC~NCILIATIC}N QF THE G~}VEi~~JNIE~ITAL FUNC~ - E~ALANCE ~`HEET 
TC) THE ~TATE~IIE~T t~F ~JET P~~ITIC~~ 
June 30, 2020 

Total fund balance -governmental fund 725,438 

In the governmental fund, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, 
all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation. 

Capital assets at historical cast ~ 3, ~ 34,439 

Accumulated depreciation ~ 1,321,408} 

I~et 1,813,033 

Lang-term liabilities: In the governmental fund, only current liabilities are reported. In the 
statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. 
Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

Compensated absences payable 80,133 
let pension liability 123,3051  

Tota  I 

1n the governmental fund, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions 
are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement 
of not position, deferred outflows of X19,113 and inflows of resources of ~{9,188} 
relating to pensions are reported. 

Total net position -governmental activities 

(2p3,438} 

! M ~ 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Total net change in fund balance -governmental fund $ (168,940) 

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental fund as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 

lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital 

outlay of $133,227 are more than depreciation expense $(61,103) in the period. 72,124 

In the statement of activities. compensated absences are measured by the amounts 

earned during the fiscal year. In the governmental fund, however, expenditures for 

these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially 

the amounts paid). This fiscal year, vacation earned exceeded the amounts used 
by $8,617. (8,617) 

In the governmental fund, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. 

In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This 

year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 
contributions was: (11,687) 

Changes in net position -governmental activities $ (117,120) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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OCEANO COI~IINtUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
F~ROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT CAF NET POSiT1~N 
June 30, 202íJ 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Prepaid expenses 

Inventory 

Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

Joint venture deposits 

Non depreciable capital assets: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements 

Equipment, vehicles and machinery 

Software 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Customer deposits 

Unearned revenue 

Due to other funds 

Advances payable-current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Advances payable -non-current portion 

Net pension liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

20 

Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 849,238 $ 979,707 $ 322,770 $ 2,151,715 

407,792 56,106 7,394 471,292 

92,884 225 93,109 

23,375 2,479 25,854 

293,710 30,663 324,373 

1, 373, 289 1, 332, 002 361, 052 3, 066, 343 

16,237 16,237 

6,000 6,000 

159,013 75,369 234,382 

4,640,649 2,670,178 7,310,827 

561,916 294,662 20,976 877,554 

156,734 39,184 195,918 

(3,942,106) (1,841,187} (18,453) (5,801,746) 

1,598,443 1,238,206 2,523 2,839,172 

2,971,732 2,570,208 363,575 5,905,515 

106,591 78,259 11,078 195,928 

106,591 78,259 11,078 195,928 

38,696 1,975 3,391 44,062 

3,196 840 169 4,205 

97,052 97,052 

1,050 1,050 

193,145 3, 865 

374,545 374,545 

354,729 252,274 29,266 636,269 

729,274 252,274 29,266 1,010,814 

922,419 256,139 32,826 1,211,384 

20,916 13,503 8,734 43,153 

20,916 13,503 8,734 43,153 

1,582,206 1,238,206 2,523 2,822,935 

40, 589 40, 589 

512,193 1,140,619 330,570 1,983,382 

$ 2,134,988 $ 2,378,825 $ 333,093 $ 4,846,906 
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C)CEANO ~CC~IU~t1~U~i1TY ERVtES tJITRI~T 
PRtJPRiETARY FUNL?S 
STATEiENT CAF REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANC ~H,~NGES IN NET P~SITIC)N 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended .tune 3{~, 2~2(~ 

Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 2,360,285 ~ 3$9,850 $ - $ 2,I5ú,115 

113, 833 10, 595 85, 3%34 209, 51 ~ 

2,473,798 4úú,445 88,384 2,959,627 

173,398 5l ,063 13,968 238,429 

131,079 60,796 18,648 210,523 

158,287 8,3Iú 1,600 166,257 

121,589 8,159 3,819 133,547 

8, 593 3, 580 12,173 

2, 387 181 9, 98ú 12, 528 

12,498 12,498 

24,143 24,143 

871 79 261 911 

7, 898 1, 388 9, 286 

12,854 1,365 5,936 19,958 

1,563,957 1,563,957 

4,697 1,223 5,920 

123,675 1ÚO,541 1,879 225,795 

2,343,386 236,745 55,791 2,635,922 

I3ú,412 163,700 29,593 323,705 

132,147 132,147 

813 23,075 23,888 

{1,010} {39~ {8} (l,ú57} 

21, 534 2, 812 24, 346 

153,484 25,848 {8) 179,324 

283,896 189,548 29,885 503,029 

1,634 819 2,453 

(404,482) (381,993} (53,931 } (820,408} 

{402,848) (361,993} (53,112) (817,953) 

(118,952) {172,445) (23,527} {314,924) 

2,248,467 2,551,034 356,573 5,156,074 

5,473 236 4I 5,756 

2,253,940 2,551,2Iú 356,62fl 5,161,830 

~ 2,134,988 $ 2,378,825 $ 333,093 $ 4,848,908 

Operating Revenues: 

Charges for services 

other fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and wades 

Payroll fiaxes and employee benefits 
repairs and maintenance 

Legal and professional 

Dues and fees 

Education 
Water meters 

Wheeled water expense 

Office expense 

Supplies 

Utilities 
Water supply expense 

Bad debt 
depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Qperating income (loss) 

Nc~n-Operating Revenues (Expenses): 

Grant income 

Interest income 
Interest expense 

tither non-operating revenue 

Total non-operating revenues {expenses} 

Income before transfers 

Transrers: 

Transfers in 

Transfers (out} 

Total transfers 

Change in net position 

l~let position -July 1 

Prior period adjustments 

Net position -July 1, restated 

Net position -June 30 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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fJCEANC~ COMMI~NITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FlJl~1DS 
STATEME~JT OF CASH FI~O~lVS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Principal paid on capital debt 

Interest paid on capital debt 

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 

Grants received 

Transfers from (to) other funds 

Interfund interest paid 

Other revenue 

Net cash (used) by noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 

Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1 

Cash and cash equivalents -June 30 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 

Cash and investments 

1/1later Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 2,420,990 $ 398,853 $ 92,019 $ 2,911,862 

(1,891,471) {22,427} (19,061) (1,932,959) 

(272,683) (89,408) (29,527) (391,618) 

256,836 287,018 43,431 587,285 

(253,996) (253,996) 

{3,717) (1,858) {371) (5,946) 

{58} (33) (7} (98) 

{257,771) (1,891) (378) {260,040} 

132,147 132,147 

(440,914) (271,128) (45,688) (757,730) 

(934) (934) 

21,534 2,812 24,346 

(288,167) (268, 316) (45,688) (602,171) 

813 23,075 23,888 

813 23,075 23,888 

(288,289) 39,886 (2,635} (251,038) 

1,137,527 939,821 325,405 2,402,753 

$ 849,238 $ 979,707 $ 322,770 $ 2,151,715 

$ 849,238 $ 979,707 $ 322,770 $ 2,151,715 

(Continued) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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C~CE~IVCt CtJi~I~JIU1~11TY SERVICES CISTRICT 
PRC)PRIETARY FUNS 
STATE11~Efi~T CAF CASH FLt~VVS {Continued} 
For the Fiscal dear Ended June 3Ci, 202 

Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

Rect~nciliatian ©f aperating income to 
net cash prflvided by operating 
activitïes. 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided {used) by operating activities 

Qepreciation expense 

Change in assets, liabilities, de€erred inflows of resources, 
and deferred outflows of resources: 

Receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 

Inventories 

Joint venture deposits 

C}eferred outflows 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Customer deposits 

Unearned revenues 

Net pension liability 

Qeferred inflows 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

~ 134,412 $ 163,744 $ 29,593 $ 323,745 

123, 675 144, 541 1, 579 225, 795 

{4,539) 2,781 6,635 4,877 

5,145 236 {178} 5,243 

{1,599} 7 {1,592) 

{663) {663} 

{3,258} {2,392) {339) {5,989} 

16,183 452 2,713 19, 348 

285 251 {117} 41 g 

{43,572} {4,244) {47,772} 

1,454 1,450 

32,745 23,287 2,?41 58,733 

2,422 1, 345 844 4,171 

$ 256,836 $ 287,418 ~ 43,431 ~ 587,285 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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NOT~GTDTH~BA~(C}RNAN~~k~L8TAT~P~~NT8 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DiSTRlCT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting Continued) 

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund's principal revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District. These statements 
include the financial activities of the overall District government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
counting of internal activities. Government activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other non-exchange transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment 
of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by 
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational needs of a particular program, and (c) fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the 
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major 
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental 
and proprietary categories. All District funds are considered major funds. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are accounted for 
using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting_ . fHccordingiy, all assets and 
liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while 
expenses are recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund -This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The fund provides for public administration and 
overall management as it pertains to the District as a whole as well as the District's street lighting services. It also 
accounts for the District's fire protection services as agreed upon with the Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Powers 
Authority. 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. 
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income 
measurement similar to the private sector. 

Water Fund -This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the District's water distribution, treatment, and 
monitoring systems. 

Sewer Fund -This fund is used to account for all activities of operating sewer services and maintaining the sewer lines. 

Garbage Fund -This fund is used to account for the garbage franchise services. 
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OCEANS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NCJTES T© THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 3~, 2020 

NOTE 1— SUMMARY OF SICNtFICANT ACCC~UNTING PC}~ICIES {C©ntinuedj 

D. Propert Ty axes 

San Luis abispo County levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments for the District. Property 
taxes levied are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of levy, due to the adoption of the "alternate method of property 
tax distribution," known as the Teeter Plan, by the District and the County. The Teeter Plan authorizes the 
Auditor/Controller of the County to allocate 100% of the secured property taxes billed, excluding unitary tax (whether 
paid or unpaid). The County remits tax monies to the District every month and twice a month in December and April. 
The final amount which is "teetered" is remitted in August each year. 

Tax collections are the responsibility of the County Tax Collector. Taxes and assessments on secured and utility rolls, 
which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid in two installments; the first is due November 1 of the fiscal 
year and is delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against real property 
unless the tax becomes delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by 
August 31 of the fiscal year. Signif cant penalties are imposed by the County for late payment. 

Property valuations are established by the Assessor of the County for the secured and unsecured property tax rolls, 
Under the provisions of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution, properties are assessed at 100% of purchase price or 
value in 1978 whichever is later. From this base assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited to a 
maximum of 2 percent. However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon change in 
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

Tax levy dates are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal 
year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal 
property, as it exists at that time. Liens against rani estate, ss well as the tax on personal properly, are not relieved by 
subsequent renewal or change in ownership. 

E. Cash and Investments 

The District pools the cash of all funds, except for monies deposited with fiscal agent in accordance with related bond 
indentures. The cash and investments balance in each fund represents that fund's equity share of the District's cash 
and investment pool. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District has defined cash and cash equivalents 
to be change and petty cash funds, equity in the District's cash and investment pool, and restricted non-pooled 
investments with initial maturities of three months of less. 

In accordance wíth GASB Statement No. 31, Ace©unting►  and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and f©r 
External /nvestment P©ols, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at time o~F purchase are 
stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for those 
securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

The District maintains its cash balance in financial institutions in the United States. The balances at the institutions are 
generally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) up to X250,000. As of June 30, 2020, the 
District held cash in financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. 

F. Accounts and Interest Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. 
Receivables are recorded in the financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable, and 
estimated refunds due. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities may include sales taxes, property 
taxes, grants, and other fees, if any. Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivables. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds may include revenue accruals such as 
franchise tax, grants, service charges and other similar intergovernmental revenues that are both measurable and 
available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in 
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements 
in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and if paid within 60 
days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all 
revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and interest earnings comprise the 
majority of proprietary fund receivables. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Prepaid Expenses and Inventory 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditure/expense in the funds at the time individual inventory items are purchased rather than when consumed. 
This is then adjusted by physical inventory at fiscal year-end. Inventory in the enterprise funds consist principally of 
materials and supplies for utility operations. 

Payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

H. Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment depends on whether the assets are used in 
governments! fund operations or proprietary fund operations. The presentation and recording of governmental assets 
are described below. 

Govemment-Wide Statements 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets with a historical cost of $5,000 or more are accounted for as 
capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except 
for donated capital assets, if any, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated 
historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets. 

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the District has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) 
capital assets on the government-wide statements. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statzm2nt of net position. Depreciation is provided aver the assets' estimated 
useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as 
follows: 

Water system 5-75 years 
Sanitation system 10-50 years 
Drainage 5-50 years 
Administration 5-40 years 

Fund Financial Statements 

ire the fund ririàr~ciai statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are 
capitalized when purchased. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences comprise unused vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory time off, which are accrued as 
earned. Vacation hours, which accrue from the first day of employment, can be taken immediately and are capped at 
320 hours. Upon termination, all accumulated vacation hours up to 320 hours are paid out. Sick leave, which accrue 
from the first day of employment can be taken immediately and can be accrued up to 180 days or 1,440 hours. Upon 
termination, all accumulated vacation hours up to 180 days are paid out. Payments will be based on the pay rate at the 
time of termination. The District's liability for the current and long-term portions of compensated absences is shown in 
the government-wide Statement of Net Position for both governmental funds and proprietary funds. Only proprietary 
funds reflect the (ong-term portion in the fund financials report, Statement of Net Position. The short-term portion is 
reflected for both governmental and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements. Computation was based on 
rates in effect as of the fiscal year-end. 

Lonq-Term Liabilities 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term liabilities are presented for both governmental and proprietary 
fund types. In the fund financial statements, only the proprietary funds show long-term liabilities. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NC)TES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 --SUMMARY OF SiCNiFiCANT ACCC)llNTiNG POLiCiES {C©ntinued) 

PPnS)nnC  

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Oceano Community Services District California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) Miscellaneous, Miscellaneous PEPRA, and Safety Fire Plans and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions] are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 
defined timeframes. For this report the following timeframes are used: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 201$ 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2019 
Measurement Period: July 1, 201$ through June 30, 2019 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category, refer to 
Note 7 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the District has recognized. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred i~~flows of 
resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable to 
a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category; refer to Note 7 for a 
detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the District has recognized. 

lnterfund Transactions 

lnterfund transactions are reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services 
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related 
cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 

Equity Classifications 

Government-Wide Statements 

GASB Statement  Na.  0 requires that the difference between assets and the deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of the net position that has 
external constraints placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not 
meet the definition of net investments in capital assets or restricted net position. 

Governmental Fund Statements 

Fund balance is the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in the governmental funds. In compliance 
with GASB Statement No. 54, the District has established the following fund balance classifications: 

Non-spendable —The non-spendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form or {b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted —The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that reflect constraints placed on the use of 
resources (ether than non-spendable items} that are either (a} externally impaled by creditors {such as through debt 
covenants}, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b} imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

~. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Equity Classifications (continued 

Committed —The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Directors. Those committed amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
(legislation, resolution, ordinance, etc.} it employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balance 
should also incorporate contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned —The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the government's intent 
to be used for specific purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent is to be established by (a) 
the Board of Directors itself or (b) the General Manager to which the Board of Directors has delegated the authority to 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 

Unassigned —The unassigned fund balance classification includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above four 
categories. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes within the General Fund. 

When an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, it is District's 
policy that the restricted fund balance be spent first followed by committed, then assigned, and, if applicable, 
unassigned. 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 

Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary Activities" 

Statement No. 87 "Leases" 

Statement No. 89 "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 

before the End of a Construction Period" 

Statement No. 90 "Majority Equity Interests-an Amendment 
of GASB StatelÍÍeÍltJ VV. 1~ aÍlld VV. V 1"  

Statement No. 91 "Conduit Debt Obligations" 

Statement No. 92 "Omnibus 2020" 

Statement No. 93 "Replacement of Interbank Offered 
Rates" 

Statement No. 94 "Public-Private and Public-Public 

Partnerships and Availability 

Payment Arrangements" 

Statement No. 96 "Subscription-Based Information 

Technology Arrangements" 

Statement No. 97 "Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 

Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 

Deferred Compensation Plans - an 

amendment of GASB Statements 

No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession 

of GASB Statement No. 32" 

29 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

IVI Ilsl..dl year J UCt̀j. ~1 II Itny a1lCl VCI.CI I IUCI I ~, LU l y. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after Dece~~ber 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provision of this statement except for paragraphs 

11 b, 13, and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning 

after June 15, 2020. Paragraph 11 b is effective for fiscal 

years beginning after December 31, 2021. Paragraphs 

13 and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning December 15, 2019. 
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4CEAN0 CQMiMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES T4 THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2Ú2o 

NC?TE ~ — SUiMMARY ~}F SIGNIFICANT ACC~UNTIN~ PtJLIC1ES {Continued~ 

P. Use of Estimates 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America and necessarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by Management. Actual 
results could differ from these amounts. 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND  INVESTIMENTS  

The composition of cash and investments as of June 30, 2020, is as follows: 

Cash in bank and on hand $ 525,777 
Investments 2,253,573 

Total cash and investments, Statement of Net Position $ 2, 779, 350 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The District's investment in the San Luis Obispo County Investment Pool of $1,937,663 is 
measured under level 2. The District had investments in the money market funds and bank time deposits that are measured at 
amortized cost are not required to be measured under Level 1, 2 or 3. 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types the District has that are authorized for the District by the California Government 
Code or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive, that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions 
of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's 
investment policy. 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage Investment 
Maturity Of Portfolio in One Issuer 

5 years None None 
5 years None None 
5 years None None 
5 years None None 
180 days 40°f° None 
270 days 25% 10% 
5 years 30% None 
5 years 30% None 
5 years 30% None 

92 days 20°r'© of base value None 
5 years 30°l° None 
NIA 20% 10% 
N!A None None 
NlA 20% None 
N/A None None 

N/A None None 

5 years None None 
5 years None None 

Authorized 
Investment Type 

Local Agency Bonds 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 
State Obligations — CA and Others 
U.S. Agency Securities 
Bankers' Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Placement Services Deposits 
Repurchase and Reserve 

Repurchase Agreements 
Medium-Term Notes 
Mutual Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 
County Pooled Investment Fund 
State Registered Warrants, Notes or 

Bonds 
Notes and Bonds for other Local 

California Agencies 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment is, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of 
the ways that the District's interest rate risk is mitigated is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so #hat a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

30 
Attachment - June 30, 2020 AuditPage 45 of 177



OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Disclosure RelatinçLto Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to 
market rate fluctuations is provided by the tab{e on the following page that shows the distribution of the District's investments by 
maturity as of June 30, 2020. 

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
Carrying 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than 

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months 11/lonths 60 Months 
Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit $ 24,352 $ - $ 24,352 $ - $ - 
Money market 291,558 291,558 
San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 1,937,663 1,937,663 
$ 2,253,573 $ 2,229,221 $ 24,352 $ - $ - 

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations 

The District has no investments (including investments held by bond trustees) that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations. 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of a rating by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual 
rating as of the fiscal year ended June 30;  2020 for each investment type. 

Investment Tvge 
Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit 
Money m arket 
San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Minimum Exempt 
Carrying Legal From Rating as of Fiscal Year End 
Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated 

$ 24, 352 N/A $ - $ - $ - $ 24, 352 
291, 558 N/A 291, 558 

1, 937, 663 1, 937, 663 
2 ~~~ ~~~ Q s - - -~ ,--...•,•,. •, $ w ~ ~ 2,253,573 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code. The District minimizes its credit risk by investing only in the safest types of 
securities or investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 
not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The California Government Code and the District investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the government 
unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the 
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage 
notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. Deposits are insured up to $250,000. 

The investment in the San Luis Obispo County Investment Pool is not required to be collateralized. The fair value of securities in 
the pool is based on quoted market prices. The San Luis Obispo County Treasurer's Office performs a monthly fair market 
valuation of all securities held against carrying costs. Reports of valuations and financial statements are available to participants 
on the San Luis Obispo County Treasurer's website. 
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OCEANC} Ct~MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NC7TES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 0, 2020 

NOTE 3 — INTERFUI~ID TRANSACTIGNS 

Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows: 

Interfund Transfers: 

General $ 817,953 $ - 

Proprietary Funds: 

Water 1,634 404,482 

Sewer 361,993 

Garbage 819 53,931 

Borrowing between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

Advances and Due To/Due From: 

General $ 398,083 ~ 293,710 

Proprietary Funds: 

Water 428,746 

Sewer 293,710 

Garbage 30,663 

N®TE 4 — CAIPiTAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2019 Additions 
Balance at 

Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings and improvements 

Vehicles and equipment 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Net capital assets 

- $ - $ 610,390 

$ 2,088,370 $ - ~ - ~ 2,088,370 

.p I,! JV,J 1~ .p / L, 1 L`t .~3 - ~p I ,LVL,V`i^J 

$ 1,740,909 $ 72,124 $ - $ 1,813,033 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 4 -CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Business-type activities: 

Balance at Retirements/ Balance at 
July 1, 2019 Additions Transfers June 30, 2020 

$ 6, 000 $ - $ - $ 6, 000 
215,210 19,172 234,382 

$ 221,210 $ 19,172 $ - $ 240,382 

$ 7,095,321 $ 218,318 $ (2,812} $ 7,310,827 
195,918 195,918 
861,048 16,506 877,554 

8,152,287 234,824 (2,812} 8,384,299 

5, 578, 763 225, 795 (2, 812} 5, 801, 746 

$ 2,573,524 $ 9,029 $ - $ 2,582,553 

$ 2,794,734 $ 28,201 $ - $ 2,822,935 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Software 
Vehicles and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Net capital assets 

NOTE 5 -LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in the District's long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020: 

Balance at Prior Period Balance at Current Long Term 
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions Adjustment June 30, 2020 Portion Portion 

Governmental Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 71,516 $ 43,417 $ 34,800 $ - $ 80,133 $ 20,033 $ 60,100 
Net Pension Liability 111,923 27,813 16,431 123,305 123,305 

Total Governmental Activities $ 183,439 $ 71,230 $ 51,231 $ - $ 203,438 $ 20,033 $ 183,405 

Business-Type Activities: 

Capital Lease Payable $ 6,677 $ - $ 5,946 $ (731) $ - $ - $ _ 
Net Pension Liability 577,536 143,519 84,786 636,269 636,269  

i  vial Bush ie5s-  i  ype rlcuvi~ie5 ~ ~~4,~ ~ .~ ~ ~ 43g-í y ~ 9ü, 73[ $ (7:51) $ 636,26y - $ 636,269 

NOTE 6 -- CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE 

In November 2014, the District acquired a vehicle under a capital lease obligation. The capital lease obligation has been 
recorded in the accompanying financial statements at the present value of future minimum lease payments. The cost of the 
asset acquired under the lease totaled $55,626 at a 4.423% interest to repaid in 60 monthly payments of $756. As of June 30, 
2020, the outstanding principal payable was $0 as the lease was paid off during this fiscal year. 

NOTE 7 -PENSION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's separate Safety and Miscellaneous 
Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CaIPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statue and District resolution. 
CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CaIPERS website. 
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t~CEANt~ CCJMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
N©TES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 202 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS {Continued) 

A. Genera! Information about the Pension Plans {Continued) 

Benefits Provided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years ofi credited service, equal to one year 
of full-time employment. Classic Plan members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 and new 
members/PEPRA Plan members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52, with statutorily reduced benefits. 
All members are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cast of living adjustments for 
each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Contribution rates are based on the Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2017. The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect 
at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

Classic Member New Member Classic Member 
Hired Prior to Hired On or after Hired Prior to 

Hire Date January 1, 2013* January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013* 
Benefit formula 2.0% ~ 55 2°J©@ 62 2°I° a~3 50 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 
Benefit payments monthly far life monthly for life monthly for life 
Retirement age 50-63 52-07 50-55 
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.46°I° to 2.418°/© 1.0% to 2.5% 2.0-2.7% 
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.50% N/A 
Required employer contribution rates 9.080% + $38,809 0.985°~° + $919 $ 7,331 

*Anew employee may transfer into the Classic Member formula if he/she comes from another agency 
participating in the CaIPERS or reciprocal retirement system and did not have more than a six month break 
in service. 

Contvfbutions  

Section 20814(c) ofi the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in 
the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The 
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benef+ts earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the 
District were $7,079 for the Safety Plan and $94,138 for the Miscellaneous Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

8. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net position liability of each Plan 
as follows: 

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension Liabilit 
Miscellaneous $ 654,064 
Safety 95,510 
Total $ 759,574 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS (Continued] 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
(Continued) 

The net pensíon liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update 
procedures. The District's proportíon of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pensíon Plan participants, actuarially determined. 
At June 30, 2019, the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 
2019 was as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 
Proportion-June 30, 2018 0.01589% 0.00155% 
Proportion-June 30, 2019 0.01658% 0.00153°l0 

Change-Increase (Decrease) 0.00069% -0.00002% 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $169,819. Pension expense represents 
the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred 
recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gainfloss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. 

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
retirement plan investments 
Adjustment due to differences in proportion 
Changes in proportion and differences between District 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

52,358 $ 3,574 
35, 581 11, 989 

12, 924 
25,885 1,497 

22,337 
101,217 

$ 215,041 $ 52;321 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net 
pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

$101,217 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in the pension expenses as follows: 

Fiscal year ending June 30 Amount 
2021 $ 56,063 
2022 (4,673) 
2023 7,511 
2024 2,602 

$ 61,503 
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4CEANa COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NCJTES TD THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

N{~TE 7 -- PENSlC`~N PLANS {Continued 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
{Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 201$ actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Measurement Date 
Acturial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 
Inflation 
Projected Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return (1) 
Mortality 

Post Retirement Benefit Increase 

Miscellaneous and Safety 
June 30, 2018 
June 30, 2019 

Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 

7.15°l0 
2.50°I° 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 
7.00°l0 

Derived using CaiPERS' Membership 
Data for all Funds (1) 

Contract COLA up to 2.50% until 
Purchasing Power Protection Allowance 

Floor on Purchasing Power applies; 
2.50% thereafter 

(1 } The mortality table used was deaeloped based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table includes 
15 years of mortality impro4ements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90°f° of Sale MP 2016. 
For more details on this table please refer to the December 2017 experience study report. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate 
should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF C), CaIPERS stress tested plans 
that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on 
testing the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is 
appropriate and the use of municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 
7.15 percent is applied to ail plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are 
presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be obtained at CalPERS' website under the 
GASB No. 68 section. 

CaIPERS is scheduled to review ail actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM} review cycle 
that is scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper 
stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CaIPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for 
GASB No. 67 and No. 68 calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of 
the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected 
compound returns were calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11-60 years) using abuilding-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns far both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated 
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of 
return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of 
one percent. 

The table on the following page reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 
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JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLANS (Continued} 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflowsl(nflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
(Continued} 

New 
Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10(a) Years 11+(b) 

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98% 
Global Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62% 
Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81 
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23% 
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92% 

Total 100.0% 

(a) An expected inflation of 2.00% was used for this period. 
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% was used for this period. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 
percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate -1 % Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1 
6.15% 7.15% 8.15% 

Net Pension Liability -Miscellaneous $ 1,045,770 $ 664, 064 $ 348,991 
Net Pension Liability -Safety 144,664 95,510 55,213 
Net Pension Liability -Total $ 1,190,434 $ 759,574 $ 404,204 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately-issued CaIPERS financial reports 

~.. rayapie to me Tension Tian 

At June 30, 2020, the District had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

NOTE 8 —JOINT VENTURES 

State Water Project 

In 1991, the District approved participation in the State Water Project (SWP). As a result, the District entered into two contracts 
with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (SLOFCD). One agreement is entitled "Water 
Supply Agreement" and the other is entitled "Water Treatment and Local Facilities Agreement." 

The Water Supply Agreement is for the SWP source of supply, which is an allocation of 750 acre feet per year. The Water 
Supply Agreement incorporates by reference the SLOFCD agreement with the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR), which is termed the "Master Water Supply Agreement." The District is obligated to pay its proportionate share of the cost 
of the SWP facilities owned by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) that is used to convey the District's source 
of supply to the "Lopez Turnout," plus a proportionate share of the SLOFCD costs. The Lopez Turnout connects the SWP 
facilities to Lopez facilities enabling State Water deliveries to the District. The District's prorated share of operating, maintenance, 
pumping, and other related costs are charged as an operating expense in the Water Fund. The portion of the costs that is fixed 
in nature must be paid regardless of water deliveries. Variable costs are paid based on actual water deliveries. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 9 —RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCIES 

Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the California Association of Mutual Water 
Companies Joint Powers Risk and Insurance Management Authority (JPRIMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for small California water agencies. The purpose of the JPRIMA is to 
arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase the appropriate amount of insurance coverage. At June 
30, 2020, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the JPRIMA as follows: 

• General and auto liability: The District has a $500 deductible for general and auto liability. The District purchased 
additional excess coverage layers: $5 million for general, auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on 
the insurance coverage noted above. 

• Employee dishonesty coverage and public officials' liability up to $1,000,000 per loss includes public employee 
dishonesty, forgery or alteration and theft, computer fraud coverages. 

• Property loss/Boiler and Machinery is paid based on the replacement cost or actual cash value for the property on file. If 
the property is replaced within two years after the loss or otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined 
total of $4 million subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence for most equipment. 

• Workers' compensation insurance provides coverage with aself-insured retention limit of $1 million for all work related 
injuries/illnesses covered by California law. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there were no reductions 
in the District's insurance coverage during the years ending June 30, 2020, 2018 and 2018. Liabilities are recorded when it is 
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance 
coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR}. There were no IBNR claims 
payable as of June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018. 

Legal Contingency 

In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of any pending litigation will not have an anticipated material 
effect on the City's financial statements as of June 30, 2020. 

Construction Contingency 

The District has no construction contingencies as of June 30, 2020. 

AlC1TF 1(1 _ CI IRCF(ll iFNT F\/EAITC 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization {"WHO") announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of 
coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the "COVID-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international community as the virus 
spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on 
the rapid increase in exposure globally. 

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full 
magnitude that the pandemic will have on the District's financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management 
is actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, and workforce. Given the daily 
evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the District is not able to estimate the effects of 
the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity as of the date of issuance of these financial 
statements. 

NOTE 11 — PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

There is aprior-period adjustment to the Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position of 
$5,473 to the Water Fund, $236 to the Sewer Fund, and $47 to the Garbage Fund for a total of $5,756 to account an over 
statement in the loan payable balance of $756 and a $5,000 Water Fund deposit that was canceled by San Luis Obispo County. 
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C}~EAN~ CC~~UiN~UNITI~ SERVICES atSTR1~T 
GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE QF RE~JENUES, EPENDITUF~ES, AND CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET ÀND ACTUAL 
For the Fisca! gear Ended June ~~, 2oC~ 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 

Final Budget 
{original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes and assessments ~ 1,049,181 1,049,1$1 $ 1,0$1,219 $ 32,038 
Pudic facility fee 15,000 15,000 10,188 {4,842} 
Interest Incflme 35,413 35,413 
Rental Income 140,640 140,640 139,665 {975} 
Other 5,455 5,455 4,620 {835} 

Total revenues 1,216,276 1,21 x,276 1,271,675 60,799 

Expenditures: 

Salaries, wages, and director stipends 483,196 483,196 469.,609 13,581 
Payroll takes and employee benefits 207,471 X}7,471 181,524 25,647 
Liability insurance 24,000 24,000 24,219 {219} 
Repairs and maintenance 31,710 31,710 13,750 17,960 
Administrative services 24, 378 24, 375 10, 011 14, 367 
Data processing 14,420 14,420 13,749 671 
Dues and fees 29,475 29,475 29,235 240 

Education 7,210 7,210 3,386 3,$24 
Legal fees 89,650 89,650 88,808 842 
IUliscellaneous 515 515 3,012 {2,497} 
~}fflce expense 14,085 14,085 11,278 2,$07 
Street I~ghting 38,110 3$,110 30,193 7,917 
Professional fees 44,320 44,320 59,123 {14,803} 
Utilities 27,2$5 27,285 25,321 1,g64 

Public safety 1,138,148 1,138,148 1,138,148 

capital outlay 80,280 133,227 {52,947} 
Interest expense 23,075 ____~. {23,075} 

Total expenditures 2,173,967 2,254,247 2,257,968 {3,721 } 

Excess of revenues 

aver {under} expenditures {963,691 } {1,043,971) {9$6,893) 57,078 

tither financing Sources {Uses} 
Transfers in 927,958 927,95$ 817,953 {110,005} 
Transfers out {113,940} {113,940} 113,940 

Total other financing sources {uses} $14,018 814,018 817,953 3,935 

Net change in fund balance {149,673) {229,953) {168,940) 61,413 

Fund balance -July 1 $94,378 894,378 594,378 

Fund balance -June 30 $ 744,705 $ 664,425 $ 725,438 ~ 61,013 
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C~CEANQ CC?MMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SCHEdULE C?F PRC}P{~RTIC~NATE SHARE tJF NET PENSIt~N LIABILITY 
Last 10 Years 
As of June 30, 2020 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan. 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00741 °/© 0.00715°/© 0.00704% 0.00692% 0.00649% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 759,574 $ 689,459 $ 698,116 $ 598,558 $ 445,280 

Covered payroll $ 577,089 $ 573,557 $ 544,352 $ 437,408 $ 453,904 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll 131.62% 120.21 % 128.25% 136.84% 98.10°I° 

Plan's total pension liability $41,426,453,489 $38,944,855,364 $37,161,348,332 $33,358,027,624 $31,771,217,402 

Plan's fiduciary net position $31,179,414,067 $29,308,589,559 $27,244,095,376 $24,705,532,291 $24,907,305,871 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 75.26% 75.26% 73.31 °l0 74.06% 78.40°l° 

2015 
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00676% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 420,438 

Covered payroll $ 312,044 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll 134.74% 

Plan's total pension liability $30,829,966,631 

Plan's fiduciary net position $24,607,502,515 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 79.82% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Changes in assumptions 
In 2018, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was reduced 
from 3.00 percent to 2.75 percent. 

In 2017, as part of the Asset Liability Il~anagement review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65°I© to 7.15% 

In 2016, the discount rate was changed from 7.5%° (net of administrative expense} to 7.65% to correct for an adjustment to exclude 
administrative expense. 

In 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to expected retirement ages of general employees. 

~`- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown. 
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C~CEANt~ CtJlNlV~UNITY SEF~VICES aI~TRIT 
SCHEDULE CAF PENIC)N Ct~NTRISUTIt~NS 
Last 10 Years* 
As of June ~, 2020 

The fa#lowing table provides required supplementary information regarding the District`s Pension Plan. 

Zti2f} 2Q~9 U~8 i}17 2íi16 
Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined 101,217 83,717 $ 73,333 65,457 ~ 52,723 

Contribution in relation to the actuarïally determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess) 

,~ ~ .. ~ _; ,► - - ~ .~ ,~ 

Contrïbutions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll  

{101,217} {83,717} {73,333} {65,457} {52,723} 
~ - $ - $ - ~ - ~ - 

~ 643,779 ~ 577,089 ~ 573,557 ~ 544,352 $ 437,408 

15.72°/© 1~.51 % 12.79% 12.©2°/© 12.05% 

2t~ 1 ~ 

Cantractually required contributian {actuarially determined} ~ 49,702 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions {49,702) 
Contrïbution deficiency {excess} - 

Covered-employee payroll 453,904 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.95% 

Notes to Schedule 
Valuation Date: 6!30/2017 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for fiscal 
year 2019!2020 were derived from the June 30, 2017 funding valuation report. 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Amortï~ation Method/Period For details, see June 30, 2017 funding valuation report. 

Inflation 2.63°/fl 

Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service 

Payroll growth 3.00% 

Investment Rate of Return 7.0% net of pension plan investment and administrative 
expenses; includes inflation. 

Retirement Age The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2010 CaIPERS 
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2C~{}7. 

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2Q10 CaIPERS 
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 207. 
Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates include 
5 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA 
published by the Society of Actuaries. 

Valuation Date: 6!30!2017 6!30!2016 6!30!2015 
Discount Rate: 7.150°/a 7.375/© 7.650°Ifl 

~- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown. 
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ocEAt~o cC~~I~iIJf~ITY ~E~tVICE~ L}t~Ti~ICT 
~+QF~ THE ~~SCAL YEAC~ EHiJEC~ ,JtJHE ~~ï, 2~21 
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~t~ s s, L,~v~ ~ ~a~i~~.~~~r~ L~,P 
Certified Public Acc©untants 

Iï`wiI3EPENDEI~T AIJI~ITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors of Oceano Community Services District 
flceano, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the 
Gceano Community Services District {the District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

lY~ana~ement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

{fur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. ~e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government ~4uditing 
S"tanc~ards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

~Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the +Dceano Community Services District, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other lt~iatters 

~equired Suppler~aentary 7nf©rmr~tion  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 
11, the budgetary comparison information on page 41, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability on page 42, and the schedule of 
pension contributions on page 4~ be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accaunting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. V~Je have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries ofthe basis financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

24{3 Pr©~essionaí Parí~crmay, Suite 2C}5 Santa Maria, ~A 93455 Teí $t~5.925.2579 Fax $45.925.2147 m[hcpas.com  

BEVERLY HILLS • CLiLV~R í)ISTRI~T •SANTA MARIA 
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t)ther Reporting Required by ~overntnentAu~liting Standards 

In accordance with ~©vernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated .Tanuary 21, 2422, on our consideration of the ~ceano 
Community Services District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion an internal control over financial reporting or an 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with government Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal control aver financial reporting and compliance. 

,► , ~, 
~ 

~ 
i 

Santa i1✓Iaria, California 
January 21, 2022 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 

The management of the Oceano Community Services District (District) has prepared the 
following narrative for the readers of the District's financial statements to provide an overview 
and analysis of the District for the year ending June 30, 2021. The District encourages readers 
to consider the information together with the District's financial statements following this section. 

The District is an independent special district serving a population of approximately 7,200. The 
District is governed by a five (5) member Board of Directors elected by voters within the 
District's boundaries; all Board members must reside within the District's boundaries. The 
District is governed by California Government Code Sections 61000 et al, as well as other 
specific statutes and regulations that govern its operations. 

The District provides both governmental-type activities and enterprise activities. Governmental 
activities include emergency and fire services, street lighting, and recreation. Enterprise 
activities include water service, wastewater collection service, and garbage and recycling 
services. 

District Services and Related Agencies 

As a special District, the District's powers are authorized by the San Luis Obispo County Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). Any proposed additions to the District services, 
modification of District boundaries, or services outside of the District boundaries must be 
approved in advance by LAFCO. 

The following provides a brief overview of each of the District's services: 

Emergency Medical and Fire Protection Services 

The District provides emergency medical and fire protection services through the Five Cities 
Fire Authority (FCFA). The FCFA was created as a "joint exercise of powers authority" (JPA) 
through an agreement originally approved in 2010 and amended on May 23, 2018, June 12, 
2019, and most recently on June 24, 2020 between the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover 
Beach, and the District. One member of the OCSD Board of Directors is appointed to serve the 
District on the FCFA Board of Directors and a second member of the OCSD Board is an 
alternate member on the FCFA Board. Since the District does not control the operations of 
FCFA, the financial statements and audit of the FCFA are separate from the District. 

The District pays a portion of the annual costs of FCFA services based on funding formula 
established in the FCFA agreement, which was modified in the June 12, 2019 amendment. 
That amendment also required the District to call for a special tax election on the March 2020 
ballot for voters to consider approving additional funding so that the District could continue to 
participate as a member of the FCFA. On March 3, 2020 Measure A-20 received 66.14% 
support, which was 11 votes short of passage. The third amendment to the FCFA JPA was 
approved on June 24, 2020 which extends the agreement for an additional two years and will 
provide the community another opportunity to consider additional funding via a June 2022 ballot 
measure. 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 

The JPA amendments were needed for several reasons, including amulti-year implementation 
of the ~c~A "Strategic Plan." The "Strategic Plan" includes increased staff ng and services 
levels greater than these provided in the existing JPA. The amendments include specific 
approval of each members annual casts during the implementation period and requires either a 
citizen initiative or District initiated special tax measure to be placed on the 2C~ primary ballot. 
The increase in District costs during the implementation perm is being funded from reserves to 
the extent that the costs exceed propel tax revenues received by ~cSD. 

tin a related effort, the county of San Luis t~bispo Board of Supervisors prepared a report on 
independent fire depar~~nents serving unincorporated communities throughout the county and 
significant constraints in generating the needed revenues to fund full-tin~ae ire depar~ents. 
Alternatives of a stand-alone fire department anà/or service from the ceuntyl cal dire are also 
possible options to review and consider. 

Lighting Servi~s 

The District provides street lighting services in certain areas of the community. The County of 
San Luis Obispo and the California Department of Transportation also provide some street 
lighting. 

~. ♦ ! i .., ..~ ~ .. ..  

The District is authorized to provide parks and recreation services, however, currently has no 
programs at this time other than those implemented by Lucia Mar Unified School District 
(LMUSD). The District holds a lease with LMUSD for the Oceano Community Center and as 
part of the lease requirements LMUSD utilizes the community center for recreation programs. 
There is a section in the lease where the District may also utilize the community center. 
Currently the District offers individuals the opportunity to utilize the Oceano Community Center 
for up to 10 hours per month and 120 hours per year with discounted fees. 

Water Services 

The District provides water service to approximately go connections. An annual consumer 
confàence Report {~;cR} is mailed to all water cuteers providing a summary of the District's 
water quality including a comparison to regulatory requirements. The California State Division 
of Drintcing Water regulates the District's water supplies  anà  ~e ccR can be found on the 
District website or by calling the District office. 

The District's water supplies include groundwater, Lopes water and State water. Regulation of 
the District's groundwater supply is also subject to the stipulations and judgment adopted for the 
adjudication of the Santa Maria groundwater basin. Lopes and State water supplies are 
provided by the county of San Luis Obispo under terms of water supply contracts. The 
District's water supply reliability is relatively high,  anà  the District had been increasing water in 
storage during the recent drought. Nevertheless, the need to address water supply reliability 
continues and contract amendments for the State v~ater Project are being developed by the 

~ 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 

stag Department of v~ater Resoures and, separately, contract amendments for the Lope 
Lake water supply are being considered by local agencies to establish water storage rights and 
enhance multi-year water resource planning. 

A water rate increase was approved by the E~oard on october 1 , 200. The rate increase 
provided funding for ongoing operations, capital improvement projects, and minimum reserves. 
The rate increase will be phased in over five years. 

Vvastewater collection services 

The District provides wastewater collection services through a network of neighborhood 
pipelines that flow into pipelines and facilities owned by the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District (SSLOCSD), which is responsible for treatment and disposal. The 
SSLOCSD customers include the customers of the District as well as those of the cities of 
Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach. Since the District does not control the operations of 
SSLOCSD, the financial statements and audit of the SSLOCSD are separate from the District. 
District operations are regulated by the  Centrat  Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

+~ ~ . - . +~ ' - ,~ - ~.  

The District provides mandatory solid waste and recycling  servies  through a franchise 
agreement with south bounty Sanitary services incorporated ~~ Inc.}, which is a 
subsidiary of Waste connections Incorporated, a publicly traded corporation "vvl"~l" on the Flew 
~`ork Mock Exchange. In oo the E3oard adopted a resolution to reduce the franchise fee 
payment f rorn ss fro~~~ 1 o ra to r~ to reduce t~~e +~i~sto~ers utility bills. Ti Ise District enforces 
illegal dumping within the community and other violations. The District has also adopted 
in ntive programs designed to promote a cleaner communi y. Sin -the District does not 
control operations of SASS or vvC~, the financial statements and audits of those entities are 
separate from the District. 

overview c~f th~e ~ir~ancial Stater~en►~ 

This annual report contains the following five parts. 

• Management Discussion and Analysis (this section) 
• The Basic Financial Statements 
• Flote to the l= financial Statements 

Supplementary Infor~r~ation - a comparison of the District's budgets to actual results 
Supplementary Inforrr~ation on Pension Disclosures 

This management discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the most 
relevant information affecting the District's f nancial affairs for the year and the District's end of 
the year status. The basic financial statements provide inforrr~ation on the governmental and 
enterprise activities including operating and non-operatingg revenues and expenditures, current 
assets, non-current assets, c~ap~al assets, deferred outflows of resoures, current and long-terr~n 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resoures. 
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The notes to the financial statements provide additional detailed information and explanations 
on the financial statements. The budget to actual comparison illustrates differences between 
the board adopted budget and actual revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance in 
the General fund. The current year reflects a positive budget variance of $193,689 for the 
Governmental Fund. Of this amount, $ 96,317 was utilized to repay a portion of an interfund 
loan owed by the Governmental Fund to the Sewer Fund. 

Financial Statement Analysis and Highlights 

ThP ~i~trir~t'~ ~t~t~ment~ of ,t~IE?t Pn~itinn iç ill~çtrateri bel~~ni fnr the rn~,~ern;-,-~ent~l ~n~ 

Business-type Activities, and subsequently, for each of the Enterprise Funds. 

Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

2021 2020 2021 2020 
Current and Other Assets $ 815,053 $ 781,114 $ 3,074,131 $ 2,653,834 
Ca ital Assets, net 1, 732,123 1, 813, 033 2, 626, 346 2, 822, 935 

Total Assets 2,547,176 2, 594,147 5, 700,477 5,476, 769 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 218,945 19,113 838,249 195,928 

Current Liabilities 79,070 55,676 335,451 146,369 
Non-current Liabilities 269,643 203,438 1,515,177 636,269 

--_-- 
Total Liabilities 348,713 259,114 1,850,628 782,638 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 5, 359 9,168 20, 516 43,153 

Net I nvestment in Capital Assets 1, 732,123 1, 813, 033 2,626, 346 2, 822, 935 

Restricted 274, 079 266, 210 41, 091 40, 589 

Unrestricted 405,847 265, 735 2, 000,145 1, 983, 382 

Net Position $ 2,412,049 $ 2}344,978 $ 4,667,582 $ 4846,906 

The Net Position of the District's Governmental Activities changed in the year ending June 30, 
2021 as a result of an operating income of $67,071. 

~ 
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The Net Position of the Business-type Activities remained consistent with the previous year. 

Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Water Fund Wastewater Fund Garbage Fund 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Cu Trent a nd Other Assets $ 1, 922, 336 $1, 373, 289 $1, 247, 037 $1, 332, 002 $ 326, 463 $ 361, 052 

Ca ital Assets, net 1,470,395 1,598,443 1,154,532 1,238,206 1,419 2,523 

Total Assets 3, 392, 731 2, 971, 732 2,401, 569 2, 570, 208 327, 882 363, 575 

(~Pferr~ C~~tfln~ni of  Reso!  ~ rces 509,462 106,591 288,614 78,259 4^v,173  i  1,07 $ 

Current Liabilities 360,184 194,607 18,888 3,865 42,556 3,560 
Non-current Liabilities 1,3,898 727,812 512,254 252,274 31,553 29,266 

Total Liabilities 1,667,082 922,419 531,142 256,139 74,109 32,826 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 12,469 20, 916 7,064 13, 503 983 8, 734 

Net investment in Ca ital Assets 1,470,395 1,582,206 1,154,532 1,238,206 1,419 2,523 

Restricted 41, 091 40, 589 - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 

Unrestricted 711,156 512,193 997,445 1,140,619 291,544 330,570 

Net Position $ 2,222642 $ 2~134~988 $ 2151,977 $ 2378,825 292 963 X333,093 

Following the District's Statements of Net Position is the Statement of Activities. 

Statement of Activities for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

O erati n Revenues $ 20, 528 $ 10,158 $ 3, 370, 805 $ 3, 091, 774 

Operating Expenditures: 
Administrative Expenditures 
Fire Protection 
Street Lighting 
Ente rise Funds 

(1,023,846) 
(1,155,189) 

(35,434} 

(1,008,591) 
(1,166, 081) 

(31,476) 
2,611,027 2,636,979 

Net O rati n Income / Loss 2,193,941 2,195, 990 759, 529 454, 795 

Ad Valorem Taxes 1,132,291 1,081,219 - 0 - - 0 - 

Other Non-o ratin income 165,930 179,698 23,938 48,234 

Transfers 962, 791 817, 953 962, 791 817, 953 

Total Non-O ratin Income 2,261,012 2,078,870 938,853 769,719 

Change in Net Position 7 071 $ (117,120) $ (179.324) 314 924 
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In summary, the Governmental Activities went from a Net Deficit of $117,120 to a Net Income of 
$67,071 in 2021. The increase in net position is from the $133,227 decrease in capital outlay 
since the Emergency Generator Project was completed in 2020. 

The Business-type Activities went from a Net Loss for the prior fiscal year of $314,924 to a Net 
Loss of $179,324. The Enterprise Funds are broken out by fund in the table below. 

Statements Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Water Fund Wastewater Fund Garbage Fund 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Operating Revenues $ 2,739,317 $ 2,473,798 $ 401,678 $ 400,445 $ 61,222 $ 85,384 

O ratin Ex nditures 2, 351, 034 2,343, 386 221, 394 236, 745 38, 599 55, 791 

Net O eratin Income / Loss 388,283 130,412 180,284 163,700 22,623 23,519 

Other non-u ratin income 174,267 154,494 18,259 25,887 - 0 - - 0 - 

Non~ ratin Ex nditures 249 1,010 - 0 - 39 - 0 - 8 

Net Non-O ratin Income 174,267 153,484 18,259 25,848 - 0 - 8 

Transfers 474,647 $ 402,848 $ 425, 391 $ 361, 993 $ 62, 753 $ 53,112 

Net Income / Loss 87 654 118 952 226 848 172 445 40130 23 527 

The increase in the net income of $87,903 in the Water Fund reflects the rate increase to the 
~niatPr rPUPni iPc that ~niAn+ into nlar~A (lam+nh~or ~n~n Tho no~~i r7+o c+r~ ~~+i irra h-~c~ ~~+-ahlic+h~r,l 

..~.. .~ v. ....vv ~. .v.~ r•v. .~ .. .w ~✓ .~ww vV~V~✓VI LVL-V. ~ ~ IV ~ IVYV ~ ul~.. x.711 l..itllt.,11 V 1 IGJ ~.+JlA1J11J1 I~iU 

financial stability and funds for long-term capital improvement plans and minimum reserves. 

The Wastewater Fund continues to incur a Net Loss because the revenues are not increased 
annually. The wastewater fund receives approximately $90,000 from the General Fund loan 
repayment to help cover the cost of the deficit which will end June 30, 2023. A Proposition 218 
rate increase process will then be needed to close the structural deficit. 

The Garbage Fund's Net Deficit increased from the prior year because ín2020 the Board 
adopted a resolution to reduce the franchise fee payment from SCSS from 10% to 5% to 
reduce the costs to customers and draw down reserves in the Garbage Fund. The District 
continues to move forward on the Solid Waste Programs adopted by the Board on February 8, 
2017. These programs include policies to address illegal dumping, unsanitary conditions, and 
related solid waste problems in the District. 

Capital Assets 

The District owns the community fire station, administrative offices, Sheriff's substation, the 
Oceano Depot, the Oceano Community Center, the former fire station and some undeveloped 
land. The community fire station is provided to FCFA for their use for $15,000 per year. The 
Sheriff substation is leased to the County of San Luis Obispo for $113,400 per year. The 
Oceano Depot and Community Center are leased to anon-governmental agency, and the 

~. 
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Lucia Mar Unified School District at $1 per year each based on the multi-party agreements 
developed for those properties in conjunction with grants that funded the development of the 
community center and the preservation of the historic Oceano train depot. 

The water and wastewater infrastructure of the District ranges drastically in age. Many of the 
water and wastewater system pipelines were originally constructed in the 1950's. The District 
completed water and wastewater system master plans in 2009 but revenue shortfalls have 
deferred infrastructure replacement projects. The District completed an updated water system 
capital improvement program for infrastructure replacement, which was substantially funded 
with grants approved by the State of California. The 2020 water rates include funds for long-
term capital improvement plans starting with $75 jQOÇl in 2022 anrJ $150,000 Path year 
thereafter. 

Debt Activities 

On June 1, 2021 the District entered into a financing agreement with First Foundation Bank 
after issuing a "Request for Proposals" (RFP) to purchase the District's outstanding California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) or the 
"CaIPERS UAL Repayment Project." The District holds a contract with CaIPERS and is 
required to make contributions to fund pension benefits for miscellaneous employees, safety 
employees and amortize a portion of the UAL. The total UAL as of June 30, 2021 for the 
District's miscellaneous plan and safety plan was $822,745. The Board adopted Resolution 
2021-02 to proceed with refinancing the UAL balances under these plans to bring the funding 
status of these plans to 100% funded and to enhance budget predictability by "smoothing" out 
the UAL payment structure over the next 15 years and to provide cash flow savings to the 
District. The District received two bids and locked in an interest rate of 3.46%. By lowering the 
interest rate this will result in a total cash flow savings of $328,600 through June 30, 2035. The 
finance agreement pledged the revenues of the Water and Wastewater Funds. An interfund 
agreement was also established from the General (17.5%) and Garbage (3.5%) Funds to pay 
back the Water and Wastewater Funds for the payment of the UAL obligation. The principal 
and interest payments to First Foundation Bank will range between $68,000 and $83,000 until 
August 1, 2035. 

Internal debt, or borrowing between District funds, is more significant. Note #3 to the Financial 
Statements illustrates interfund liabilities. During the year ending June 30, 2021, the District 
recorded the interfund transfers on the following page to adhere to resolutions adopted April 26, 
2017 to ensure repayment of interfund liabilities. 

E 
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Interfund (Due to) / Beginning Interfund Interfund Ending 
Due From Balances — Transfers Out Transfers In Balances — 

Jul 1, 2020 June 30, 2021 
General Fund Due to 
Sewer Fund 

293 7 $ ( ~ 09) $ 96, 317 - - $ 0 $ (197, 392) 

General Fund Due from - - 
Water Fund 

9 3 8, 081 0 23, 538 374,543 

Net General Fund Due to 
Other Funds 

1 
 ~, 372 96, 317 23, 538 177,151 

Water Fund Due to the 
Genera! Fund 

398 ( , 081) 23, 538 - - 0 (374,543) 

v" i►~àt~r Füiid vüc tv 

Garbs e Fund 
(30,662) 6, 886 - 0 - (23, 776) 

Sewer Fund Due from 
General Fund 

293, 709 - 0 - 96, 317 197, 392 

Garbage Fund Due from 
Water Fund 30, 662 - 0 - 6, 886 23, 776 

Totals $ - 0 - $ 126, 741 $ 126, 741 $ - 0 - 

Budget and Rates 

The District's budget for the year ending June 30, 2021 reflects the water system rate increase 
that was approved by the Board of Directors in October 2020, as adjusted based on increases 
in the consumer price index and wholesale water costs. The annual increases are prescribed in 
urainance ~u~u-u~i , ana in accordance with ~alÍfiornla Government Lode section 53756. The 

following illustrates the Water Fund change in net position before and after the rate increase: 
~ i=iscai 'dear Sur ïus/ Beficit' 

2014/15 $ 182,216 
2015/16 93,228 

2016/17 186,858 
2017/18 22, 518 
2018/19 187, 930 
2019/20 118, 952 
2020/21 87,654 

With the approval of the 2020 rate increase, the District established fiscal stability and funds for 
capital improvement projects and minimum reserves. The increase began in November 2020 
and will be phased in over five years. The District has secured approximately $275,000 in 
grants from state agencies for the water system and related needs. 

10 
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No rate changes affected the wastewater fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The 
following shows the running deficit of the Sewer Fund: 

Fiscal Year Sur lus/ Deficit 
2014/15 $ 16, 927 
2015/16 54,103 
2016/17 104,305 
2017/18 153, 944 
2018/19 165,453 
2019/20 172,445 
2020%21 ~ X226, 8~+8~ I 

The operating shortfall for the sewer fund needs to be addressed in the future. The last four 
budgets included modifications to the District's indirect charges to the sewer fund that reduced 
those costs while increasing indirect cost allocations to the water fund, which reflect a greater 
share of the District's overall enterprise activities. In addition, addressing deferred infrastructure 
needs of the sewer fund will also become a higher priority, which may also require sewer fund 
rate increases in the near future. 

An increase of 10.06% in garbage rates for the SCSS inc. were approved on June 26, 2019, 
and inflationary adjustment of 1.7%went into effect on January 1, 2020 and January 1, 2021. 
On January 22, 2020, the Board approved a decrease to the franchise fee from 10% to 5% to 
reduce customers garbage bills. 

Future Outlook 

Overall, the District's financial outlook has maintained a relatively stable short-term position 
during the year ending June 30, 2021. The primary enterprise fund challenges relate to 
deferred infrastructure repairs and replacement in the water and wastewater systems. 
Currently, the District is evaluating deferred infrastructure needs and is utilizing grants obtained 
from the State of Califomía for much of this effort. Identifying costs and rate impacts to fund the 
deferred infrastructure were completed in 2020 and the new water rates set aside funds for 
long-term capital projects. The future of the fire department's operation will also be a 
significant District effort in the future. 

11 
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C~EA~iCJ CC~N~I~tUNITY SERVICES C3ISTRI~T 
TATEli~EPJT ~F NET PC~ITIC3N 

June 3Q, 2~2 ~ 

G©vernmental Business-type 
ÀCtiVitieS ÀCtiVitieS T4ta1 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 482,906 $ 2,484,314 $ 2,967,220 
Restricted cash and roves#menu 270,339 270,339 
Accounts receivable, net 9,2$5 480,162 489,427 
Prepaid items 41,$71 78,885 12©,536 
Qeposits 16,593 18,593 
Inventory 25,069 25,869 
Internal balances 10,872 (1ú,8I2) 
Capital assets. 

Non Qepreciable: 

Land 810,390 6,000 616,39© 
Qepreciable: 

Buildings and improvements 2,088,370 7,577,290 9,665,66© 
Equipment, vehicles and machonery 435,679 817,554 1,313,233 
Software 195,918 195,918 
Accumulated depreciation {1,462,316) {6,03{},416} {7,432,732) 

Total assets 2,547,176 5,100,477 8,247,653 

©EFERRE© C3UTFLC~W ©F F~ES~3URCES 

Qeferred pensions 218,945 838,249 1,057,194 
Total deferred outflow of resources 218,945 838,249 1,057,194 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 17,922 18,468 36,390 
Accrued wages and benefits 16,093 6,767 22,860 
Qeposits 3,000 205,882 208,882 
Unearned revenue 9,495 55,134 64,629 
Noncurrent liabilities:  

Que  within one year 32,560 49;200 81,760  
Que  in more than one year 269,643 1,515,177 1,I84,82ú 
Total liabilities 348,713 1,850,628 2,199,341 

©EFERREQ INFLt~W C3F RESt~URCES 
Qeferred pensions 5,359 20,518 25,815 

Total deferred inflow of resources 5,359 20,516 25,875 

DIET PC}SITI~}M 
Net investment in capital assets 1,732,123 2,626,346 4,358,469 
Restricted for: 

Capital facilities 274,079 214,079 
Water joint venture agreement 41,091 41,091 

Unrestricted 405,847 2,000,145 2,405,992 
Total net position ~ 2,412,049 $ 4,667,582 $ 1,079,631 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

Governmental activities: 

Administration $ 1,023,846 $ - $ - $ 20,528 
Fire protection 1,155,189 
Street lighting 35,434 

Total governmental activities 2,214,469 20,528 

Business-type activities: 

Water 2,351,283 2,667,047 240,858 
Sewer 221,394 394,413 7,265 
Garbage 38,599 61,222 

Total business-type activities 2,611,276 3,061,460 309,345 

Total governmental $ 4,825,745 $ 3,061,460 $ 309,345 $ 20,528 

General Revenues and Transfers: 

Taxes: 

Property 

Use of money and property 

Other general revenues 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position -beginning of fisca! year 

Net position -end of fiscal year 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Net {Expenses} Revenue end Chenges in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (1,003,318} $ - (1,003,318} 

{ 1,155,189} { 1,155,189} 

{35,434) (35,434) 

{2,193,94 ~ } {2,193, 941 } 

555,522 556,622 

180, 284 180, 284 

22,623 22,623 

759, 529 759, 529 

X2,193,941 } 759,529 (1,434,412} 

1,132,291 1,132,291 

155,674 18,126 173,$00 

10,256 5,812 16,068 

962, 791 (962, 791 } 

2,261,012 {938,853) 1,322,159 

67,071 {179,324) {112,253} 

2, 344, 978 4, 846, 906 7,191, 884 

~► ~ ~ ~ ~ '► ~ • • i► ~~ ~ * • 

1~ 
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~CEA~It~ ccw~ll~iIUNITY SER1/ICES C}lSTF~ICT 
C~~3VEr1~~ENTA~ FUN~ 
BA~.A~1cE SHEET 
June ~~, 2021 

general 

Fund 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
restricted cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid items 
Advances receivable 

Total assets 

LlA~1L1TlES AIVC~ FtJI~C~ BALAI`~cE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll and benefits 
deposits 

~lnearned revenue 
I~ue to other funds 

• ,~ • •  

Fund balance: 
I~l©nspendable: 

Prepaid items 

Advances receivable 
restricted: 

capital facilities 

Assigned: 

Infrastructure replacement 

Total fund balance 

. . ~ . . • ~►  . . . -  

~ 482,9C36 

27C3,339 

9, 265 

41,671 

366,814 

~ 1,170,995 

~ 17, 922 

16, C393 

3,000 

9,495 

355,942 

4C32,452 

41,671 

366,814 

274,C3í9 

85, 979 

768,543 

1,1703, 995 

The notes to basic ~nancíal statements are an integral park of this statement. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND -BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2021 

Total fund balance -governmental fund $ 768, 543 

In the governmental fund, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, 

all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation. 

Capital assets at historical cost $ 3,134,439 

Accumulated depreciation (1,402,316) 

 

Net 

Long-term liabilities: In the governmental fund, only current liabilities are reported. In the 

statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. 

Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

 

1,732,123 

Compensated absences payable $ 130,240 

Net pension liability 171,963 

Total 

In the governmental fund, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions 

are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement 

of net position, deferred outflows of $218,945 and inflows of resources of $(5,359) 

relating to pensions are reported. 

Total net position -governmental activities  

(302,203) 

213,586 

$ 2,412,049 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

General 

Fund 
Revenues: 

Taxes and assessments 

Public facili#y fee 

Interest income 

Rental income 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Salaries, wages and directors' stipends 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 

Liability insurance 

Repairs and maintenance 

Administrative services 

Data processing 

Dues and fees 

Education 

Legal fees 

Miscellaneous 

Office expense 

Street lighting 

Professional fees 

Utilities 
,_,. _t_~ 

t~U~JiIG 5c~l~ty 

Interest expense 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance -July 1 

Fund balance -June 30 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 1,132,291 

20, 528 

14,959 

140,715 

10,256 

1,318,749 

423,821 

374,473 

26,576 

20,451 

27,772 

17,987 

21,633 

2,938 

53,072 

(888) 

5,814 

33,292 

51,721 

24,002 

Í , Í 38, Í ~+8 

17,623 

2,238,435 

(919,686) 

962,791 

962,791 

43,105 

725,438 

$ 768,543 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Total net change in fund balance -governmental fund $ 43,105 

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental fund as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 

lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital 

outlay of $0 are less than depreciation expense $(80,910) in the period. (80,910) 

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 

earned during the fiscal year. In the governmental fund, however, expenditures for 

these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially 

the amounts paid). This fiscal year, vacation earned exceeded the amounts used 

by $50,107. (50,107) 

In the governmental fund, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. 

1n the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This 

year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 

contributions was: 154,983 

Changes in net position -governmental activities $ 67,071 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Prepaid expenses 

Inventory 

Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

Joint venture deposits 

Non depreciable capital assets: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements 

Equipment, vehicles and machinery 

Software 

Accumulated depreciation  

Tota!  noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Customer deposits 

Unearned revenue 

Due to other funds 

Advances payable-current portion 

Taxable revenue bond obligation -current portion 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Advances payable -non-current portion 

Taxable revenue bond obligation -non-current portion 

Net pension liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 1,259,558 $ 924,301 $ 300,455 $ 2,484,314 

417, 546 60, 014 2, 602 480,162 

78,640 225 78,865 

23,153 1, 916 25, 069 

126,846 260,806 23,181 410,833 

1,905,743 1,247,037 326,463 3,479,243 

16,593 16,593 

6, 000 6, 000 

4,815,243 2,762,047 7,577,290 

561, 916 294, 662 20, 976 877, 554 

156,734 39,184 195, 918 

(4,069,498) (1,941,361) (19,557) (6,030,416) 

1,486,988 1,154,532 1,419 2,642,939 

3,392,731 2,401,569 327,882 6,122,182 

509,462 288,614 40,173 838,249 

509,462 288,614 40,173 838,249 

17,766 201 501 18,468 

4,658 1,764 345 6,767 

205,882 205,882 

44, 609 525 10, 000 55,134 

23,181 31,710 54, 891 

31,286 31,286 

32,802 16,398 49,200 

360,184 18,888 42,556 421,628 

335,528 335,528 

571,229 285,571 856,800 

400,141 226,683 31,553 658,377 

1,306,898 512,254 31,553 1,850,705 

1,667,082 531,142 74,109 2,272,333 

12,469 7,064 983 20,516 

12,469 7,064 983 20,516 

1,470,395 1,154,532 1,419 2,626,346 

41,091 41,091 

711,156 997,445 291,544 2,000,145 

$ 2,222,642 $ 2,151,977 $ 292,963 $ 4,667,582 
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Water Sewer 

$ 2,667,047 $ 394,413 $ 

72,270 7,265 

2,739, 317 401,678 

Garbage 

Fund Totals 

- $ 3,061,460 

61, 222 140, 757 

61, 222 3, 202, 217 

OCEAI~O COI~iUIU~lITY SER~IICES IDISTRICT 
PI~C~PRIET~RY FUI~1©S 
STATEII~ENT {~F RE~EhJl1ES, ~XPEI~SES, Al~d CHANGES IN I`~~T POSITIC}I~! 
F©r the Fiscal Year Ende~! June ~~, 2~~~ 

Operating Revenues: 

Charges for services 

tJther fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Legal and professional 

dues and fees 
Education 

Water meters 

Wheeled water expense 

t~#fice expense 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Vl/ater supply expense 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nan-Operating Revenues {Expenses}: 

Grant income 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Other non-operating revenue 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses} 

Income befiore transfers 

Transfers: 

Transfers in 

Transfers {out) 

Total transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position -July 1 

Diet position -June 30 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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35 24 

13,982 2,664 16 

12, 538 1, 577 620 

1,413,445 

127, 393 100,173 1,104 

2,351,034 221,394 38,599 

388,283 180,284 22,623 

303,913 52, 397 6,435 

108, 822 41, 784 16, 906 

201,711 10,492 633 

115, 299 7,834 3, 385 

8, 741 4,449 

449 9, 500 

21,537 

23,169 

362,745 

167, 512 

212, 836 

126, 518 

13,190 

9, 949 

21,537 

23,169 

59 

16,662 

14,735 

1,413,445 

2,611,027  

168,588 168,588 

503 17,623 18,126 

{249) (249) 

5,176 636 5, 812 

174,018 18,259 192,277 

562,301 198,543 22,623 783,467 

1,458 728 2,186 

~476,105} {425,391 } (63,481) (964,977) 

{474,647} (425,391) {62,753} (962,791 } 

87,654 {226,848} (40,130) (179,324} 

2,134,988 2,378,825 333,093 4,846,906 

$ 2,222,642 $ 2,151,977 $ 292,963 $ 4,667,582 

Attachment - June 30, 2021 AuditPage 91 of 177



QCEANt~ Ct~► MMÜIVITY SERVICES aISTRICT 
PRtPRIETARY FUNi3S 
STATEi~iEf~T ~7F GASH F~C7V1~S 
F©r the Fiscal Year Ended June ~7, ~C7~ 

Cash Flows From ©peratrng Activities: 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities 

Cash FI©ws Fr©m Capital and Related financing Activities: 

Refund on capital purchase 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash FI€~~os tram N©ncapital Financing Activities: 

Grants received 

Transfers from {to} other funds 

Interfund interest paid 

Proceeds from issuance of taxable revenue bond obligation 

®they revenue 

Net cash provided {used} by noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 

Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1 
rte., ..~, a ,... a :._ ~. ,_. _ .,,, ~.~xs~F an~~ i~~h equivc~~e~its - ~~x1~ ,~v 

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position: 

Gash and investments 

Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 2,838,393 ~ 897,245 $ 66,014 ~ 3,301,652 

{1,817,728} {28,251 } {17,044) {1,863,421) 

{777,179) {335,842) {57,724) {1,170,545) 

243,488 33,352 {8,754) 258,086 

9,619 9,619 

{25,204) {16,500) {41,700} 

{15,581) {16,544) {32,081) 

213,197 10, 000 223,197 

{64{7,244) {392,487) {23,561) {1,056,292) 

{249} {249) 

604,431 301,369 906,040 

5,176 636 5, 812 

181,911 {89,882) {13,561 } 78,468 

502 17,624 18,126 

502 17,624 18,126 

410, 320 {55,406) {22, 315} 332, 599 

849,238 979,707 322,770 2,151,715 

1,259,558 ~ 924,301 $ 300,455 $ 2,484,314 

$ 1,259,558 924,301 $ 340,455 $ 2,484,314 

{continued) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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C~►CEANC~ ~C}l1~~iI111~11TY SERVICE ~!ISTRICT 
P~t~P~lETARY FI~~JÜS 
STATEMEf~T {~F CASH FLt~S {C©ntinuedj 
Fc~r the Fiscal Year Ended June 3, 2021 

Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund T©tals 

Reconciliation of operating income to 

net cash provided {used) by operating 
activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided (usedj by operating activities 
lJepreciation expense 

Change in assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and deferred outflows of resources: 

Receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 

Inventories 

Joint venture deposits 

Deferred outflows 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Customer deposits 

Unearned revenues 
Net pension liability 

Deferred inflows 

Net cash provided {usedj by operating activities 

$ 388,283 $ 180,284 $ 22,623 $ 591,19fl 

127;393 1 Ofl,173 1,1 fl4 228,670 

{9,754j {3,9O8j 4,792 (8,87©) 

14,244 14,244 

222 563 785 
{35ój (356j 

(402,871 j {21 fl,355 j {29,fl95j (642,321) 

(24,93Oj (1,774j {2,89Oj (25,594) 

1,462 924 176 2,562 

1 fl8,83O 108,83fl 

{525) {525) 

45,412 {25,591 j 2,287 22,108 

(8,447j {ó,439j {7,751 j (22,637) 

$ 243,488 $ 33,352 ~ (8,754) $ 268,086 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 --SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. The Financial Reporting Entity 

The Oceano Community Services District ("the District") is a multipurpose special district established on January 1, 
1981. The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and operates under a Board of Directors. The 
District provides water, wastewater, street lighting, and garbage franchise services. 

The District complies with the U. S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and all relevant Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. These technical pronouncements establish criteria for 
determining the District's activities and functions that are included in the financial statements of a governmental unit. 
The proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
unless those principles conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case GASB prevails. There are no 
component units included in this report which meet the criteria of GASB Statement No. 14 as amended by GASB 
Statements No. 39, 61, and 80. 

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both governmental and business-type 
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item "b" below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic resources" 
measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

All governmental funds are accounted for using a "current financial resources" measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on their balance sheets. Their 
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. 
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

Àll proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this 
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial 
position, and cash flows. All assets and all liabilities {whether current or non-current) associated with the operation 
of these funds are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis of Accountin 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both governmental and business-type 
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and available." Measurable 
means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period 
or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District defines available to be within 60 days of fiscal year-end. 
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on long term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to 
the extent that they have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds for governmental long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as 
other financing sources. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual include taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges for services. 
Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities. 

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the District may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block 
grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position are available to finance program 
expenditures. The District's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general 
revenues if necessary. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund's principal revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District. These statements 
include the financial activities of the overall District government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
counting of internal activities. Government activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other non-exchange transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment 
of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by 
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational needs of a particular program, and (c) fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the 
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major 
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental 
and proprietary categories. All District funds are considered major funds. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position;  and a States,nPnt of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds. Propr1etar3~ funds are accounted for 
using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and 
liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position present increases {revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while 
expenses are recognízed in the period in which liability is incurred. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund -This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The fund provides for public administration and 
overall management as it pertains to the District as a whole as well as the District's street lighting services. It also 
accounts for the District's fire protection services as agreed upon with the Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Powers 
Authority. 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. 
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income 
measurement similar to the private sector. 

Water Fund -This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the District's water distribution, treatment, and 
monitoring systems. 

Sewer Fund -This fund is used to account for al! activities of operating sewer services and maintaining the sewer lines. 

Garbage Fund -This fund is used to account for the garbage franchise services. 

25 
Attachment - June 30, 2021 AuditPage 95 of 177



OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Property Taxes 

San Luis Obispo County levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments for the District. Property 
taxes levied are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of levy, due to the adoption of the "alternate method of property 
tax distribution," known as the Teeter Plan, by the District and the County. The Teeter Pian authorizes the 
Auditor/Controller of the County to allocate 100% of the secured property taxes billed, excluding unitary tax (whether 
paid or unpaid). The County remits tax monies to the District every month and twice a month in December and April. 
The final amount which is "teetered" is remitted in August each year. 

Tax collections are the responsibility of the County Tax Collector. Taxes and assessments on secured and utility rolls, 
which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid in two installments; the first is due November 1 of the fiscal 
year and is delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fïscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against real property 
unless the tax becomes delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by 
August 31 of the fiscal year. Significant penalties are imposed by the County for late payment. 

Property valuations are established by the Assessor of the County for the secured and unsecured property tax rolls. 
Under the provisions of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution, properties are assessed at 100% of purchase price or 
value in 1978 whichever is later. From this base assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited to a 
maximum of 2 percent. However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon change in 
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

Tax levy dates are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal 
year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal 
property, as it exists at that time. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are not relieved by 
subsequent renewal or change in ownership. 

E. Cash and Investments 

The District pools the cash of all funds, except for monies deposited with fiscal agent in accordance with related bond 
indentures. The cash and investments balance in each fund represents that fund's equity share of the District's cash 
and investment pool. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District has defined cash and cash equivalents 
to be change and petty cash funds, equity in the District's cash and investment pool, and restricted non-pooled 
investments with initial maturities of three months of less. 

I!, acllorda!~ce with ASR Statement No. 31, Qocountir~~ a►~~  Firlarl~íaf I~P~~Drtin~ t'rJf' CQl~a!C1 Inv~stm,A.~tS ~n~ for 
External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are 
stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for those 
securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

The District maintains its cash balance in financial institutions in the United States. The balances at the institutions are 
generally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. As of June 30, 2021, the 
District held cash in financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. 

Accounts and Interest Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. 
Receivables are recorded in the financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable, and 
estimated refunds due. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities may include sales taxes, property 
taxes, grants, and other fees, if any. Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivables. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds may include revenue accruals such as 
franchise tax, grants, service charges and other similar intergovernmental revenues that are both measurable and 
available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in 
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements 
in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and if paid within 60 
days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all 
revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and interest earnings comprise the 
majority of proprietary fund receivables. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Prepaid Expenses and Inventory 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditurelexpense in the funds at the time individual inventory items are purchased rather than when consumed. 
This is then adjusted by physical inventory at fiscal year-end. Inventory in the enterprise funds consist principally of 
materials and supplies for utility operations. 

Payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

H. Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations. The presentation and recording of governmental assets 
are described below. 

Government-Wide Statements 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets with a historical cost of $5,000 or more are accounted for as 
capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except 
for donated capital assets, if any, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated 
historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets. 

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the District has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) 
capital assets on the government-wide statements. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated 
useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as 
follows: 

Water system 5-75 years 
Sanitation system 10-50 years 
Drainage 5-50 vears v J 

Administration 5-40 years 

~!~nd ~inancial .Stateme~?ts 

In the fund financia! statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are 
capitalized when purchased. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences comprise unused vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory time off, which are accrued as 
earned. Vacation hours, which accrue from the first day of employment, can be taken immediately and are capped at 
320 hours. Upon termination, all accumulated vacation hours up to 320 hours are paid out. Sick leave, which accrue 
from the first day of employment can be taken immediately and can be accrued up to 180 days or 1,440 hours. Upon 
termination, all accumulated vacation hours up to 180 days are paid out. Payments will be based on the pay rate at the 
time of termination. The District's liability for the current and long-term portions of compensated absences is shown in 
the government-wide Statement of Net Position for both governmental funds and proprietary funds. Only proprietary 
funds reflect the long-term portion in the fund financials report, Statement of Net Position. The short-term portion is 
reflected for both governmental and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements. Computation was based on 
rates in effect as of the fiscal year-end.  

Lona-Term Liabilities 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term liabilities are presented for both governmental and proprietary 
fund types. In the fund financial statements, only the proprietary funds show long-term liabilities. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

K. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Oceano Community Services District California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) Miscellaneous, Miscellaneous PEPRA, and Safety Fire Plans and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 
defined timeframes. For this report the following timeframes are used: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2020 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category, refer to 
Note 7 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the District has recognized. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable to 
a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category; refer to Note 7 for a 
detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the District has recognized. 

M. Interfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services 
p~~t~videú , deei~cú tú be at r~iar~ket or' near rnarket ratés, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related 
cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 

N. Equity Classifications 

Government-Wide Statements 

GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets and the deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of the net position that has 
external constraints placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not 
meet the definition of net investments in capital assets or restricted net position. 

Governmental Fund Statements 

Fund balance is the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in the governmental funds. In compliance 
with GASB Statement No. 54, the District has established the following fund balance classifications: 

Non-spendable —The non-spendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted —The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that reflect constraints placed on the use of 
resources (other than non-spendable items} that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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~L~E~1~~ LVIYI~~I~i~~ i ~7~~Y ~~r~~a3 ~~~TR~1✓T 

NOTES TO TF~E BAS1C FI~]Ai~C~A~ STATE~JiENTS 
J U N E 30, 2021 

NC~TE 1 -- ~Ui~~ARY t~F Sl~~itF1CANT ~►~~(~UlVTIN{~ P'C3LICIES {O©nfinued} 

~  Equity Classifications ~continued~ 

~ammitfed -- The committed fund ba#ance classi~catÍon inc#odes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by forma# action of the Board of Directors. Those committed amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
{legis#anon, resolution, ordinance, etc.} it emp#Dyed to previous#y commit those amounts. Committed fund ba#ance 
should also incorporate contractua# ob#igations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifics#ly 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned —The assigned fund ba#ance classification inc#odes amounts that are constrained by the government's intent 
to be used for specific purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Ruch intent is to be estab#fished by (a) 
the Board of Directors itself or {b) the Genera# #Manager to which the Board of Directors has de#egated the authority to 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 

Unassigr~e~ —The unassigned fund ba#ance c#assifcation includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above four 
categories. This classification represents fund ba#ance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes within the Genera# Pund. 

When an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund ba#antes are avai#able, it is District's 
po#icy that the restricted fund ba#ance be spent first fol#owed by committed, then assigned, and, if applicab#e, 
unassigned. 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

GABS Statements listed below wi## be implemented in future financial statements: 

. ~ _ ~ ; _„ _  

Statement fro. 89 "Accounting for #merest Cost Incurred 
before the End of a Construction 

Period" 

Statement No. 91 "Conduit Debt Obligations" 

. - - • • • +~ ~ 1 

Statement  #fio.  9 "Replacement of Interbank Offered 

Rates" 

Statement No. 9~ "Public-Private and Public-Public 
Partnerships and Avai#ability 
Payment Arrangements" 

M ~ 
r 

- ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ ~ I ~ ~ • ~ 

- ~ ~. ~ .  .- 

Statement Flo. 9? "Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Internal Revenue Code Section 4~7 

Deferred Compensation Plans - an 

amendment of GASB Statements ~o. 14 

and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB 

Statement loo. 32" 

~ 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 

The provisions ©f this statement are effectÍve 
for fiscal years beginning after December 1 , ?021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provision of this statement except for paragraphs 
11 b, 1 , and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning 

after June 15, 2020. Paragraph 11 b is effective for fiscal 

years beginning after December 31, 2©21. Paragraphs 

1 ~ and 1 ~ are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 

The provision of this statement except for paragraphs 
Q-9 are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

December 1 b, 2019. Paragraph 6-9 is effective for fists# 

years beginning after June 15, 2021. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

P. Use of Estimates 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America and necessarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by Management. Actual 
results could differ from these amounts. 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The composition of cash and investments as of June 30, 2021, is as follows: 

Cash in bank and on hand $ 1, 243, 759 
Investments 1,993,800 

Total cash and investments, Statement of Net Position $ 3,237,559 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The District's investment in the San Luis Obispo County Investment Pool of $1,698,963 is 
measured under level 2. The District had investments in the money market funds and bank time deposits that are measured at 
amortized cost are not required to be measured under Level 1, 2 or 3. 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment Polic 

The table below identifies the investment types the District has that are authorized for the District by the California Government 
Code or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive, that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions 
of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's 
investment policy. 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage Investment 
Maturity Of Portfolio in One Issuer 

5 years None None 
5 years None None 
5 yeàr s Nûric "~oiie 
5 years None None 
180 days 40% None 
270 days 25% 10% 
5 years 30% None 
5 years 30% None 
5 years 30% None 

92 days 20% of base value None 
5 years 30% None 
N/A 20% 10% 
N/A None None 
N/A 20% None 
N/A None None 

N/A None None 

5 years None None 
5 years None None 

Authorized 
Investment Tempe 

Local Agency Bonds 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 
State Obligations — CA and Others 
U.S. Agency Securities 
Bankers' Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Placement Services Deposits 
Repurchase and Reserve 

Repurchase Agreements 
Medium-Term Notes 
Mutual Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 
County Pooled Investment Fund 
State Registered Warrants, Notes or 

Bonds 
Notes and Bonds for other Local 

California Agencies 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment is, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of 
the ways that the District's interest rate risk is mitigated is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to 
market rate fluctuations is provided by the table on the following page that shows the distribution of the District's investments by 
maturity as of June 30, 2021. 

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
Carrying 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than 

Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months 
Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit $ 24,498 $ - $ 24,498 $ - $ - 
Money Market 270,339 270,339 
San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 1,698,963 1,698,963 
$ 1,993,800 $ 1,969,302 $ 24,498 $ - $ - 

Investments with Fair V"clues Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations 

The District has no investments (including investments held by bond trustees) that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations. 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of a rating by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual 
rating as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 for each investment type. 

Investment Tvae 

Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit 

ivioney ïvrarket 

San Luis Obispo County 

Investmer~t Pool 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Minimum Exempt 

Carrying Legal From Rating as of Fiscal Year End 
Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated 

$ 24,498 N/A $ - $ - $ - $ 24,498 
2 ï 0, 339 ivies 270, 339 

1,698,963 1,698,963 
$ 1, 993, 800 $ - $ - $ - 

_$~~._ 
 - 1, 993, 800 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code. The District minimizes its credit risk by investing only in the safest types of 
securities or investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 
not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The California Government Code and the District investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the government 
unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at feast 110% of the total amount deposited by the 
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage 
notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. Deposits are insured up to $250,000. 

The investment ín the San Luis Obispo County Investment Pool is not required to be collateralized. The fair value of securities in 
the pool is based on quoted market prices. The San Luis Obispo County Treasurer's Office performs a monthly fair market 
valuation of all securities held against carrying costs. Reports of valuations and financial statements are available to participants 
on the San Luis Obispo County Treasurer's website. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 3 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, were as follows: 

Interfund Transfers: 

General $ 962,791 $ - 

Proprietary Funds: 

Water 1,458 476,105 
Sewer 425,391 
Garbage 728 63,481 

$ 964, 977 $ 964, 977 

Borrowing between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows: 

Advances and Due To/Due From: 

Advances Advances 
Governmental Fund: Due From Due To Receivable Payable 

General $ - $ 355,942 $ 366,814 $ - 
Proprietary Funds: 

Water 126,846 23,181 366,814 
Sewer 260,806 

Garbage 23,181 31,710 
$ 410, 833 $ 410, 833 $ 366, 814 $ 366, 814 

NOTE 4 —CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2020 Additions 

Balance at 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land $ 610,390 $ - $ - $ 610,390 

Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 610,390 $ - $ - $ 610,390 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements $ 2,088,370 $ - $ - $ 2,088,370 
Vehicles and equipment 435,679 435,679 

Total capital assets being depreciated 2,524,049 2,524,049 

Less accumulated depreciation 1,321,406 80,910 1,402,316 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 1,202,643 $ (80,910) $ - $ 1,121,733 

Net capital assets $ 1,813,033 $ (80,910) $ - $ 1,732,123 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 4 -CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Software 
Vehicles and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Net capital assets  

Balance at Retirements/ Balance at 
July 1, 2020 Additions Transfers June 30, 2021 

$ 6,000 $ - $ - $ 6,000 
234,382 (234,382) 

$ 240, 382 $ - $ (234, 382) $ 6, 000 

$ 7, 310, 827 $ 41, 700 $ 224, 763 $ 7, 577, 290 
195,918 195,918 
~77 GGA n-s-~ rr i 

8,384,299 41,700 224,763 8,650,762 

c o n ~ ~ ~ n n ~ c~ r_ -~ n r. r, ., .~ . .., 

$ 2, 582, 553 $ (186, 970) $ 224, 763 $ 2, 620, 346 

$ 2,822,935 $ (186,970) $ (9,619) $ 2,626,346 

NOTE 5 -LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in the District's long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021: 

Balance at Balance at Current Long Term 
July 1, 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 Portion Portion 

Governmental Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 80,133 $ 82,332 $ 32,225 $ 130,240 $ 32,560 $ 97,680 
Net Pension Liability 123,305 49,645 987 171,963 171,963 

Ï-otai vovernmental Activities $ 203,438 $ 131,977 $ 33,212 $ 302,203 $ 32,560 $ 269,643 

Business-Type Activities: 

Taxable revenue bond obligations $ - $ 906,000 $ - $ 906,000 $ 49,200 $ 856,800 
Net Pension Liability 636,269 25,891 3,783 658,377 658,377 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 636,269 $ 931,891 $ 3,783 $ 1,564,377 $ 49,200 $ 1,515,177 

NOTE 6 -TAXABLE REVENUE BOND OBLIGATIONS 

On June 3, 2021, the District issued $906,000 in taxable revenue bonds in order to pay off the unfunded accrued liability with 
CaIPERS on the District's pension plans. The taxable revenue obligations were issued at an interest rate of 3.46% per annum 
and mature on August 1, 2035. Net  revenues of the Water and Sewer funds were pledged as the security for the obligations. 
Debt service payments are due semi-annually on August 1 and February 1. The future minimum payment obligations for the 
taxable revenue bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

2022 $ 49,200 $ 19,873 $ 69,073 
2023 52,200 28,742 80,942 
2024 54,100 26,903 81,003 
2025 56,000 24,999 80,999 
2026 57,900 23,028 80,928 

2027-2031 322,300 83,042 405,342 
2032-2036 314,300 27,816 342,116 

Total $ 906,000 $ 234,403 $ 1,140,403 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's separate Safety and Miscellaneous 
Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CaIPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statue and District resolution. 
CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CaIPERS website. 

Benefits Provided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year 
of full-time employment. Classic Plan members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at aQe 50 and new 
members/PEPRA Plan members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52, with statutorily reduced benefits. 
All members are eligible for nonduty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefït. The cost of living adjustments for 
each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Contribution rates are based on the Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2019. The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect 
at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

Classic Member New Member Hired Classic Member 
Hired Prior to On or after Hired Prior to 

Hire Date January 1, 2013* January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013* 
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2% @ 62 2% @ 50 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 
Retirement age 50-63 52-67 50-55 
R A...-.thl. , L....-,,.~:~.. .. 0/ ..~ .,I:,..:L.1,. ....,.... ,-.~:...-. 
IVIVI Ill 11~/ IJCI IClIIJ, aJ  Cl /0 VI Cllr. IIJIC l.Ul I I f.JCÍ IJQIIVI 1 

~f ~r0/ a.. ~ A ~1 00/ 
I .`'tV /0 lU L.`t I O /0 

~f X10/ a.. ~ GO/ 
I .V /0 tV L.J /0 

~ n ~ ~ni 
L.V-L. / %0 

Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.75% N/A 
Required employer contribution rates 10.484% + $44.769 7.732% + $4,600 $13,322 

*Anew employee may transfer into the Classic Member formula if he/she comes from another agency 
participating in the CaIPERS or reciprocal retirement system and did not have more than a six month break 
in service. 

Contributions 

Section 20814(c} of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in 
the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The 
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the 
District were $105,517 for the Safety Plan and $848,754 for the Miscellaneous Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net position liability of each Plan 
as follows: 

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension Liabilit 
Miscellaneous $ 730,218 
Safety 100,122 
Total $ 830,340 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
(Continued) 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update 
procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, actuarially determined. 
At June 30, 2020, the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 
2020 was as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 
Proportion-June 30, 2019 0.01658% 0.00153% 
Proportion-June 30, 2020 0.01731 % 0.00150% 
Change-Increase Decrease; 0.00073% -v.Ovvv3~ ú 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $156,437. Pension expense represents 
the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred 
recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. 

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 45,394 $ - 
Changes in assumptions 5,542 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
retirement plan investments 23,868 
Adjustment due to differences in proportion 33,661 1,575 
Chances in nronortion and differences hetwePn ni~trint 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 18,758 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 954,271 

1, 057,194 $ 25, 875 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net 
pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

$954,271 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in the pension expenses as follows: 

Fiscal year ending June 30 Amount 
2022 $ 15, 713 
2023 28, 350 
2024 21,491 
2025 11,494 

$ 77, 048 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
(Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Measurement Date 
Acturial Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 
Inflation 
rrojected Salary increase 
Investment Rate of Return (1) 
Mortality 

Post Retirement Benefit Increase 

Miscellaneous and Safety 
June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2020 

Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 

7.15% 
2.50% 

'varies by Entry Age and Service 
7.00% 

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership 
Data for all Funds (1) 

Contract COLA up to 2.50% until 
Purchasing Power Protection Allowance 

Floor on Purchasing Power applies; 
2.75% thereafter 

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table includes 
15 years of mortality irnpro4ements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of Sale MP 2016. 
For more details on this table please refer to the December 2017 experience study report. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate 
should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF C), CaIPERS stress tested plans 
that mini ~Iri mnct likplu rc~ci ilt in a r-~icrni int rates that mini ilrl hc~ rliffc~rc~nt from thA anti iariall~i acct imc~r~ riic~nl int r_~4o R~cnrl .,n ♦~ ~~.•• • • v ~w ~~... ~ ~ ~ vv • ~ ~~ ~v~' ~ vv~.+~ ♦ ~~ ~ ~. ~.+~v Vvl.~l ~ l ~ u~t.. ♦~ ~~.w • r r v u ~u wJv lAl ~ I V I V I ~ • ~ ~ VI ~ ~ ll I V lAVll.• lAl ~lAl ~ f lwvv~..~l I ~~.r ~w t.1~.~vvlA I Il 1 u Ili . vUJIi ~.A V I I 

testing the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is 
appropriate and the use of municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 
7.15 ~iei'ï;eïlt i5 àN~iicd tú àii ~3aï~~ irï tiic Puú IÍC: Eï~iployees Retir~rrïerit Fünd, i ncluding PERF C. T h1e StreSS test results are 
presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be obtained at CaIPERS' website under the 
GASB No. 68 section. 

CaIPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle 
that is scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper 
stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CaIPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for 
GASB No. 67 and No. 68 calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of 
the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected 
compound returns were calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11-60 years) using abuilding-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated 
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of 
return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of 
one percent. 

The table on the following page reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE 7 —PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
(Continued) 

New 
Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10(a) Years 11 +(b) 

Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98% 
Global Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62% 
Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81 
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23% 
Real Assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92% 

Total 100.0% 

(a) An expected inflation of 2.00% was used for this period. 
(b) An expected inflation of 2.92% was used for this period. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 
percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate -1 % Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1 
6.15% 7.15% 8.15% 

~ 

Net Pension Liability -Miscellaneous 
Net Pension Liability -Safety 
Net Pension Liability -Total  

$ 1,115,197 $ 730,218 $ 412,121 
151, 615 100,122 57, 867 

1, 266, 812 $ 830, 340 $ 469, 988 

n__.._ n~_._ r~_a_._.__ ~► ~_~ n__~ti:_._ 
IJUIIJ!(Jl1 !✓kill !—IUU(;Icil~/ IVUI I~U~IIIU!l 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately-issued CaIPERS financial reports. 

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2021, the District had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021. 

NOTE 8 --JOINT VENTURES 

State Water Project 

In 1991, the District approved participation in the State Water Project (SWP). As a result, the District entered into two contracts 
with the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (SLOFCD). One agreement is entitled "Water 
Supply Agreement" and the other is entitled "Water Treatment and Local Facilities Agreement." 

The Water Supply Agreement is for the SWP source of supply, which is an allocation of 750 acre feet per year. The Water 
Supply Agreement incorporates by reference the SLOFCD agreement with the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR), which is termed the "Master Water Supply Agreement." The District is obligated to pay its proportionate share of the cost 
of the SWP facilities owned by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) that is used to convey the District's source 
of supply to the "Lopez Turnout," plus a proportionate share of the SLOFCD costs. The Lopez Turnout connects the SWP 
facilities to Lopez facilities enabling State Water deliveries to the District. The District's prorated share of operating, maintenance, 
pumping, and other related costs are charged as an operating expense in the Water Fund. The portion of the costs that is fixed 
in nature must be paid regardless of water deliveries. Variable costs are paid based on actual water deliveries. 
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NOTE 8 —JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 

State Water Project (Continued 

The Water Treatment and Local Facilities agreement is for treatment of the SWP supply and for construction associated with the 
Lopez Turnout, a local facility. The Water Treatment and Loca! Facilities agreement incorporates by reference the SLOFCD 
agreement with the Central Coast Water Authority termed the "Master Water Treatment Agreement." The District is obligated to 
pay its proportionate share of treatment facilities owned and operated by CCWA, and for the cost of local facilities specifically 
benefitting the District —the Lopez Turnout. The portion of the costs that is fixed in nature must be paid regardless of water 
deliveries. Variable costs are paid based on actual water deliveries. 

The District is required to make payments under its Water Supply agreement and its Water Treatment and Local Facilities 
agreement from the revenues of its water system. The District has agreed in its agreements to fix, prescribe and collect rates 
and charges for its water system which will be at least sufficient to yield each fiscal year's net revenues equal to 125% of the 
sum of (1) the payment required pursuant to the agreements, and (2) debt service on any existing participant obligation for which 
revenues are also pledged. 

On October 1, 1992, CCWA sold $177,120,000 in revenue bonds at a true interest cost of 6.64% to enable CCWA to finance a 
portion of the costs of constructing a water treatment plant to treat SVVP water for use by various participating water purveyors 
and users within Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties, local facilities needed to deliver such water to the participating 
water purveyors and users, and certain other local improvements to the water systems of some of the participating purveyors. In 
November 1996, CCWA sold $198,015,000 of revenue bonds at a true interest cost of 5.55% to defease CCWA's $177,120,000 
1992 revenue bonds and to pay certain costs of issuing the bonds. The 1996 bonds were issued in two series: Series A of 
$173,015,000 and Series B of $25,000,000. The Series B bonds are subject to mandatory redemption from amounts transferred 
from the Construction Fund and the Reserve Fund upon completion of the construction of the CCWA facilities. 

The District's current fiscal year State water project expense totaled $913,511. All of the District's disbursements were paid to the 
SLOFCD, which is obligated to pay to DWR and CCWA the District's proportionate share of costs to those agencies. 

The District also contracts with SLOFCD for an annual allocation of 303 acre feet of water from the Lopez project, issued voter-
approved general obligation bonds for the purpose of building Lopez Dam, a storage reservoir, water treatment plant, and other 
facilities to provide a primary municipal water supply. The District has entered into a water supply agreement wherein the District 
has agreed to pay annually, regardless of water deliveries, a prorated percentage of certain costs. In addition, the District also 
pays the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District a prorated share of operating, maintenance, 
pump_ ing, and related operating costs which are charge as an operating expense in the Water Fund. The District's current fiscal 
year San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District expense totaled $499,934. 

Sno nth San Luis Obispo County Sar~itation District 

The District does not own and operate a separate wastewater treatment plant facility. The Oceano Community Services District's 
waste is transported through District-owned and District-maintained lines for processing at the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District plant. 

Five Cities Fire Authorit 

The District is a member of the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA), a joint powers authority between the Cities of Arroyo Grande, 
Grover Beach, and the Oceano Community Services District. FCFA was formed on July 9, 2010, for the purpose of providing a 
more efficient fire protection service within the City limits of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach, as well as the towns of Oceano 
and Halcyon. Each member contributes its pro-rated share of operating costs to FCFA based on a funding formula calculated 
annually. In 2015, it was determined that adherence to the funding formula had not occurred in prior years. Any recalculation of 
prior year funding, and adjustments that may be made to remedy differences between actual funding and funding that would 
have adhered to the agreement establishing the joint powers authority is indeterminable at this time. 

The FCFA governing board consists of one member appointed from each participating entity and shall be appointed as 
determined by the respective City Council or Board of Directors. All financial decisions are made by this three-member board. 
The District contributed $1,138,148 to FCFA during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 for fire protections services. Separate 
financial statements may be obtained from the Five Cities Fire Authority at 140 Traffic Way in Arroyo Grande, California. 
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NOTE 9 —RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCIES 

Risk Mana~eq  ment  

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the California Association of Mutual Water 
Companies Joint Powers Risk and Insurance Management Authority (JPRIMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for small California water agencies. The purpose of the JPRIMA is to 
arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase the appropriate amount of insurance coverage. At June 
30, 2021, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the JPRIMA as follows: 

• General and auto liabilíty: The District has a $500 deductible for general and auto liability. The District purchased 
additional excess coverage layers: $5 million for general, auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on 
the insurance coverage noted above. 

• Employee dishonesty coverage and public officials' liability up to $1,000,000 per loss includes public employee 
dishonesty, forgery or alteration and theft, computer fraud coverages. 

• Property loss/Boiler and Machinery is paid based on the replacement cost or actual cash value for the property on file. If 
the property is replaced within two years after the loss or otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined 
total of $4 million subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence for most equipment. 

• Workers' compensation insurance provides coverage with aself-insured retention limit of $1 million for all work related 
injuries/illnesses covered by California law. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there were no reductions 
in the District's insurance coverage during the years ending June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019. Liabilities are recorded when it is 
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance 
coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (iBNR). There were no IBNR claims 
payable as of June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019. 

Legal Contingency 

In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of any pending litigation will not have an anticipated material 
effect on the City's financial statements as of June 30, 2021. 

Construction Contingency 

The District has no construction contingencies as of June 30, 2021. 

NOTE 10 —EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

General Fund: 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits $ 163,523 
Liability insurance 1,856 
Administrative services 6,132 
Data processing 1,422 
Street lighting 3,292 
Professional fees 1,301 
Interest expense 17,623 
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+t~CEA1~Q Ct~IVIMUNITY SERVICES C?ISTRICT 
GENERAL FIJNQ 
SC~EC~ULE CAF REVEè~C~ES, EPEL~ITURES, ACS C~iANGE Ill FlJl~ï~ BALA~lCE 
BÜC~GET Ai~C~ ACTUAL 
F®r the Fiscal Year Ended June 0, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

original Final Actual Amounts Positive 4Negative) 
Revenues: 

Taxes and assessments $ 1,095,680 $ 1,095,680 $ 1,132,291 $ 36,611 

Public facility fee 15,000 18,000 20,528 5,528 
I nteres# income 14, 959 14, 959 

Rental income 125,640 125,640 140,715 15,075 

other 3, 386 3, 386 10, 258 6, 87© 

Total revenues 1,239,706 1,239,706 1,318,749 79,043 

Expendi#ores: 
Salaries, wages, and director stipends 486,225 486,225 423,821 62,404 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 210,950 210 ,950 374,473 (163,523) 
Liability insurance 24,720 24,720 26,576 (1,856) 

Repairs and maintenance 21,750 28,313 20,451 7,862 
Adminis#native services 21 ,640 21 ,640 27,772 {6,132} 
?ata processing 16,565 16,565 17,987 {1,422} 

Cues and fees 25, 345 25, 345 21,633 3, 712 

Education 7,425 7,425 2,938 4,487 

Legal fees 96,000 96,000 53,072 42,928 

Miscellaneous 500 500 (888) 1,388 

office expense 11, 345 11, 345 5, 814 5, 531 

#teat lighting 30,000 30,000 33,292 (3,292} 

Professional fees 50,420 50,420 51,721 {1,301) 

U#i I hies 2, 985 25, 985 24, 002 1, 983 

Public safety 1,138,14$ 1,138,148 1,138,148 

+~api#al ou#lay 4,337 4,337 

l~~tere5t expeiï5e 17,623 (17,623) 

Total expenditures 2,167,018 2,177,918 2,238,435 {60,517) 

excess of revenues 

over {under} expendi#ores {927,312} {938,212} (919,686} 18,526 

other financing Sources {Uses) 

Transfers in 901,568 901,568 962,791 61,223 

Transfers out (113,940} {113,940) 113,940 

Total ether financing sources {uses) 787,628 787,628 962,791 175,163 

Diet change in fund balance {139,684) {150,584) 43,105 193,689 

Fund balance -July 1 725,438 725,438 725,438 

1=und balance -June 0 $ 585,754 $ 574,854 $ 768,543 $ 193,689 
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C)CEANt~ Ct~M~iIUNiTY SERVICES QISTRICT 
SOME©ULE CAF PRC~PC~RTIC~NATE SHARE ~}F NET PENSI©N LIABILITY 
Last 10 Years 
As of ,dune 80, 2021 

The following table provides required supplementary+ information regarding the Qistrict's Pension Plan. 

2021 
Proportion of the  ne#  pension liability 0.o07ú8% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 830,340 $ 

Covered payroll $ 643,779 $ 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

2020 2019 2018 2017 
0.00741 °I° 0.00715°l° 0.00704°I© 0.00692°I° 

759, 574 $ 689,459 $ 698,116 $ 598, 558 

577,089 $ 573,557 $ 544,352 $ 487,408 

as a percentage of covered payroll 128.98°I° 131.62% 120.21 °!° 128.25°l° 136.84°I© 

Plan's total pension liability $43,702,930,887 $ 41,426,453,489 $ 38,944,855,364 $ 37,161,348,332 $ 33,358,627,624 

Plan's fiduciary net position $32,822,501,335 $ 81,179,414,067 $ 29,808,589,559 27,244,095,376 $ 24,705,532,291 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 75.10°l° 78.28°I° 75.26°l° 73.31 °l° 74.06°l° 

2018 201 ~►  
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00649°~© 0.00676% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 445,280 $ 420,488 

Covered payroll $ 453,904 $ 812,044 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll 98.10°l° 134.74°!° 

Plan's total pension liability $ 81,771,217,402 $ 80,829,966,631 

Plan's fiduc;a ~ net position $ 24,907,805,871 $ 24,6o7,Jo2,518 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pCf Is1o1  i  ~~ability 78.40°,~° 79.82% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Changes in assum bons 
In 2018, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was reduced 
from 8.00 percent to 2.75 percent. 

In 2017, as part of the Asset Liability Management review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65°I° to 7.15°I°. 

In 2016, the discount rate was changed from 7.5°!° (net of administrative expensed to 7.65°I° to correct for an adjustment to exclude 
.. •- 

In 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to expected retirement ages of general employees 

~- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 

42 

Attachment - June 30, 2021 AuditPage 114 of 177



aEANa CaMI~lJ1dlTY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE CAF PES1~ CC~NTRISUTltS 
Last ~ 0 Years` 
As of June 30, 2021 

The fallowing table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Persian Plan. 

Cantractua!!y required contribution actuarially determined) 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess) 

Covered-employee pays!! 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

Cartractual(y required contribution ~actuaria(ly determined 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess 

Covered-employee pays!! 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payro!! 

Nt~fies fi~ Schedule 

2421 2~i24 2419 2418 2417 
~ 122, ~~~ ~~ 01,2 ~ 7 $ 83, 717 $ 73, 333 $ 85,457 

{954,271} ~101,217) {83,717} {73,333) (55,457) 
$ (831,706~ ~ - ~ - ~ - $ - 

~ 074, 882 ~ 043, 779 ~ 577, 089 ~ 573, 557 $ 544, 352 

141.40°~~ 15.72°l~ 14. 51 °IQ 12.79% 12.02°!~ 

241f 241fi 

52, 723~ {49, 702~ 
~ - ~ - 

~ 437,408 ~ 453,904 

12. 05°/© 10. 95°I© 

1~aluat~on Late: x/3412414 
~etuarial east method Entry AgP  (arrnal 
asset valuation method 5-gear smoothed r~tarket 
Amortization method The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amarti~ed 

aver an open 17 year period as a level percentage 
of payroll. 

Discount rate 7.50%, 
Payroll growth rate 3.00°l© 
Price inflation 2.75°!~, 
Salary increases 2.75°,~~ plus merit component based an employee 

classification and years of service 
li~ortality Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined (Viartality 

projected to 2010 using Scale AA with a 2 year 
setback for males and a 4 year setback far 
females. 

aJuatían gate: X1341241 
Discount Rate 7.05°,~~ 

1!aluatiQn Late: (1341241 ~ 
Discount Rate 7.375°le 

1laluatícan Date: fi13412417 
Discount Rate 7.150°l0 

Valuation Date: (1341241 ~ 
Payroll growth rate 2.75°,~~, 
Price inflation 2.50% 
Discount Rate: 7.00°I© 

~- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are spawn. 
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M~Ss, Lev~ ~ I-~artz:h~~r~r~ L,LP 
Certified Public Accauntants 

INI)EPE1~I)ENT AUD►ITC}RS' REP(JRT  

Board of Directors of t)ceano Community Services District 
(~ceano, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

e have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities and each major fund of the t~ceano 
Community Services District, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, wl~icll collectively 
comprise the ~3ceano Community Services District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Dceano Community Services District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective 
changes ïn financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government tI editing ~`tan~arc~s, issued by the Comptroller Creneral of the United States. Úur responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. VVe are required 
to be independent of the C~ceano Community Services District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ïs sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Dceano Cal~nmunity Services District's ability to col~tïnue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the 
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

(fur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and G©vernment 
Auditing "tandards will always detect a material misstatement when ït exists. The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govet~nment Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the {~ceana Community Services District's internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion ïs expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

2400 Professional Parkway, Suite 205 Santa Maria, CA 93455 Te1805.925.2579 Fax 805.925.2147 mihcpas.com  
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• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
~ceano Community Services District's ability to continue as a going Concern for a reasonable period of time. 

~e are required to Communicate with those Charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, 
significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Infarmation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of 
proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of pension Contributions be presented to supplement the basic f naneial statements. Sueh 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential  parí  of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical Context, VVe have applied certain ltmlted procedures to the required supplementary Information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which Consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for Consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. ale do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

tJther Reporting Required by ~©vernment Ar~diting Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 22, 2023, on our Consideration of the ~ceano 
Community Services District's internal Control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with Certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, Contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal Control 
over financial reporting and Compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
Compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with G©vernment Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal Control over financial reporting and Compliance. 

Santa 11~aria, California 
June 22, 2023 
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Oceano Community Services District 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 

The management of the CJceana Community services Distr'ct {Distr~ict~ has prepared the 
fallowing narrative for ~e readers of the Distr~icl's frnancial statements to provide an overview 
and analysis of the  Distret  far the year ending June fig, ~Q. The District encourages readers 
to consider the information together with the District's frnancial statements fallowing this section. 

The District is an independent special district serving a population of approximately 7,gg. The 
District is governed by a five { member Board of Directors elected by voters within the 
District's boundaries, all Beard members must reside within the District's boundaries. The 
District is governed by California government Code Bections ~~ ggg et al, as well as ether 
specific statutes and regulations that govern its operations. 

The District provides bath governmental-type activities and enterprise activities. governmental 
activities include ire protection services, street lighting, and recreation. Enterprise activ~lies 
include water service, wastewater collection service, ar~d gar~aage and recycling services. 

~ . _ „_.~_~,.„_ . . 
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The following provides a brief overview of each of the District's services: 
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The Distr~ica pays a portion of the annual costs of FC~A services based on funding formula 
established in the CFA agreement, which was modified in ~e third amendment. The JPA 
amendments were needed for several reasons, including amulti-year implementation of the 
FC~`A "Strategic Plan." The "Strategic Plan" includes increased staffing and services levels 
greater than those provided in the existing JPA. The amendments included spec~ic approval of 
each members annual costs during the implementation per~ic~d and required either a alien 
initiative or Distr'~ initiated special tax measure to be placed on the g primary ballot. The 
increase in the District .casts during the implementation period was funded from reserves to the 
extent that the costs exceed properly tax revenues retived by CBD. The amendments 
required the District to call for a special tax election on the March g2g ballot for voters to 

~ 
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consider approving additional funding so that the District could continue to participate as ~ 
member of the FCFA. Can larch , X020, Leasure A-~~ reeived ~. ~1~% support, which was 
1 ~ votes short of passage. The third amendment to the FCFA JPA was approved on June 24, 
202o which extended the agreement for an additional t~~vo years and required the District to 
provide the community another opportunifiy to consider additional funding via a June 2022 ballot 
measure. n Juno 7, 2022 Leasure A- was planed on ~e ballot by the Beard of Directors 
and failed with 7.~% support. The District's membership in the FCFA will cease on July 1, 
2023. The District has initiated proceedings through LAFC~ to divest of its Fire Protection  
Servies  power and turn the responsibility over to the County of Ban Luis obispo. Tie 
divestiture prows will continue past July 1, 2023, and the District will have to provide Dire 
Protection Services until that process concludes. The District approved an agreement with 
FCFA to contract far services in the amount of ~ ,1 o,000 for the fiscal year 2o23I24. 

~ .~ ~ . - +~ - ~ - ~ +~ ,~ ! ~ • +~ ~ ~ . ~ +r ~r ,. ,~ i ~ ,~ ,~ _ ,~ ,; _ ~ ~, ~ 
,~-~,- ,~- - ~,-~. - - ~ ~ ~• . -~► +~ - s ~►  +~ - ~ . ~ 
~► . ~ . ~►  - - . +~ - - - ~ - i  - - - ,~ ,~ - - ,~ - • . -  

Lighting  Servies  

The District provides street lighting services in certain areas of the community. The County of 
San Luis Obispo and the California Depa►tment of Transportation also provide some street 
lighting. 

Parks and Recreation Services 

The District is authorized to provide parks and recreation services, however, currently has no 
~arograms at this time other than those implemented by Lucia Mar Unified School District 
(LMUSD). The District holds a lease with LMUSD for the Oceano Community Center and as 
part of the lease requirements LMUSD utilizes the community center for recreation programs. 
There is a section in the lease where the District may also utilize the community center. 
Currently the District offers individuals the opportunity to utilize the Oceano Community Center 
for up to 10 hours per month and 120 hours per year with discounted fees. 

Water Services 

The District provides water service to approximately 2,20o connections. An annual Consumer 
Con~denc Report ~CCR) is mailed to all water customers pr©viding a summary of the District's 
water quality including a comparison to regulatory requirements. The California State Division 
of Drinking Water regulates the District's water supplies and the CCR can be found on the 
District website or by calling the District office. 

The District's water supplies include groundwater, Lopes water and State water. Regulation of 
the District's groundwater supply is also subject to the stipulations and judgment adapted for the 
adjudication of the Santa Maria groundwater basin. Lopes and State water supplies are 
provided by the County of San Luis Obispo under terms of water supply contracts. The 

~ 
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C~ist~ct's water supply reliabili~~r is relatively high, and the [district had been increasing water in 
storage during the recent drought. Nevertheless, the need to address water supply reliability 
continues and contract amendments far the state vvater Project are being developed by the 
state C~epartment of Water Resources and, separately, contract amendments far the Lopez 
Labe water supply were adapted by local agencies in August 2822 to establish water storage 
rights and enhance multi-year water resource planning. 

A water rate increase was approved by the Board an C~ctaber 14, 2820. The rate increase 
provided funding for ongoing operations, capital improvement projects, and minimum reserves. 
The rate increase will be phased in over f  ve  years. 

vvastewater ollectian services 

The District provides wastewater collection servs~.es through a network of neighborhood 
pipelines that flow into pipelines and facilities owned by the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District (SSLOCSD), which is responsible for treatment and disposal. The 
SSLOCSD customers include the customers of the District as well as those of the cities of 
Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach. Since the District does not control the operations of 
SSLOCSD, the financial statements and audit of the SSLOCSD are separate from the District. 
District operations are regulated by the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

solid 1~vaste and Recycling  servides  

The C~istrict provides mandatary solid waste and recycling services through a franchise 
agreement with south bounty sanitary services Incorporated (BC~BB Inca, which is a 
subsidiary of Waste connections Incorporated, a publicly traded corporation "t~vN" an the Flew 
lr orb stag Bcha~ ~~~. In 2020 the Boars adapted a r~:olutia~r ~o ~~u~ ~~ ~e ~~~~ar ~c~~.1i~e fee * s ~ 4_ ~~ ~ 

payment from BBs from ~0°l~ to % to reduce the customers' util~Y bills. The C~istrict enforces 
illegal dumping within the dommuni~y and other violations. The C~ïstr~ct has also adopted 
incentive programs designed to promote a cleaner community. singe ~e ~istr~ict does not 
control operations of s or VvN, the f nancial statements and audits of those entities are 
separate from the C~istrict. 

s . . , . _ . ~ . . . 

This annual report contains the following five parts. 

• Management Discussion and Analysis (this section) 
• The Basic Financial Statements 
• Notes to the Financial statements 

supplementary Information - a comparison of the C~istrict's budgets to actual results 
• supplementary Infor~~ation on Pension C~isclosures 

This management discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the most 
relevant inforr~nation affecting the C~istrict's financial affairs for the year and the [district's end of 
the year status. The basic financial statements provide information on the governmental and 
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enterprise activities including operating and non-aperatir~g revenues and e~cpenditures, current 
assets, nc~r~-current assets, capital assets, deferred eu~evvs cif res~► urces, current and  Iang-term 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional detailed information and explanations 
on the financial statements. The budget to actual comparison illustrates differences bet~n~een 
the beard adopted budget and actual revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance in 
the general fund. The current year reflects a positive budget variance of ~ 65,653 for the 
governmental Fund. ~}f this amount, 1 g,g96 was utilised to repay a portion of an interfund 
loan owed by the governmental l=and to the sewer Fund. 

~r . . . ~ . . . . . . . . ~,.  

The C~istrict's statements of Net Bosition is illustrated below for the governmental and 
Business-type Activities, and subsequently, for each of the Enterprise Funds. 

statements of Net Pos~ti©n as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 

overnrr~ental Activities Business-type Activities 

2022 2021 2022 2021 

current and tither ~~ts 1,041,205 $ 815,053 4,012,889 3,074,131 
ca ital Assets, net 1,655,130 1,732,123 2,433,432 2,626,346 

Total Assets 2,696, 335 2, 547,176 6,446, 321 5, 700,477 

C~eferred ~utfl©w of resources 293,318 218,945 761,52 838,249 

current Liabilities 40,743 79,676 155,018 335,451 
den-current Liabilities 14,9►89 269,3 868,896 1,515,177 

Total Liabilities 184,723 348,713 1,611,818 1,850,528 

CJeferred 1 nflow of Res©u roes 131, 790 5, 359 341, 595 20, 516 

Net lnvestrr~ent in capital Assets 1,655,130 1,732,123 2,574,719 2,626,346 

l~est~cted 205, 830 274, 079 41,412 41, 091 

Unrestricted 812, 686 405,847 3, 238, 339 2, 000,145 

Net P©sib©n $ 2.673,640 ~4 4 x,854.470 ~ x.667,5$2 

~ . 
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The Net Position of the Business-type Activities remained consistent with the previous year. 

~tatements flf l~let Pc~s~ian as c~f June ~0, 2022 and 202~ 

~1Vater Fund 1l~astewater Fund ~arbac~e Fund 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 

~ur~ent and C~therAssets $2,738,253 $1,922,336 ~ 1,276,435 $1,247,037 $ 237,349 ~ 326,463 

~a ~tal AssetS, net 1, 520, 265 1,470, 395 1, 054,1 ~ 1 1,1 ~, 632 883 1,419 

Tatal Assets 4, 268, 518 8, 392, 731 2, 830, 556 2, 401, 669 237, 682 327, 882 

~eferred OuÏ~14W flf I~es~urCeS 486,108 509,462 248,064 288,614 32,400 40,178 

~ur~ent Liabilities 230,127 860,184 21,965 18,888 31,386 42,656 
l~c~r~-~urrent Liabili~es 840,602 1,306,898 265,178 512,254 0 31,553 

iOtal L~ab~lities 1,070, 729 1,667,082 290,138 581,142 81, 388 74,109 

C}eferred I nfl©w ©f l~esgu rces 218, 041 12,469 109, 021 7, 064 14, 533 983 

l~let ~nvestrnent ~n ~a Ital Assets 1,620,265 1,470,895 1,054,121 1,154,532 833 1,419 

ReSt~cted 41,412 41,091 - - - - 

~ n restr~etted 1, 894,179 711,156 1,120, 330 997, 445 223, 830 291, 544 

l~et ~t~sltl0n 45 ~ 2;222,642 2174 4 1 21 1 77 224 ~~~ ~292,963 

FOIIC~V1/~nC~ t~le ~~Strl~t'S Statement~ Of ~et ~~}~It1t~n I~ t~le Statement c~f AC;t~Vit~e~. 
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In summary, the Governmental Activities went from a net income of $67,071 to a net income of 
$261,591 in 2022. The increase in net position is from the decrease in compensated absences 
(accrued leave) and the Districts employer pension contributions vs accrual-basis pension 
costs in CaIPERS (GASB 68 reporting). 

The Business-type Activities went from a net loss for the prior fiscal year of $179,324 to a net 
income of $1,186,888. The increase is from the employer pension contributions vs accrual-
basis pension costs in CaIPERS (GASB 68 reporting). The Enterprise Funds are broken out by 
fund in the table below. 
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The increase in ~` ~~ net income in the ~~~ater Fund reflects t~ rate rn~rease to * ~ e A~"~~~r 
revenues that went into place October ~ and the increase from the employer pension 
contributions vs accrual-basis pension costs in caIPBF {AB ~~ reporting). The new rate 
structure has established financial stability and funds for long-terra capital improvement plans 
and minimum reserves. 

The Wastewater Fund incurred a net income of $22,474 this year. This was from the employer 
pension contributions vs accrual-basis pension costs (GASB 68 reporting). The wastewater 
fund received approximately $102,000 from the General Fund loan repayment to help cover the 
cost of the deficit which will end June 30, 2023. A Proposition 218 rate increase process will 
then be needed to close the structural deficit. 

The garbage Fund's net deficit increased from the prior year because in 20o the Board 
adopted a resolution to reduce the franchise fee payment from ~ from 10% to 5°/© to 
reduce the casts to customers and draw down reserves in the garbage Fund. Then in June 
~~ the Board voted to use garbage Fund reserves for 's scud waste retroactive 

charges for the perk May 02 to ,June 30, 0~, +durincg the rate increase proposed by SIBS. 
The District continues to move forward on ~e Solid 1~Vaste Programs adopted by the Board on 
February ~, X017. T~ese programs include policies to address illegal dumping, unsanitary 
conditions, and related solid waste problems in the District. 
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The District owns the community fire station, administrative offices, Sheriffs substation the 
former fire station, and some undeveloped land. The community fire station is provided to 
FCFA for their use for $15,000 per year. The Sheriff substation is leased to the County of San 
Luis Obispo for $113,400 per year. The Oceano Depot and Community Center are leased to a 
non~ovemmental agency, and the Lucia Mar Unified School District at $1 per year each based 
on the multi-party agreements developed for those properties in conjunction with grants that 
funded the development of the community center and the preservation of the historic Oceano 
train depot. 

The water a~ ïd wast~~at~r infrastructure of the District ranges drasti Ily in age. zany of the 
water and wastewater system pipelines were originally constructed in the 1 goo's. The District 
completed water and wastewater system master plans in Moog but revenue sho~alls have 
deferred infrastructure replacement projects. The District completed an updated water system 
capital improvement program for infrastructure replacement, which was substantially funded 
with grants approved by the `Mate of California. The 02o water rates include funds for long-
term capital improvement plans starting with 75,00o in 0 and ~ 0,00o each year 
thereafter. 

i~ebt Act~vi~es 

on June ~ , 0~ ,the District entered into a financing agreement with First Foundation Bank 
after issuing a "Request for Proposals" RFP'} to purchase the District's outstanding California 
Public employees' Retirement SyS~tem CaIBrS~ Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL; or the 
"CaIPBRS UAL repayment Project." The District holds a contract with CaIPErS and is 
required to make contributions to end pension benefrts for miscellaneous employees, safety 
employees and amortise a portion of the UAL. The total UAL as of June o, o 1 for the 
District's miscellaneous plan and safety plan was 8,74. The Board adopted Resolution 
20 ~ -~ to proceed with ref nancing the UAL balances under these plans to bring the funding 
status of ~ese plans to 100% funded and to enhance budget predictability by "smoothing" out 
the UAL payment structure aver the nest 1 ~ years and to provide cash flow savings to the 
District. The District received t~n~o bids and looked in an interest rate of 3.48°l©. By lowering the 
interest rate, this will result in a total Dash flow savings of ~8,80o through June 0, 203. The 
f nano agreement pledged the revenues of the water and Wastewater Funds. An interf~und 
agreement was also established from the general {17.5°l©} and garbage {8.5°/a} Funds to pay 
back the Water and Wastewater Funds for the payment of the UAL obligation. The interf~nd 
agreement is budgeted to be paid off in FY X028-~4. The principal and interest payments to 
First Foundation Bank will range between !68,00o and 8,00o until August ~ , 2085. 

Internal debt, or borrowing between District funds, is mare significant. Iilote #3 to the Financial 
Statements illustrates interrund liabilities. During the year ending June 0, 2022, the District 

~~ 
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recorded the interrund transfers en the fallowing page to adhere tc~ reselutic~ns adapted April 2~, 
~~ 7, to ensure repayment of interf~und liabil~ies. 

lnterfund {C~ue t~} / Beginning lnterfund Interfund Ending 
C}ue Fr©m Balances -- Transfers ~ut Transfers ln Balances -- 

Jul 1, 2921 June ~~, 2922 
~eneral Fund C~ue t© 

~ 97 392 
~ ~ `* ~ C~2 ~~~ ~ -~- ,~j 95 29 ~~ `~ ~ Sewer Fund ! j 9 1 

~eneral Fund C}ue fr©m 
Water Fund 355, ~ 14 -~- ~ 1, 3~5 335,~449  

plet  ~eneral Fund C}ue t0 ~~9 ,~~~ 
, 1 Q2 ~~~ ~ 31 355 , 24g ~ 53 , ~her Funds 

eater Fund l~ue t® tlle 
~ 
3~ ~~ 4 

~ 
~ 1 355 - Ú- 

~ 
335 44~9 

~ ~eneral Fund ' ' ' 
1lVater Fund l~ue  te  

~~3, ~ 81 } 7',~9~ - ~ - ~15,~9~) 
~ar~a e 1=und 
Bewer Fund C~ue from 

~ 97 392 - a- 1 C~2 09~ 95 295 ~eneral Fund , , , 
~ar~age Fund ~ue fr©m 

23 ~ 3 ~ - C~ - 7 ~49 ~ 15 ~90 
1lVater 1= and , , , 

Tetals ~ - fl - ~ ~ 4C~,952 ~ ~ 49,952 ~ - 9 _ 

:..~.~.- 

,~ ~ _ , ,~ ,~ i # _ ,.~ ~ ~ ~ s ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _ ~ _ _ _ ~ ~ _ _ ! . ~ . . 
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With the approval of the 2020 rate increase, the District established fiscal stability and funds for  
capdal  improvement projects and minimum reserves. The increase began in November 2020 
and will be phased in over five years. The District has secured approximately $4,241,090 in 
grants from state agencies for the water system and related needs. 

14 
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o rate changes affected the wastewater fund far the fiscal year ending June 30, ~C~~. The 
fallowing shows the running deficit of the fewer Fund: 

. -. . ~- 
~ ~ ~~ ~ # 
~ . ~ ~ ~'~ 
~ . ~ ~ +~ 
u : •.. 
~ : ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

t ~ ~ . _ !~ ~ ~ ~r 

~ ~ ~ 

The operating revenue far the sewer fund needs to be addressed in the future. In addition, 
addressing deferred infrastructure needs of the sewer fund will also became a higher priority, 
which will require sewer fund rate increases in the near future. 

n increase of ~1.a°I© in garbage rates far the Inc. were approved on June ~, g22, and 
inflationary adjustments went into effect on January ~ , g2~ and January ~ , fl~4. on January 

gg, the Eoard approved a decrease to the franchise fee from 1 g°l~ to ~% to reduce 
customers' garage bills. 

~~.~ture a~tloc~~  

overall, the C3istrict's finar~~ial o~.~t~oa has maintained a relatively stable shorfi-te pasiti~an 
during the year ending Jane fig, g the primary enterprise fund challenges relate to 
deferred infrastructure repairs and replacement in the water and wastewater systems. 
currently, the C~istrict is evaluating deferred infrastructure needs and is utilising grants obtained 
from the Mate of California far much of this effort. Identifying casts and rate impacts to fund the 
deferred infrastructure were completed in gg and the new water rates sat aside funds for 
Zang-tarrr~ cpit#aI projects. fihe  futura  of the f re depart~~nent's operation will also ba a 
significant C~istrict effort in the future. 

~~ 
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C~CEANC~ CtJIUI~IUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
STATEi1~E~#T flF ~iET PflSITIflN 
June 30, 2022 

G©vernmental Business-type 
Activities Activities T©ta! 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments ~ 549,249 $ 2,736,674 ~ 3,285,923 
Restricted cash and investments 200,888 200,868 

Accounts receivable, net 5,962 588,666 594,628 
Prepaid items 40,337 204,322 244,659 

Deposits 16, 796 16, 796 

Inventory 27,176 27,176 

internal balances 93,686 (93,686) 

Net pension asset 151,103 391,654 542,757 

Capital assets: 

lion Depreciable: 
Land 610,390 6,000 616,390 

Construction in progress 141,287 141,287 

depreciable: 

Buildings and improve~~er~ts 2,088,370 7,589,767 9,678,137 

Equipment, vehicles and machinery 435,679 888,866 1,324,545 
Software 195,918 195,918 

Accumulated depreciation X1,479,309) (6,247,119} (7,726,428} 

Total assets 2,696,335 6,446,321 9,142,656 

DEFERRED t~UTFLOIIV ©F RESt~URCES 

Deferred pensions 293,818 761,562 1,055,380 

Total deferred outflow of resources 293,818 761,562 1,055,380 

LIABI LtT1 ES 

Accounts payable 12,793 35,046 47,839 

Accrued wages and benefits 15,955 7,856 23,811 

Deposits 2,500 111,591 114,091 

Unearned revenue 9,495 525 10,020 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 35,995 52,200 88,195 

Due in more than one year 107,955 804,600 912,585 

Total liabilities 184,723 1,011,818 1,196,541 

©EFERRE© 1WFLt~W (JF RESt)URCES 
Deferred pensions 131,790 341,595 473,385 

Total deferred inflow of resources 131,790 341,595 473,385 

NET PC)SITI©N 
Net investment in capital assets 1,655,130 2,574,719 4,229,849 

Restricted for: 

Capital facilities 205,830 205,830 

Water joint venture agreement 41,412 41,412 
Unrestricted 812,680 3,238,339 4,051,019 

Total net position $ 2,673,640 $ 5,854,470 ~ 8,528,110 

The notes to basic financial s#atements are an integral part of this s#a#emen#. 

13 
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QCEANt~ CtJM~tIUNITY SERVICES aISTRICT 
STATEMENT ~JF ACTIVlTlES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3~}, 2~I22 

Pr©gram Revenues 
Qperating Capital 

Charges f©r C©ntributi©ns C©ntributi©ns 
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

Governmental activities: 

Administration $ 886,911 $ - ~ - $ 7,878 

Fire protection 1,147,837 

Street lighting 29,241 

Total governmental activities 1,863,989 7,878 

Business-type activities: 

Water 1,53fl,537 2,844,837 295,464 

Sewer 5fl,382 394,287 12,741 

Garbage 71,886 52,896 

Total business-type activities 1,852,645 3,230,944 384,697 

Total governmental 3,518,594 3,234,944 $ 364,697 ~ 7,878 

General Revenues and Transfers: 

Taxes: 

Property 
Use of money and property 
C3ther general revenues 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

change iii i~et position 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year 

Net position -end ©f fiscal year 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Net {Expenses) Revenue and Changes ïn Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Actïvïties Total 

~ {679,033} $ - $ {679,033) 

{1,147,837) {1,147,837) 

{29, 241) {29, 241 } 

(1,856,111) {1,866,111) 

1, 605,164 1,6105,160 

352,626 352,626 

(18,794) {18,790) 

1, 938, 996 1, 938, 996 

(1, 856,111) 1, 938, 996 82, 885 

1,182, 885 1,182, 885 

150, 949 12,165 163,114 

8, 713 1 t, 882 19, 595 

ií5,155 (775,155) 

2,117,702 (752,108) 1,365,594 

261,59 ~ 1,186,888 1,448,4íg 

2,412,049 4,667,582 í,t79,631 

$ 2,673,641 $ 5,854,470 $ 8,528,110 

~5 
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C3~EA~fo ~oNiMUNITY SERVI~ES [~IST~ICT 
G~VER~I~IERlTAL FlJ~la 
BA~.Ah~~E SHEET 
,J u  ne  30, 2022 

General 

Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 

Restricted cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid items 
Advances receivable 

Total assets 

~YABf~..OT~ES ,r~al\~ ~~1~ ~Ai~AV~ 

~.iab~lltleS: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll and benefits 

deposits 

Unearned revenue 
Úue to other Bands 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaid items 

Advances receivable 

Restricted: 

capital facilities 

Assigned: 

Infrastructure replacement 

Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 549, 249 

200, 808 

5, 902 

40, 337 

335,461 

$ 1,131,877 

~ ~ 2,793 

15, 955 

2,500 

9,495 

241, 775 

282,51 S 

40, 337 

335,451 

205, 330 

132,58 

135,073 

849, 359 

$ 1,131,877 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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capital assets at historical Bost $ 3, ~ 34,439 

Accumulated depreciation {1,479,349} 

~  . t 

. ~ . 

~~EAIVC~ ~C~Ni~UNITY SERVICES C3ISTRI~T 
RECÚN~ILIATIt~N CJF THE ~~}VERNMENTAL FUNS -BALANCE SHEET 
TC.~ THE STATEMENT CAF NET PC}SlTIC~N 
June 30, 222 

Total fund balance -governmental fund $ 849, 359 

In the governmental fund, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, 
all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation. 

Long-term liabilities: In the governmental fund, only current liabilities are reported. In the 
statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. 

bong-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

compensated absences payable 

Net pension liability {asset}  
$ 143, 984 

(151,143) 

 

Tota I 

 

~ 

In the governmental fund, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions 
are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement 

of net position, deferred outflows of X293,818 and inflows of resources of {131,794) 

relating to pensions are reported. 

Total net position -governmental activities 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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aCEAfVO ~Ct~► fVffUfUf~fTY SErVf~ES Df~i'rf~1' 
G{JVERNMENTAL FUND 
STATEMENT ~F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3C}, 2ú22 

General 
Fund 

revenues: 
Taxes and assessoren#s 

Public facility fee 
In#eres# income 
Rental income 
C~#her 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Salaries, gages and dirertars° s#ipends 
Payroll #axes and employee benefi#s 

Liabili#y insurance 

Repairs and maintenance 

Adminis#rative services 

Data processing 

Dues and fees 

Education 

Legal fees 
Miscellaneous 

Office expense 

Street ligh#ing 

Professional fees 

Utili#ies 
Public safe#y 

Interest expense 

Ta#al expenditures 

Excess of revenues aver {under) expendi#ores 

Qther Financing S©urces (Uses}: 
Transfers in 

Total ether financing sources {uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance -July 1 

Fund balance -June 39 

The  nates  #a basic financial s#atenients are an integral part of this stateoren#. 
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~ 1, ~ 82,885 
7,87$ 

1 Q,999 
14a, 940 

8,713 

1,359,425 

~ • 
.~ • 
~ . 
. , 
,~ 11 ' 

: • •' 

: .• 
... 

. ~ . 
. . 

: . 
: ~~~ 

~~. 

: ~~ 
;~. 

2,044, d ~ad~ 

{594, 339} 

775,155 

775,155 

80,816 

758,543 

$ 849, 359 
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oCEANo Coi1~NIUNITY SERVICES [DISTRICT 
I~ECt~NCIL.IATIC~N of THE ~C~VERNII~ENTAL FUND STATEi1~ENT ~F 
fEVENCIES, E,~PENC~ITURES, ANC} CHANGES IN F~1N~ BALANCE 
T~} THE STATEIViENT GF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Total net change in fund balance -governmental fund 

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental fund as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions to capital 
outlay of $6 are less than depreciation expense {76,998) in the period. 

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 

earned during the fiscal year. In the governmental fund, however, expenditures for 
these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used {essentially 
the amounts paid. This fiscal year, vacation earned exceeded the amounts used 
by 13, 7~t~. 

$ 80,816 

{76, 993) 

In the governmental fund, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. 
In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This 
year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 

contributions was: 271,508 

Changes in net position -governmental activities ~ 261,591 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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~CEANC} CC}MMUIVITY SERVICES aISTRICT 
PRt~PR1EiARY FUf~aS 
SiAiE11~E1~IT {~F NEi Pf~S1i1C~N 
June 30, 2(J22 

Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments $ 1,fi21,338 $ 937,266 $ 178,47© $ 2,736,674 

Accounts receïvable, net 522,541 57,756 8,369 588,666 

Prepaid expenses 185,765 18,557 244,322 

Inventory 24,637 2,539 27,176 

Due from other funds 117,182 153,877 15,694 286,749 

Total current assets 2,471,463 1,151,438 220,686 3,843,587 

Noncurrent assets: 

Net pension asset 249,994 124,997 16,fifi3 391,654 

Join# venture deposits 1 6,796 1 6,796 

Nara depreciab#e capital assets: 

Land 6,044 6,4fl4 

Construction in progress 141,287 141,287 

Depreciable capita# assets: 

Buildings and improvements 4,827,724 2,762,447 7,589,767 

Equipment, vehic#es and machinery 573,228 294,662 20,976 888,866 

Softwrare 156,734 39,184 195,918 

Accumu#ated depreciation {4,184,744) {2,441,772) (2fl,643) (6,247,119) 

Total noncurrent assets 1,787,455 1,179,118 16,996 2,983,169 

Total assets 4,258,518 2,334,556 237,682 6,826,756 

®EFERRE® ÚUTF~GIN'~ GF RESOURCES 

Qeferred pensions 486,148 243,054 32,444 761,562 

Total deferred outf#ows of resources 486,148 243,454 32,444 761,562 

LiABIL1TIES 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 31,182 2,231 1,633 35,446 

Accrued wages and benefïts 5,576 1,8  i i  469 7,856 

Deposits 111, 591 111, 591 

Unearned revenue 525 525  

Que  to other funds 15,694 29,284 44,974 

Advances payable-current portion 31,286 31,286 

Taxable revenue bond obligation -current poríion 34,802 17,398 52,24fl 

Total current Gobi#hies 234,127 21,965 31,386 283,478 

Noncurrent liabi#hies: 

Advances payable -non-current portion 344,175 344,175 

Taxab#e revenue bond obligation -non-current portion 536,427 268,173 844,6flfl 

Total noncurrent liabilities 844,642 268,173 1,148,775 

Total IiabiGtïes 1,474,729 294,138 31,386 1,392,253 

QEFERRE© INFL©WS flF RESOURCES 

Deferred pensions 218,441 149,fl21 14,533 341,595 

Total deferred inflows of resources 218,441 149,421 14,533 341,595 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 1,52fl,265 1,454,121 333 2,574,719 

Restricted 41,412 41,412 

Unrestricted 1,894,179 1,12fl,33fl 223,834 3,238,339 

Total net position $ 3,455,856 $ 2,174,451 $ 224,163 ~ 5,854,474 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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oCEANo COMiV1U~lITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PRC)PRIETARY FUN©~ 
STATEMENT of REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANA CHANGES IN NET PC)SITION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Water Sewer Garbage 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

©pera#ing Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 2,840,837 $ 390,267 $ - $ 3,230,904 

4#her fees 153,773 12,741 52,896 219,410 

Total operating revenues 2,994,410 403,008 52,896 3,450,314 

©perating Expenses: 

Salaries and wages 151,298 72,098 17,096 240,492 

Payroll taxes and employee benefits (307,388) (201,288) (9,171) (517,825} 

Repairs and maintenance 17,449 51,730 9,426 78,805 

legal and professional 93,002 8,102 8,306 107,410 

Dues and fees 12,578 4,912 17,490 

Education 4, 052 2, 524 9, 980 16, 556 

!!!later meters 22,981 22,981 

Wheeled water expense 22,025 22,025 

office expense 574 309 226 1,109 

Supplies 13,837 3,489 17,126 

Utilities 41, 302 1,471 633 43,406 

Water supply expense 1,330,393 1,330,393 

Administration 38,105 36,105 

Depreciation 115,207 100,411 1,085 216,703 

Total operating expenses 1,517,132 43,758 71,886 1,832,576 

operating income (loss} 1,477,278 359,25© {18,790) 1,817,738 

N©n-©pare#ing Revenues {Expenses: 
Grant income 141,287 141,287 

Interest income 321 11, 844 12,165 

Interest expense (13,405) (8,824) (20,029} 

other non-operating revenue 10,762 120 1©,882 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 138,985 5,340 144,305 

Income before transfers 1,616,243 364,590 (18,790) 1,982,043 

Transfers: 

Transfers in 1,806 901 2,707 

Transfers (out} (384,835} (342,118} (50,911) {777,862} 

Tote! transfers {383,029) (342,116) {50,010) {775,155) 

Change in net position 1,233,214 22,474 (68,800) 1,186,888 

Net position -July 1 2,222,842 2,151,977 292,963 4,667,582 

Net position -June 30 $ 3,455,858 $ 2,174,451 $ 224,163 $ 5,854,470 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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C~CEANC) C~f~~l1UNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PR{~PRIETARY FUI~iDS 
STATEII~ENT OF CASH FLC)V~iS 
F©r the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2422 

Cash Flaws From Operating Activities: 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities 

Cash Flaws Fr©m Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash FI®ws from N®ncapital Financing Activities: 

Grants received 

Transfers from {to} other funds 

Interfund interest paid 

Principal paid on loan payable 

Interest paid on loan payable 

C?ther revenue 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital fïnancing activities 

Cash Flaws From Investing Activities: 

Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1 
Cash and cash equivalents -June 30 

Reconciliatïon to Statement of ~~et position: 

Cash and investrr~ents 

i/l/ater Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

$ 2,795,124 $ 405,266 $ 37,129 $ 3,237,519 

{1,653,389} {71,136} (79,876} {1,844,395} 

{264,223} {74,926} {34,694} {373,843} 

877,512 259,210 (77,441 } 1,059,281 

{165,076} (165,076} 

{ 165, 076} (165, 076) 

98,678 96,678 

{412,209} (235,187) {44,944} {692,340} 

{156) {156} 

{32,802} (16,398) {49,200} 

{13,249} (6,624} {19,873} 

10,762 120 10,882 

{350,976} {258,089} {44,944} {654,009) 

320 11, 844 12,164 

320 11, 844 12,164 

361,780 12,9015 {122,385] 252,360 

1,259,558 924,301 300,455 2,484,314 

$ 1,621,338 $ 937,2601 $ 178,070 $ 2,736,674 

$ 1,821,338 $ 937,260 $ 178,070 $ 2,736,874 

{Continued} 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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oCEANo COI~iII~lf~1NITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
PROPRIETARY Fl~NDS 
STATEII~ENT ©F CASH FLQWS {Continued} 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3C~, 2t~22 

Water Sewer Garbage 

Fund Fund Fund Totals 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided {used] by operating 

activities: 

operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Depreciation expense 

Change in assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and deferred outflows of resources: 

Receivables, net 
Prepaid expenses 

Inventories 

Joint venture deposits 

Deferred outflows 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Deposits 

Unearned revenues 

Net pension liability (asset) 

Deferred inflows 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

~ 1,477,278 $ 359,250 ~ (18,790) $ 1,817,738 

115,207 100,411 1,085 216,703 

(104,995) 2,258 (5,767) (108,504) 

(1©7,125 j (18,332) (125,457) 

(1,484) (623} (2,107} 

(203) {203) 

23,354 45,560 7,773 76,687 

13,416 2,030 1,132 16, 578 

918 47 124 1,089 

(94,291) (94,291) 

(10,000) (10,000) 

{650,135) (351,68©) (48,216) (1,050,031) 

205,572 101,957 13,550 321,©79 

~ 877,512 ~ 259,210 ~ (77,441) ~ 1,059,281 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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O~EANO CO11~~UIUNITY SERVICES [)!lSTRiCT 
R1~TES TC} THE BASIC FII~A~ICIAL STATEMENTS 
J #J N E 30, 0~ 

NOTE 1 -- SlitUtNtARY OF tGN1FtCANT ACCOUNTING PO~ICtES 

A. The Financial Reporting Entity 

The Oceano Community Services District {"the District") is a multipurpose special district established on January 1, 
1981. The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and operates under a Board of Directors. The 
District provides water, wastewater, street lighting, and garbage franchise services. 

The District complies with the U. S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAP) and all relevant Government 
Accounting Standards Board {GABS) pronouncements. These technical pronouncements establish criteria for 
determining the District's activities and functions that are included in the financial statements of a governmental unit. 
The proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB} Accounting Standards Codification {ABC) 
unless those principles conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case LASS prevails. There are no 
component units included in this report which mee# the criteria of GASB Statement too. 14 as amended by LASS 
Statements loo. 39, ~1, 80, and 99. 

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

tin the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both governmental and business-type 
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item "b" below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic resources" 
measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds are accounted for using a "current financial resources" measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on their balance sheets. Their 
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. 
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. All proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this 
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position {or cost recovery), financial 
position, and cash flows. All assets and all liabilities whether current or non-currents associated with the operation 
of these funds are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both governmental and business-type 
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-life transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and available." Measurable 
means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period 
or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District defines available to be within Q days of fiscal year-end. 
Expenditures {including capital outlay} are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on long term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to 
the extent that they have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds for governmental long-term debt and acquisitions under leases are reported as other 
f nancing sources. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual include taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges for services. 
Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities. 

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the District may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block 
grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position are available to finance program 
expenditures. The District's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general 
revenuesrf necessary. 
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OCEANO COfl~i~lUN1TY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE C~, 2C~ 

NOTE 1 — SU~IIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. usis  of ACCounting~Continued} 

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset is used. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. {operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund's principal revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
District's policy to use restricted resources f rst, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Basis of Presentation 

G©vemment-wide Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District. These s#atements 
include the financial activities of the overall District government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
counting of internal activities. Government ac#ivities generally are financed through taxes, intergoverr~r~ental revenues, 
and other non-exchange transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment 
of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include ~a} charges paid by 
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, {b} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational needs of a particular program, and {c} fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the 
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditureslexpenses. Funds are organized into three major 
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental 
and proprietary categories. All District funds are considered major funds. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position, anc~ a Statemen~ of sash Flows for all prop, ieta~~y funds. proprietary funds are accounted for 
using the `economic resources'' measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and 
liabilities {whether current or non-current} are included on the Statement of Net position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position present increases {revenues} and decreases {expenses} in total net 
positïon. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while 
expenses are recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund -This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The fund provides for public administration and 
overall management as it pertains to the District as a whole as well as the District's street lighting services. It also 
accounts for the District's fire protection services as agreed upon with the Five Cities Fire Authority Joint Powers 
Authority. 

Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. 
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income 
measurement similar to the private sector. 

Vliater Fund -This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the District's water distribution, treatment, and 
monitoring systems. 

Sewer Fund -This fund is used to account for all activities of operating sewer services and maintaining the sewer lines. 

Garbage Fund -This fund is used to account for the garbage franchise services. 
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~?CEANo CC~~IIUNITY SERVICES DISTF~~CT 
i~~TES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUKE 30, 2Q2~ 

NflTE 1— SUIVlIVIAi~Y t3F StGNIFICANT ACC~UNTlN~ P~LICIES {Continued) 

San Luis Obispo County levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special assessments far the District. Property 
taxes levied are retarded as revenue in the fiscal year of levy, due to the adoption of the "alternate method of property 
tax distribution," known as the Teeter Plan, by the District and the County. The Teeter Plan authorizes the 
AuditorlCantroller of the County to allocate 100°l~ of the secured property taxes billed, excluding unitary tax {whether 
paid or unpaid). The County remits tax monies to the District every month and twice a month in December and April. 
The final amount which is "teetered" is remitted in August Bath year. 

Tax collections are the responsibility of the County Tax Collector. Taxes and assessments on secured and utility rolls, 
which Constitute a lien against the property, may be paid in two installments; the first is due ~iavember 1 of the fiscal 
year and is delinquent if not paid by December 1  Cl;  and the second is due on ll~arch 1 of the fiscal year and is 
delinquent if not paid by April ~ C~. Unsecured personal property taxes do not Constitute a lien against real property 
unless the tax becomes delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by 
August ~ of the seal year. Significant penalties are imposed by the County for late payment. 

Property valuations are established by the Assessor of the County for the secured and unsecured property tax rolls. 
Under the provisions of Article l I lA of the State Constitution, properties are assessed at 1 Cl0°ln of purchase price ar 
value in 1 g~8 whichever is later. From this base assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited to a 
maximum of percent. However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements ar upon Change in 
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

Tax levy dates are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal 
year begins July ~ and ends June 3~ of the following year. Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal 
property, as it exists at that time. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are  nat  relieved by 
subsequent renewal or Change in ownership. 

E. Cash and Investments 

The District pools the rash of all funds, except for monies deposited with fiscal agent in accordance with related band 
indentures. The Cash and investments balance in each fund represents that fund's equity share of the District's rash 
and investment pool. For purposes of the statement of cash flaws, the District has defined Cash and cash equivalents 
to be Change and petty Cash funds, equity in the District's rash and investment pool, and restricted non-pealed 
investments with initial maturities of three months of less. 

in accordance with LASS Statement Flo. 1, cCc~untin~ anc~ ~inancóa/ f?ept~rtinc~ fc~r Certain lnvestr~aents anc~ f©r 
eternal Investment l~©als, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year ar less at time of purchase are 
stated at amar~tized cost. Ail other investments are stated at fair value. ~Jlarket value is used as fair value for those 
securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

The District maintains its rash balance in financial institutions in the United States. The balances at the institutions are 
generally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC} up to ~25,Ot~~. As of June 3ú, 222, the 
District held rash in financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. 

F. Accounts and Interest Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables Consist of alI revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. 
Receivables are retarded in the financial statements net of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable, and 
estimated refunds due. ~llajor receivable balances for the governmental activities may include sales taxes, property 
taxes, grants, and ether fees, if any. Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivables. 

In the fund financial s#atements, material receivables in governmental funds may include revenue accruals such as 
franchise tax, grants, service charges and other similar intergovernmental revenues that are bath measurable and 
available. ~lon-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in 
attordante with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements 
in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and if paid within fC~ 
days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all 
revenues earned at fiscal year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and interest earnings comprise the 
majority of proprietary fund receivables. 
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OCEANO CONiI~IUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NC)TES To THE BASIC 1=1NANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 3O, 0~2 

NOTE 1 —SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued) 

G. Prepaid Expenses and Inventory 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the firs#-in, first-out {PIED) method. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditurelexpense in the funds at the time individual inventory items are purchased rather than when consumed. 
This is then adjusted by physical inventory at fiscal year-end. Inventory in the enterprise funds consist principally of 
materials and supplies for utility operations. 

Payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund f nancial statements. 

H. Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations. The presentation and recording of governmental assets 
are described below. 

GQvemment-l~íc~e S~a~ements 

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets with a historical cost of ~,C}tJ© or more are accounted for as 
capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except 
for donated capital assets, if any, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated 
historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets. 

V~th the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the district has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) 
capital assets on the government-wide statements. 

(Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. [Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated 
useful lives using the straight-fine method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as 
follows: 

Water system 5-75 years 
Sanitation system 1 fl-5g years 
ïDrainage -50 years 
Administration ~-4~g years 

•̀ ,~ .' , - - ~ 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are 
capitalised when purchased. 

Accumulated Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences comprise unused vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory time off, which are accrued as 
earned. Vacation hours, which accrue from the first day of employment, can be taken immediately and are capped at 
32O hours. Upon termination, all accumulated vacation hours up to ~o hours are paid out. Sick leave, which accrue 
from the first day of employment can be taken immediately and can be accrued up to 1fl days or 1,440 hours. Upon 
termination , all accumulated vacation hours up to 180 days are paid out. Payments will be based on the pay rate at the 
time of termination. The (District's liability for the current and long-term portions of compensated absences is shown in 
the government-wide Statement of Net Position for both governmental funds and proprietary funds. Only proprietary 
funds reflect the long-term portion in the fund fïnancials report, Statement of Net Position. The short-term portion is 
reflected for both governmental and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements. Computation was based on 
rates in effect as of the fiscal year-end. 

J. Long-Term Liabilities 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term liabilities are presented for both governmental and proprietary 
fund types. In the fund financial statements, only the proprietary funds show long-term liabilities. 
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ac~A~c~ ct~nn~~~~T~ sE~v~cEs ~~s-r~rcT 
NOTE~ To T~E BAS~~ F~NAN~~AL sTATEMENTS 
J u ~ E ~o, 2022 

Nt~TE 1—~UIUIMARY QF ~I~NIFICAI~#T ACCt}UNTINC PC3LICIE~ (Continued) 

K. Pensians 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflowslinflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Oceano Community Services District California 
Public Employees' Retirement System {CaIPERS) Miscellaneous, Miscellaneous PEPRA, and Safety Fire Plans and 
additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by CaIPERS. Far this purpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

OASB Statement No. ~i8 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain 
defined timeframes. For this report the following timeframes are used: 

Valuation Date: June 3Ú, 2020 
Measurement Date: June ~ü, 2021 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2ú2O through June 3C1, 2021 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to OASB Statement No. ~3, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnfl©ws of 
Resources, and Net Pasitian, and t~ASB Statement No. 65, /tams Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category, refer to 
Note 7 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the District has recognized. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable to 
a future reporting period . The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category; refer to dote 7 for a 
detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources the District has recognized. 

M. lnterfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services 
provided , deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund , and reduces its related 
cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 

N. E uity Classificatians 

~©verrtment-1Nide Statements 

CASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets and the deferred outflows of resaurces and 
liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resaurces be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, ar unrestricted. 

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of the net position that has 
external constraints placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not 
meet the definition of net investments in capital assets or restricted net position. 

G©vemmental Fund Statements 

Fund balance is the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in the governmental funds. In compliance 
with OASB Statement No. 54, the District has established the fallowing fund balance classifications: 

Nan-spendable -- The non-spendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either {a} not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted -- The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that reflect constraints placed on the use of 
resaurces {other than non-spendable items) that are either {a) externally imposed by creditors {such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or {b} imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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oCEANo COMIVIU~IITY SERVICES a1STRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS 
JUNE 3O, ~02~ 

~IOTE 1 -- SU#UIIVIARY {JF ~1CNIFICANT ACCC~UNTfNG P~LICIES {C©ntinued} 

~  Equity Classifications ~continued~ 

Cammítted —The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Directors. Those committed amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
{legislation, resolution, ordinance, etc.) it employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund balance 
should also incorporate contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned -- The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the government's intent 
to be used for specific purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent is to be established by (a) 
the Board of Directors itself or {b) the general ~ilanager to which the Board of Directors has delegated the authority to 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 

Unassigned -- The unassigned fund balance classification includes amoun#s that do not fall into one of the above four 
categories. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes within the general Fund. 

Vvhen an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, it is District's 
policy that the restricted fund balance be spent first followed by committed, then assigned, and, if applicable, 
unassigned. 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

ASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 

.~ - _ +~ • • • ~ - ~ +i • • . •  

Statement No. 93 "F~eplacement of Interbank Offered 

Dates" 

Statement No. 94 "Public-Private and Public-Public 

Partnerships and Availability 

Payment Arrangements" 

Statement No. 94 "Subscription-Based Information 

Technology Arrangements" 

Statement No. 99 "Omnibus 2022"  

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2Q21. 

The provisions of this statement except for paragraphs 

11 b, ~ 3, and ~ 4 are effective for fiscal years beginning 

after June 1 ~, 242{x. Paragraph 11 b is effective for fiscal 

years beginning after December 31, 242 ~ . Paragraphs 

~ and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

Ju~~e ~ ~, 2421. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June ~ 5, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June ~ 5, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

in April 2422 except for the provisions related to 

leases, PPPs, SBITAs, financial guarantees 

and derivative instruments. The provisions related 

to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal 

years beginning after June ~ 5, 2022. The provisions 

related to financial guarantees and derivative 

instruments are effective for fiscal years beginning 

after June ~ 5, 2423. 

Statement No. 144 "Accounting Changes and Error 

Corrections - an amendment of GASB 

Statement No. 42" 

Statement No. 101 "Compensated Absences" 

~ 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after June ~ 5, 2x23. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. 

Attachment - June 30, 2022 AuditPage 156 of 177



OCEANO C{)M11~UNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
RIOTES  TO THE BASIC FlNAR1ClAL STATEMERITS 
J U ~ E  fio,  2022 

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~C©ntinued} 

P. Use of Estimates 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America and necessarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by Management. Actual 
results could differ from these amounts. 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The composition of cash and investments as of June 30, 2822, is as follows: 

Cash in bank and on hand ~ g3~, ~ 43 
Investments 2,552,48 

Total cash and investments, Statement of Net Position 3,486,791 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level ~ inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The District's investment in the San Luis C)bispo County Investment Pool of X2,327,164 is 
measured under level ~. The District had investments in the money market funds and bank time deposits that are measured at 
amortized cost are not required to be measured under Level 1, 2 or 3. 

Investments Authorized bathe California Government Code and the District's Investment Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types the District has that are authorized for the District by the California Government 
Code or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive, that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions 
of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's 
investment policy. 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage Investment 
Maturity C)f Porfolio in Cane Issuer 

5 years None Done 
5 years None done 
5 years Done None 
~ years None bone 
~ 8{~ days 4C~°I© None 
27a days 25°/© 10°Io 
5 years 3C}°la None 
5 years 3{~°l~ None 
5 years 30°l~ Nane 

92 days 2Q°l© of base value None 
5 years 3{~°lo None 

NIA 2O°lo 1 C}°l0 
NIA None Nane 
NIA 20°/Q None 
NIA None None 

NIA None None 

5 years None None 
5 years None $75,OQ6,60© 

Authorized 
investment T~rpe 

Local Agency Bonds 
U.S. Treasury C)bligations 
State C)bligations -- CA and Others 
U.S. Agency securities 
cankers' Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Placement services Deposits 
Repurchase and Reserve 

Repurchase Agreements 
Medium-Term Notes 
Mutual Funds 
Money Market Mutual Funds 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 
County Pooled Investment Fund 
State Registered Warrants, Notes or 

Bonds 
Notes and Bonds for other Local 

California Agencies 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment is, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. one of 
the ways that the District's interest rate risk is mitigated is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
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C)~EANtI CC~MUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 2 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS ~©ntinued} 

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued, 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the district's investments {inciuding investments held by bond trustee} to 
market rate fluctuations is provided by the table on the following page that shows the distribution of the District's investments by 
maturity as of June 30, 2022. 

investment Type 
Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit 
111~ney iV~rket 
San Luis Obispo County 

investment Pool 

Remaining ~llaturiiy {in Months) 
Carrying ~ 2 11Jlonths 13-24 25-60 iVbre than 
Amount C► r Less I~~nths IV~nths 60 Ninths 

24,616 - $ 24,616 - $ - 

200, 868 2Ufl, 868 

2,327,164 2,327,164 

$ 2,552,648 ~ 2,528,032 $ 24,61 ~ ~ - ~ - 

- - - . - -,~ -- ~.- ~. ~ . .  

The District has no investments {inciuding investments head by bond trustees) that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations. 

Disclosures Relatinyq to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of a rating by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by where applicable} the California Government Code, the investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual 
rating as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for each investment type. 

Minimum 
Carrying Legal 
Am©unt Rates 

~ 24, ~ 16 NlA 
2gn,868 N/A 

Exempt 
From Rating as of Fiscal Year End 

Disclosure ARA Not bated 
~ - ~ 

[~ ('~ [~
4 

~~/y , +r"~~ ~ 7
^/ 

 , 

{/r~A~  F.f /j~'~
( 

`T ~ 7 `"1' L,V~L,\J~V 

Investment Tvice 
Non-Neg©taable Certificate of Deposit 
il~ney Market 
San Luis Obispo County 

Investment Pool 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

►̀ ~ • +~ 

1 ~ :.: 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code. The District minimizes its credit risk by investing only in the safest types of 
securities or investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 
not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
The California Government Code and the District investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging 
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law sunless so waived by the government 
unit}. The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110°l0 of the total amount deposited by the 
public agencies. California law also allows financial ins#itutions to secure District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage 
notes having a value of 150°la of the secured public deposits. deposits are insured up to X250,000. 

The investment in the San Luis ©bispo County investment Pooi is not required to be caliateraiized. The fair value of securities in 
the pool is based on quoted market prices. The San Luis C)bispo County Treasurer's Office performs a monthly fair market 
valuation of all securities held against carrying costs. Reports of valuations and financial statements are available to participants 
on the San Luis t~bispo County Treasurer's website. 
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Balance at 

July 1, 2421 

61 {~, 399 

~► ~,  

flCEA1~C) C~►11~MtJNITY SEi~VICES Q1STt~ICT 
N~}TES T4 THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMEI~ITS 
JUNE 34, 2422 

I~fC}TE 3 — INTERFUt~C) TRANSA~TI~NS 

Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 34, 2422, were as follows: 

tnterfund Transfers: 

~eneral ~ 775,155 ~ - 

Proprie#a~nds: 

Water 1,806 884,835 

Sewer 342,116 

~arbage 941 54,911 

Borrowing between funds during the fiscal year ended June 34, Zú22, was as f©hews: 

Advances and Clue T©lC~ue From: 
Advances Advances 

general ~ - 241, 775 

Proprietary Funds: 
Water 117,182 15,694 

Sewer 153,877 

garbage 15,690 29,284 

$ 286, 749 $ 286, 749 

receivable Payable 
~ 385,451 - 

335,461 

~ 335,461 ~ 335,461 

NC)TE 4 — APITALL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 34, 2422 was as follows: 

~avernmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

hJet capital assets 

Balance at 
retirements June 34, 2022 

~ 610, 394 ~ - ~ - $ 610, 394 

$ 2,088,370 $ - ~ - $ 2,488,374 
485,679 485,6 f 9 

2,524,049 2,524,049 

1,402,316 76,993 1,479,349 

~ 1,121, 788 $ ~~ ~76, 998} $ - $ 1, 444, 740 

$ 1, 732,128 $ (76,998) $ - $ 1,655,180 
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C)CEANC) COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES T+C~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 0, 2022 

NC}TE 4 -CAPITAL ASSETS {Continued) 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and improvements 
Soffiare 
Vehicles and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Net capital assets 

Balance at Retirements/ Balance at 
July ~ , 202 ~ Additions Transfers June 34, 2022 

$ 6,040 $ - $ - $ 6,000 
141,287 ~ 41,287 

$ 6,400 $ 141,287 $ - ~.-•--~ $ 147,287 

$ 7,577,290 $ 12,477 $ - $ 7,589,767 

195,918 195,918 

877,554 11,312 888,866 

8,65ú,T62 23,789 8,674,551 

6,636,416 216,763 6,247,119 

$ 2,~i24,.~46 $ X192,914) $ - $ 2,427,432 

$ 2,626,346 $ (51,627} $ - $ 2,574,719 

NC3TE 5 - LtJNC~-TERIVI LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in the District's long-term liabilities f©r the frscal gear ended June 30, 2U22: 

Balance at Balance at Current Long Term 

July 1, 2021 Additions Reductions June 34, 2022 Pardon Portion 
~overnrr~ntal Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 134,246 $ 75,774 $ 62,034 $ 143,98© $ 35,995 $ 107,985 

Net Pension Liability  {Asseu  171,003 323,066 _151,103) 

Total governmental Activities $ 342,243 $ 75,774 $ 385,100 $ ~7,123~ $ 35,995 $ {43,118) 

Business-Tv~e tivities: ~d 
Taxable revenue bond obligations $ 906,444 $ - $ 40,200 $ 856,840 $ 52,240 $ 344,044 
Net Pension Liability  {Asseu  058,377 1,054,031 X391,654} {391,654 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 1,504,377 $ - $ 1,499,231 $ 465,146 $ 52,204 ---~ $ 412,946 

NOTE  fi  -TAXABLE REVENUE B{~ND C3BLIGATI{~NS 

C)n June 3, 2421, the District issued $946,444 in taxable revenue bands in order to pay off the unfunded accrued liability with 
CaIPERS on the District's pension plans. The taxable revenue obligations were issued at an interest rate of 3.46% per annum 
and mature on August 1, 2035. Net  revenues of the Water and Sewer funds were pledged as the security for the obligations. 
Debt service payments are due semi-annually on August 1 and February 1. The future minimum payment obligations for the 
taxable revenue bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total 

2023 $ 52,244 $ 28,742 $ 84,942 
2424 54,140 26,903 81,403 
2425 56,404 24,999 80,999 
2426 57,90© 23,428 84,928 
2427 60,440 20,988 84,988 

2028-2432 321, 240 T 1, 909 393,149 
2033-2436 255,440 17,961 273,381 

Total $ 85+8,804 $ 214,530 $ 1,471,334 
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o~EANQ ~oMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
N~}TES TC) THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2022 

Na►TE ~ — PENS1t~N PLANS 

A. general Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan L~escrrpli©ns 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District's separate Safety and Miscellaneous 
Employee Pension Plans, cast-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Empl©gees' 
Retirement System {CaIPERS}. Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statue and District resolution. 
CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, 
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CaIPERS website. 

E3enefits Pr©vided 

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year 
of full-time employment. Classic Plan members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 and new 
memberslPEPRA Plan members with eve years of fetal service are eligible to retire at age 52, with statutorily reduced benefits. 
All members are eligible f©r nc~nduty disability benefits after 1 C~ years  +uf  service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the tJptional Settlement 2il~i Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for 
each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Contribution rates are based on the Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2020. The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect 
at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety 

Classic IUmbor New Member Hired Classic Member 
Hired Prior to {fin or after Hired Prior to 

Hire Date 
Benefit formula 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payments 
Retirement age 
I1nthly benefits, as a °lo of eligible compensation 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

January 1, 2913 Januar~r 1, 2913 January 1, 2913* 
2.0%55 2°I©~~i2 2°l°~~50 
5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 
monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 

50-53 52-07 50-55 
1.40% to 2.413°I° 1.0°f° to 2.5°I© 2.0-2.7°l° 

7.00°l° 6.75°I° NIA 
10.34°f° + X53,432 7.59°I° + X5,575 X13,315 

A new employee may transfer into the C  las  s is l~lem ber form ula if hels he comes from another agency 
participating in the CaIPERS or reciprocal retirement system and did not have more than a six month break 
in service. 

C©ntri~butians  

Section 20814{c} of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates far all public 
employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in 
the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The 
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the casts of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the 
District were 0 for the Safety Plan and X68,835 for the Miscellaneous Plan for the fiscal year ended June 0, 2022. 

B. Pension Liabïlitïes {Assets, Pension Expenses, and Deferred tJutflowsllnflows of Resources Related to 
Pensïons 

At June 30, 2022, the District reported net pension assets for its proportionate shares of the net position liability {asset} of each 
Plan as fellows: 

Proportionate 
Share of Net Pension 

Liabilit~r Asset} 

Miscellaneous $ {488,705} 

Safety {54,052} 

Total ~ {542,757} 
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2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

~ 

~}~EANC) ~o11~~tIUNITY SERVlCES a1STR~~T 
N~TE~ TQ THE BA~IC FINANCIAL STATEMENT~ 
J U N E 30, 2022 

NC)TE 7 — PENS1tJN PLANS {~ontinued~ 

E3. Pension Liabilities {Assets), Pension Expenses, and Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions {continued} 

The net pension liability {asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 3O, 2ú2O railed forward to June 30, 2021 using s#andard 
update procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan participants, actuarially 
determined. At June 0, 2021, the District's proporçionate share of the net pension liability {asset) far each Plan as of June 30, 
2020 and June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

Proportion-June 30, 2020 
Proportion-June 30, 2021 
Change-Increase {Decrease) 

Miscellaneous Safety 
0.01731 °I° 0.00150°I° 
-0.02574°I° -0.00154°I© __ _ __ 
-0.04345°I° -0.00304°I° 

For the fiscal year ended June 3O, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of X854,936. Pension expense represents 
the change in the net pension liability (asset) during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred 
recognition of changes in investment gainlloss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. 

At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from 
the following sources: 

Deferred 4utflaws of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
retirement plan investments 
Adjustment due to differences in proportion 
Changes in proportion and differences between District 
contributions and proportionate s here of contributions 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

~ {64,038) ~ 

458, 785 
17,665 

574,133 
68,835 

~ 3 ,055,380 -~-~ 

8,437 

~ 473,385 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net 
pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

$68,835 reported as deferred outflows afi resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in the pension expenses as follows: 

Fiscal usar andina  June  30 ~,~ • 
$ 125, 945 

131,297 
129,172 
126, 746 
513,160 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
NOTES TC~ THE BASIC FiNANCiAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE ~0, 2422 

NOTE ? —PENSION PANS {Continued) 

B. Pension Liabilities {Assets), Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
IVleasurement Date 
Acturial Cost I~lethod 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 
Inflation 
Projected Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return {1} 
Mortality 

Post Retirement Benefit Increase 

Miscellaneous and Safety 
June 0, 2020 
June 0, 2021 

Entry-Age Normal Cos# I~thod 

7.15°l° 
2.50°l° 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 
7.00% 

Derived using CaIPERS' mbership 
Data for all Funds {1) 

Contract COLA up to 2.50% until 
Purchasing Power Protection Allowance 

Floor on Purchasing Power applies; 
2.75°I° thereafter 

{1 } The mortality table used was developed based an CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 
15 years ©f m©rtality impr©vements using Society ©f Actuaries Scale 90°l0 ©f Sale MP 2416. 
F©r mare details on this table please refer to the December 217 experience study report. 

L~isct~unt mate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate 
should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans {including PEDF C}, CaIPERS stress tested plans 
that would most likely result in a discount rate tha# would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on 
testing the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is 
appropriate and the use of municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 
7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are 
presented in a detailed report called °`~ASB Crossover Testing Deport" that can be obtained at CaIPEDS' website under the 

ASB No. 08 section. 

CaIPEDS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management {ALM} review cycle 
that is scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper 
stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CaIPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for 

AB No. 07 and No. 0~ calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of 
the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation} are 
developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took ïnto account both shori-term and long-term market return 
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected 
compound returns were calculated over the short term {first 10 years) and the long term {11-00 years} using abuilding-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and Tong-term, the present value of benefits were calculated 
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single  equivalen#  expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of 
return was then set equivalent to the single equïvalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of 
one percent. 

The table on the following page reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of 
return are net of administrative expenses. 
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oUEANo ~o~IYiUN~TY ti7~RY iLrGti7 ~~~3~(~1~~~~ 

NOTES TQ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIViENTS 
JUNE 30, 222 

N~}TE ~ — PENSION PLANS ~Consinued} 

B. Pension Liabilities {Assess), Pension Expenses, and Deferred t~utflows/inflows of Resources Related so 
Pensions {Consinued) 

New 
Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10{a} Years 11 +{b} 

Global Equity 50.0°I° 4.80°l° 5.98°I° 
Global Fixed Income 28.0°I° 1.00°I° 2.02°I° 
Inflation Sensitive 0.0°I° 0.77°I° 1.81 °I° 
Private Equity 8.0°I° 0.30°I° 7.23°I° 
Real Assets 13.0°I° 3.75°I° 4.93°I° 
Liquidity 1.0°l° 0.00°I° -0.92% 

Total 100.0°I° 

~a} An expected inflation of 2.00°I° was used for this period. 
{b} expected inflation of 2.92°I° was used for this period. 

Sensitivity of the Prop©rti©Hate Share of the Net Pension Liability ~Asset~ to Changes in Disc©unt Rate 

The following represents the district's proportionate share of the net pension liability {asset} calculated using the discount rate of 
7.15 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability {asset} would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage paint Tower (0.15 percent} or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent} than the current 
rate: 

Discount Rate -1 °I° Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1 °1° 
0.15°I° 7.15°I° 8.15% 

Net Pension Asset - I~Ciscellaneous {71,171 } $ {488,705} ~ (833,874) 
Net Pension Asset -Safety {1,1. 30} X54,052} (97,52.1.} 
Net Pension Asset -Total {72,301} (542,757.} (931,395) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately-issued Ca1PERS financial reports. 

C. Payable so the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2022, the District had  na  amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2022. 

NC~iE 8 — Jf~INi VENTURES 

State Water Project 

In 1991, the District approved participation in the State Water Project {SWP}. As a result, the District entered into two contracts 
with the San Luis +Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District {SLC}FCD}. Cane agreement is entitled "Water 
Supply Agreement" and the other is entitled "Water Treatment and Local Facilities Agreement." 

The Water Supply Agreement is for the SWP source of supply, which is an allocation of 750 acre feet per year. The Water 
Supply Agreement incorporates by reference the SLGFCD agreement with the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR}, which is termed the "1111aster Water Supply Agreement." The District is obligated to pay its proportionate share of the cost 
of the SWP facilities owned by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR} that is used to convey the District's source 
of supply to the "Lopez Turnout," plus a proportionate share of the SL~3FCD costs. The Lopez Turnout connects the SWP 
facilities to Lopez facilities enabling State Water deliveries to the District. The District's prorated share of operating, maintenance, 
pumping, and other related casts are charged as an operating expense in the Water Fund. The portion of the c©sts that is fixed 
in nature must be paid regardless of water deliveries. Variable costs are paid based on ac#uaI water deliveries. 
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oCEANo COi~UNITY SERVICES ï~ISTRICT 
Nt~TES TC~ THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEi1~ENTS 
JUNE 30, 222 

NC)TE 8 — Jo1NT VENTURES {C©ntinued} 

Mate Water Project (Continued 

The Water Treatment and Local Facilities agreement is for treatment of the SWP supply and for construction associated with the 
Lopez Turnout, a local facility. The Water Treatment and Local Facilities agreement incorporates by reference the SLCFCD 
agreement with the Central Coast Water Authority termed the "Master Water Treatment Agreement." The District is obligated to 
pay its proportionate share of treatment facilities owned and operated by CCWA, and for the cost of local facilities specifically 
benefitting the District —the Lopez Turnout. The portion of the costs that is fixed in nature must be paid regardless of water 
deliveries. Variable costs are paid based on actual water deliveries. 

The District is required to make payments under its Water Supply agreement and its Water Treatment and Local Facilities 
agreement from the revenues of its water system. The District has agreed in its agreements to fix, prescribe and collect rates 
and charges for its water system which will be at least sufficient to yield each fiscal year's net revenues equal to 125°l© of the 
sum of {1) the payment required pursuant to the agreements, and {2) debt service on any existing participant obligation for which 
revenues are also pledged. 

Gn October 1, 1 gg2, CCWA sold 1 ~7,120,00o in revenue bonds at a true interest cost of .~4% to enable CCWA to f Hance a 
portion of the costs of constructing a water treatment plant to treat SWP water for use by various participating water purveyors 
and users within Santa Barbara and San Luis Gbispo Counties, local facilities needed to deliver such water to the participating 
water purveyors and users, and certain other local improvements to the water systems of some of the participating purveyors. In 
November 19g, CCWA sold ~198,o15,oD0 of revenue bonds at a true interest cost of 5.5°!° to defense CCWA's 177,12t~,000 
1gg2 revenue bonds and to pay certain costs of issuing the bonds. The 199~i bonds were issued in two series: Series A of 
$173,015,t~oo and Series B of $25,000,00. The Series B bonds are subject to mandatory redemption from amounts transferred 
from the Construction Fund and the Reserve Fund upon completion of the construction of the CCWA facilities. 

The District's current fiscal year State water project expense totaled 8gg,075. All of the District's disbursements were paid to the 
SLt)FCD, which is obligated to pay to DWR and CCWA the District's proportionate share of costs to those agencies. 

The District also contracts with SLGFCD for an annual allocation of 303 acre feet of water from the Lopez project, issued voter-
approved general obligation bonds for the purpose of building Lopez Dam, a storage reservoir, water treatment plant, and other 
facilities to provide a primary municipal water supply. The District has entered into a water supply agreement wherein the District 
has agreed to pay annually, regardless of water deliveries, a prorated percentage of certain costs. In addition, the District also 
pays the San Luis {~bispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District a prorated share of operating, maintenance, 
pumping, and related operating costs which are charge as an operating expense in the Water Fund. The District's current fiscal 
year San Luis Gbispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District expense totaled X521,31 ~. 

South San Luis CCbispo Count~o Sanitation District 

The District does not own and operate a separate wastewater treatment plant facility. The C3ceano Community Services District's 
waste is transported through District-owned and District-maintained lines for processing at the South San Luis Obispo County 
Santtati©n D~strlct plant. 

Five Cities Fire Authorit 

The District is a member of the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA}, a joint powers authority between the Cities of Arroyo Grande, 
Grover Beach, and the C~ceano Community Services District. FCFA was formed on July 9, 2010, for the purpose of providing a 
more efficient fire protection service within the City limits of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach, as well as the towns of ~}ceano 
and Halcyon. Each member contributes its pro-rated share of operating costs to FCFA based on a funding formula calculated 
annually. In 2015, it was determined that adherence to the funding formula had not occurred in prior years. Any recalculation of 
prior year funding, and adjustments that may be made to remedy differences between actual funding and funding that would 
have adhered to the agreement establishing the joint powers authority is indeterminable at this time. 

The FCFA governing board consists of one member appointed from each participating entity and shall be appointed as 
determined by the respective City Council or Board of Directors. All financial decisions are made by this three-member board. 
The District contributed $1,138,148 to FCFA during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for fire protections services. Separate 
financial statements may be obtained from the Five Cities Fire Authority at 140 Traffic Way in Arroyo Grande, California. 
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oCE~No CC~NIMUNI71f SERVICES aISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 0, 2022 

t~oTE 9 — R1SK ~VIANA~EME~T Atha C~NTINCE~ICIES 

Risk Management 

The Qistrict is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The district is a member of the California Association of Mutual Water 
Companies Joint Powers Risk and insurance Management Authority {JPRIMA}, an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers 
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for small California water agencies. The purpose of the JPRIMA is to 
arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase the appropriate amount of insurance coverage. At June 
34, 20122, the C~istrict participated in the liability and property programs of the JPRIMA as follows: 

• general and auto liability: The C~istrict has a 50o deductible for general and auto liability. The district purchased 
additional excess coverage layers: $ million for general, auto and public officials liability, which increases the limits on 
the insurance coverage noted above. 

• Employee dishonesty coverage and public officials' liability up to $1,000,000 per loss includes public employee 
dishonesty, forgery or alteration and theft, computer fraud coverages. 

• Property loss/Boiler and Machinery is paid based on the replacement cost or actual cash value for the pr©perty on file. if 
the property is replaced within two years after the loss or otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined 
total of ~~ million subject to a x,000 deductible per occurrence for most equipment. 

• Workers' compensation insurance provides coverage with aself-insured retention limit of ~~ million for all work related 
injurieslillnesses covered by California law. 

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there were no reductions 
in the C~istrict's insurance coverage during the years ending June 3®, 2021, 2020 and 2019. Liabilities are rec©riled when it is 
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance 
coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (1BNR}. There were no IBNR claims 
payable as of June 30, 2022, 202 ~ ,and 2020. 

Leç~al Contingency 

In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the disposition of any pending óitigation will not have an anticipated material 
effect on the City's financial statements as of June 30, 2022. 

Construction Contingency 

The C~istrict has r~o construction contingencies as of June 30, 2022. 
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OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES CISTRICT 
GENEF~AL FUND 
SCHEDULE QF RE~IENUES, E~CPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Budgeted Amounts Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive {Negative) 
Revenues: 

Taxes and assessments $ 1,139,701 $ 1,139,701 $ 1,182,885 $ 43,184 
Public facility fee 15,000 15,000 7,878 {7,122} 
Interest income 10,009 10,009 
Rental income 140,940 140,940 140,940 

~}ther 2,848 2,848 8,713 5,885 

Total revenues 1,298,489 1,298,489 1,359,425 51,936 

Expenditures: 

Salaries, wages, and director stipends 458,040 458,649 435,913 22,127 
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 149,025 149,025 194,683 {45,658) 
Liability insurance 29,600 29,600 30,562 {962) 
Repairs and maintenance 27,625 27,625 19,241 8,384 
Administrative services 8,456 8,456 6,C1Ú9 2,441 
Data processing 18,500 18,5í1C} 18,994 {494} 
Dues and fees 26,655 26,055 28,169 {2,114} 

Education 7,600 7,600 5,666 1,934 
Legal fees 92,0)0}U 92,C)6(~ 41,5i 8 50),482 
Miscellaneous 515 515 2,872 {2,357} 
C3ffice expense 11,345 11,345 8,336 3,009 
Street lighting 39,6016 30,90)0 28,064 1,996 
Professional fees 58,115 65,615 52,048 13,567 
Utilities 26,800 26,800 22,757 4,043 
Public safety 1,138,148 1,138,148 1,138,148 
Interest expense 11,844 {11,844} 

Total expenditures 2,081,818 2,089,318 2,044,764 44,554 

Excess of revenues 

over (under} expenditures {783,329} {790,829} {694,339} 96,490 

Other Financing sources {Uses) 

Transfers in 830,936 830,936 775,155 {55,781 } 
Transfers out {124,944) {124,944} 124,944 

Total other financing sources {uses} 705,992 705,992 775,155 69,163 

Net change in fund balance {77,337} {84,837} 80,816 165,653 

Fund balance -July 1 768,543 768,543 768,543 

Fund balance -June 30 $ 691,20}6 $ 683,706 $ 849,359 $ 165,653 
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tJCEAN~ ~{3~t1MUN1TY SERVICES Q1STRICT 
SCNE©ULE ~F PRC~Pt~RT1C~NATE SNAKE {JF NET PENSIQN LIABILITY 
Last ~ 4 Years* 
As of June 30, 2022 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's Pension Plan. 

2422 2421 2424 2419 241$ 
Proportion of the net pension liability -ú.ú1 úú4°!° 4aú783°I° 0.Oú741 °l© úA4715°!° 4.00744°1© 

Proportions#e share of the net pension liability 
{asset) $ (542,757} $ 830,340 $ 759,574 $ 689,459 $ 898,116 

hovered payroll $ 674,882 $ 843,799 $ 577,089 $ 573,557 $ 544,352 

Pr©porn©na#e share ©f the net penslen liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll -80.42°l° 128.98°l° 131.62°l° 120.21 °l° 128.25°I° 

Plan's t©tai pension liability $46,174,942,284 $43,702,930,887 $ 41,426,453,489 $ 38,944,855,384 $ 37,161,348,332 

Plan's fiduciary net pos~t(on $44,768,653,876 $32,822,541,335 $ 31,179,414,467 $ 29,348,589,559 $ 27,244,095,378 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the t©tal pension liability 8$.29°I° 75.14°I© 75.28°f° 75.28°I© 73.31 °l© 

2417 2416 2415 
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.00692°l° 0.Oú849°l° ú.úú676°f° 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
{asset) $ 598,558 $ 445,284 $ 424,438 

hovered payroll $ 437,448 $ 453,904 $ S12,ú44 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll 136.84°l° 98.1 ú°l° 134.74°I° 

Plan's total pension liability $ 33,358,827,624 $ 31,771,217,402 $ 30,829,966,631 

Plan's fiduciary net position $ 24,705,532,291 $ 24,907,305,871 $ 24,6ú7,5ú2,515 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 74.06% 78.oú°I° 79.82°% 

Notes to Schedule: 

There were no changes ïn assumptions or benefit terms for the fïscai year ended June 3ú, 2022. 

*- Fiscal year Zú15 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only eight years are shown. 
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C~CEANfJ ~C}11~~UN{TY SER!lICES DISTRICT 
SCHEDUI.E C~F PEI~Slfl1~ C~3NTRIBUTIC}NS 
Last 1 ~ Years* 
As of June 34, 2422 

The following table provides required supplementary inf©rmatic~n regarding the District's Pensifln Plan. 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 
contributions 
Contribution deficiency (excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} 

Contrlbutl4n !n relation to the actuarially determined 
Contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

2022 2021 2020 201~ 201~ 
~ 68, 835 ~ 122, 565 $ 141, 217 ~ 83, 717 $ 73, 333 

{68,835j ~954,271 } (141,217} ~83,717} (73,333) 
~ - ~ {831,7Q6} $ - ~ - $ - 

$ 682,293 $ 674,882 $ 643,779 $ 577,a89 $ 573,557 

14.49°!~ 141.44°~~ 15. 72°/® 14. 51 °!® 12. 79°l© 

2017 2016 2015 
*~ 

~ 
~ 

*~ ,~~ ~ ~ ~ 

{65,457} (52,723} {49,742} 
~ - ~ - ~ - 

~ 544,352 ~ 437,448 ~ 453,944 

12.42°la 12.45°I© 14. 95°l® 

Notes tc~ schedule 

There were n4 changes in assumptions or benefit terms for the fiscal year ended June 34, 2922. 

~`- Fiscal year 2415 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only eight years are shown. 
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Conditions of Purchase 
 

 

 1. The only terms that will be honored are those issued by the Oceano Community 

Services District (District). 

 

 2. No acknowledgment of this order is required.  If this purchase order is the result 

of a written bid or quotation, the purchase order shall serve as acceptance thereof.  If this 

purchase order is the result of an informal oral or written quote, acceptance will be assumed 

unless otherwise advised within (10) days of the date of the order.  Unless otherwise specified, 

the U.S. Mail shall be the accepted means of communication. 

 

 3. Purchase order numbers shall appear on all invoices, packages, crates, boxes, etc. 

 

 4. Invoices must include only items shown on this order.  In the event any item 

included on this order is not delivered, please notify the District at once as to the reason for the 

delay and the date we can expect delivery.  Do not include any item which is back ordered on 

your invoice.  Any invoice or claim on this contract must be presented within 1 year from 

delivery of goods or services. 

 

 5. Changes of any kind are not authorized without permission from the District.   

  

 6. The District reserves the right to cancel any or all items not shipped within the 

time specified on the order. 

 

 7. No charges for transportation, containers, packing, etc. will be allowed unless 

specified on the order. 

 

 8. All material furnished must be as specified and will be subject to inspection and 

approval of the District after delivery.  The right is reserved to reject and return at the risk and 

expense of the supplier such portion of any shipment which may be defective or fail to comply 

with specifications without invalidating the remainder of the order.  Rejected material will be 

held for disposition at the expense and risk of the seller. Manufacturer’s warranty shall apply to 

all materials incorporated into work.   

 

 9. This order is subject to sales tax, exempt from federal tax.  Certificate of 

exemption will be provided upon request. 

 

 10. All goods and/or services shall be in compliance with all federal, state and local 

law including but not limited to OSHA and CAL OSHA. 

 

 11. The seller shall provide the District with a Material Safety Data Sheet for each 

product containing substances on the List of Hazardous Substances published by the California 

Administrative Code, Title S, Section 5194.  These sheets must be sent to Oceano Community 

Services District at P O Box 599, Oceano, CA  93475-0599.  Please reference the above 

purchase order number.  
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INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the District and its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against all 

claims, demands, damages, liabilities, loss, costs, and expense (including attorney’s fees and 

costs of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s performance 

or attempted performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 

contained in the agreement, except such loss or damage which was caused by sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the District. 

 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

 

Notwithstanding anything to contrary in the Agreement, and to the extent permitted by 

applicable law, the maximum liability, if any, of either Party for any damages, including without 

limitation, agreement damages and damages of property, whether arising from breach of 

agreement, breach of warranty, negligence, strict liability, or other tort, is limited to an amount 

not to exceed the aggregate of TWO TIMES THE FACE VALUE OF THE AGREEMENT, 

which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy under the Agreement.  In no event shall either 

Party be liable for indirect, incidental, special, punitive, or consequential dames of any kind 

(including without limitation downtime, property damage, loss of profit or revenue, loss of data, 

damage to goodwill) howsoever caused or arising from the Agreement or the breath of the 

Agreement, whether in indemnity, tort, contract, or otherwise.  Nothing in the Agreement 

excludes or limits liability for death or personal injury caused by a party’s gross negligence or 

willful misconduct.  

 

INSURANCE COVERAGE 

 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 

for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL); Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 

0001 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis for bodily injury and property 

damage, including products-completed, operations, personal injury and 

advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  If a 

general aggregate limit applies either the general aggregate limit shall apply 

separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 

required occurrence limit. 
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2. Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any auto), 

or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit 

no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damages. 

3. Worker Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 

Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limit of no less than 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  If Contractor will provide 

leased employees, or is an employee leasing or temporary staffing firm or a 

professional employer organization (PEO), coverage shall also include an 

Alternate Employer Endorsement (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO 

policy form WC 00 03 O1 A) naming the District as the Alternate Employer, and 

the endorsement form shall be modified to provide that District will receive not 

less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation of this coverage 

provision.  If applicable to Contractor’s operations, coverage also shall be 

arranged to satisfy the requirements of any federal workers or workmen’s 

compensation law or any federal occupational disease law. 

 (Not required if Contractor provides written verification it has no employees) 

 

 If the contractor maintains higher limits that the minimums shown above, the District 

requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor. 

 

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

 

Additional Insured Status: 

The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insureds on the 

auto policy with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed 

by, or on behalf of the Contractor; and on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 

work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or 

equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.  General liability coverage can 

be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO 

Form CG 20 10, 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG 23 37 forms if later revisions used). 

 

Primary Coverage 

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers.  Any 

insurance of self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers, officials, employees, or 

volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

Notice of Cancellation 

Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except after 

thirty (30) days prior written notice (10 days for non-payment) has been given to the District. 

 

Failure to Maintain Insurance 

Contractor’s failure to maintain or to provide acceptable evidence that it maintains the required 

insurance shall constitute a material breach of the Contract upon which the District immediately 
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may withhold payments due to Contractor, and/or suspend or terminate this Contract.  The 

District, at its sole discretion, may obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said breach. 

 

Waiver of Subrogation 

Contractor hereby grants to District a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of 

said Contractor may acquire against the District by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 

insurance.  Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the District has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.  The 

District may require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 

investigation, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. 

 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.A. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, 

unless otherwise acceptable to the District. 

 

Claims Made Policies 

If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis: 

 

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract 

or the beginning of contract work; 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 

least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work; 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-

made policy form with a Retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, the 

Contractor must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five 

(5) years. 

 

Separation of Insured’s 

All liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as would be afforded by the standard 

ISO (Insurance Services Office, Inc.) separate of insured’s provision with no insured versus 

insured exclusions or limitation. 

 

Verification of Coverage 

Contractor shall furnish the District with original certificates and mandatory endorsements or 

copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause.  All 

certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before work 

commences.  However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning 

shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them.  The District reserves the right to 

required complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 

required by these specifications, at any time. 
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Certificates and copies of any required endorsements shall be sent to: 

 

 Oceano Community Services District 

 P.O. Box 599 

 Oceano, CA  93475-0599 

 

Subcontractors 

Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 

requirements stated herein. 

 

Special Risks or Circumstances 

District reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of 

the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 
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